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At a glance

Our business

Woe're proud to provide water and wastewater services to more than 4 6 million people across the South East
Qur vision s to be recognised as the UK's leading water company and we will achieve this by
»  Providing excellent customer service — which meets and more often exceeds our customers’ expectations,

» Embracing innovation and working collaboratively — so that we invest in, and operate, our mains, sewers
and treatment works efficiently and effectively, and

+ Delivenng value for money to our customers and shareholders - focusing on cost management and
efficient investment in our assets to keep bills affordable and generate reasonable returns on investment
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Peopie served, millions 25
Number of properties, millions 11
Number of metered properties 945,168
Average dally water supply, miions of litres per day 521
Number of service reservors 195
Number of water treatment works 83
Length of water mains, kilometres 13,837
woewser |
People served, millions 46
Number of properties, mifhons 20
Average daily wastewater recycled, millions of litres per day 719
Length of sewers, kilometres 39,600
Number of wastewater treatment works 366
Number of pumping stations 2,375
Turnover* £803 7m £826 2m
QOperating profit £284 5m £331 5m
Profit before interest and tax £284 9m £332 8m
Profit for the financial year £119 9m £93 6m
Capital investment £241 2m £298 4m
Non-current assets (excluding debt) £5678 8m  £5672 3m
Return on capital employed (ROCE)** 51% 5 9%
Average water and wastewater customer bill £418 £434

Note — The 2014-15 figures have been restated reflecting the adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)

* Non-appointed activities (not regulated by our licence but related to our business, such as property search
information) were 1 4 per cent of our statutory turnover

** ROGE 1s presented as the ratio of profit before interest and tax to non-current assets excluding debt less current
habilities
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Our performance

Responsive customer service Performance Comment
P 2015-16

Customer satisfaction
Service Incentive Mechamsm (SIM) score

Number of compensation paymentis made to customers We have adopted a new proactive
approach to service, contacting our

{Guaranteed Standards Scheme)
cusiomers before problems anse Asa

) Percentage of contacts resolved first ime result, in the last quarter of the year we
received nearly 30 per cent fewer
Percentage of customers who feel our service meets their N/A customer complaints than in the same
individual needs’ period the year before

Percentage of customers who feel our service meets the
needs of their community’

. Performance

Percentage of customers who feel our services provide value N/A We have helped more than 142,000 of
for money1 our most vulnerable customers with
financial assistance and debt advice
dunng 2015-16 We've done this by
partnering with the chanty StepChange
and local advisory services to reach
more of those in need

. . . Performance

N/A

Customers in genuine hardship with improved support

Water usage, per capita consumption (litres/head/day)

Number of unwanted billing queries (unwanted from a
customer's point of view)

Our customer surveys allow us 1o

Percentage of customers who are aware of the causes of develop information to ensure we

N/A

blocked drains’ provide practical advice to save water,

prevent blockages and manage water
Percc:ﬁntage of customers who are aware how their money I1s N/A hardness in homes and businesses
use

Percentage of customers who are aware of how to deal with
hard water’'

1 Dunng the year we have refined our customer survey quastions which have been used to measure performance against these promises As
such there 1S no companson to target in 2015-16 Future performance will be measured against the 2015~16 position on a consistent basis

N/A
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A constant supply of high-quality drinking water Pe;}c:rg\ Comment
“‘&, «

Customer minutes lost supply > 3 hours

Leakage (Ml/day)

Water quality (Mean Zonal Comphance) (%) The water we supply to our customers ‘

Is among the highest quality in the UK
and our leakage performance Is also
among the best

Number of contacts regarding discoleuration per 1,000
population

-

:
A g e

Number of properties with low water pressure
Number of customers affected by temporary use ban

Maintain asset health

Number of blockages per km/year _ We missed our reduction target for

Number of internal flooding incidents PN o v internai flooding incidents this year, but
S35 we remain on track to achieve the 25 |

Number of external flooding incidents per cent reduction in flooding promised

_ to customers by 2020 We invested
Number of customer complaints regarding odour _ £45 million this year maintaining and

Maintain asset health improving our wastewater network

Wastewater treatment works comphance (%) fw -1

Maintain the number of bathing waters assessed with
excellent water qualty

Despite falling short of our target 1o
maintain 54 bathing waters at the
‘excellent’ standard — 99 per cent of
the bathing waters 1n our region (82 of
the 83) passed a set of stningent new
standards — giving us the best water
guality in the country

Number of senous pollution incidents (category 1 and 2)
Number of less serious pollution incidents {calegory 3)

Distribution input {Ml/day)

Renewable energy usage

In our business plan we set out 26 clear customer promises for the period 2015-20 We also agreed some additional commitments with Ofwat
when it reviewed our plan The tables above show how we have performed against these targets in 2015-16

In summary,
. Green indicates whete we have met or beaten the performance commitment
+  Amber indicates where we have missed our performance commitment but are still on target to deliver the outcomes we promised o
customers
. Red indicates where wa have not met our performance target and have not delivered the outcomes we promised to customers (n one
case we have incurred a penalty for the shortfall

Further explanation on our performance s set out in the subsequent sections

The detailed definiion and explanation for red/famber/green on each commitment are given in Appendix 2 of the Annual Performance Report
published on our weabsite
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Where your money goes

The average combined bill for our household water and waslewater customers in 2015-16 was £418, equivalent to
£1 14 per day

Over this five-year penod, 2015-20, we are planning to spend £3 billion operating, mamtatring and improving our
assets Of this, £1 8 bilhon refates to investment in new and improved assets, which is equivalent to aimost £1,000
for every property in our region

We recognise that it 1s important for customers to understand where theirr money goes and we have committed to
increase awareness of this through our reporting This information 1s clearly explained in a leaflet sent out each
year to customers as part of our annual billing process Currently 60 per cent of our customers say they know what
we do and how we spend their money

The diagram below illustrates how an average annual bill contributes to our business, based on 2015-16 figures
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Day-to-day running costs — this includes wages for direct employees and people indirectly employed through our
supply chain as well as power, chemicals and matenals costs and the cost of prowiding for bad debt when charges
are not paid by customers

Interest on debt — interest incurred on money we have borrowed to finance the business This borrowing helps us
to spread the cost for customers of improvements made to our services over the longer term

Maintaining our existing assets —expenditure to maintain our underground pipe network and treatment works,
including capitalised employee costs

Building new assets — for exampfe our £63 million modernisation of the treatment works at Woolston in
Southampton and other projects to enhance treatment standards and cater for growth

Tax, business rates and licences — this includes corporate taxes, business rates on buildings, wastewater
treatment works and water supply works and Environment Agency licences

Ofwat/regulator adjustments — these adjustments, rewards and penalties, have been applied by our regulator
Ofwat In the period 2010-15 These relate to customer satisfaction, cost savings and revenue collection

Profit — the return earned on shareholders’ investment in the business

Retail — handling customer enquines regarding the network and water and wastewater charges and the provision
of services from biling through to debt collection

Water services - the treatment and distribution of water for supply to customers
Wastewater services — the collection and treatment of wastewater from customers for return to the environment
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Welcome

Chairman’s introduction

On behalf of Southern Water's Board of Directors, | would like to welcome you to the company's Annual Report and
Accounts 2015-16

Pride in our progress

As our Chief Executive Matthew Wrnight will report in more detail in his review, 2015-16 was our best ever year in
terms of the operational performance we have delivered for our customers We have continued to sustain industry-
leading performance in health and safety, leakage and drinking water quality while making a host of improvements
across many other areas of the business

In areas where we have faced challenges in the past, such as customer service, we are starling to see signs of
improvement We are conscious that there 1s more to do but we are committed to bullding on the successes and,
indeed, the setbacks made in this first year of our five-year plan

We are already starting to think about the challenges ahead and the next business plan period of 20206-25 and how
we deal with Issues iike climate change and population growth We're leading the charge on innovative sclutions
which will builld greater levels of resilience into the services we provide to customers, for example water re-use and
using waste to generate energy

There are many more exciting plans to share over the coming year For example, the launch of a pioneering
integrated water cycle management programme (IWCM) will see us develop collaborative partnerships with a
range of industries, such as agnculture and tountism, in order to look holistically at all the factors influencing water
supply, demand and wastewater disposal It 1s only by working with partners in this way that we can really start to
make sold plans for the future, even beyond 2020

Prudent management

Our Business Plan 2015-20 :s focused on improving the essential services we provide o our customers, based on
direct feedback from them This year, customers have already seen a number of direct benefits

* In 2015-16, our average bill feli by nearly four per cent, from £434 to £418 During the five-year period of
our 2015-20 plan, the average bill pad by our household customers i1s forecast to fall by eight per cent,
before the impact of inflation

= In Aprd 2015 we introduced a new social tanff, called Essentials, for customers struggling to pay their bills
It provides lower bills for customers who spend a large proportion of their household income on water
service charges

*  We have seen a drop in the number of pollution incidents — both the number of total pollution incidents and
senous pollution incidents fell significantly in 2015

* We beat our leakage target for the fifth consecutive year by reducing leakage to 84 million litres per day,
against an agreed target of 88 million hitres

+ Over the past year we've beaten the target we set ourselves to help our customers reduce average water
use, with a final figure of 130 itres per person, per day against a target of 135 litres

*  We are proud that the quality of our dnnking water is outstanding This year we've provisionally achieved
99 98 per cent comphance against the Dnnking Water Inspectorate’s (DWI) overall water quality measures,
subject to confirmation

+  Qur bathing water quality 1s now the best in the country This result puts us m a strong position to continue
our Bathing Water Enhancement Programme — designed to go beyond basic regulatory requirements and
provide a boost to local economtes by improving coastal water quality along the 1,100 kilometres of
coastline in our region

«  We've completed the first year of our £1 8 billion capital investment pregramme, with more than 250
projects now under way to repair, refurbish and upgrade our assets

* In the last quarter we've also started to see a marked improvement in the quality of our customer service
and we are cenfident that we will continue to make headway in this area
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Qur credit rating continues to be strong thanks to effective cost control and prudent financial management This
has meant we have retained access to capital markets on favourable terms, which enables us to keep prices down
and continue investing for our customers

This report will describe In more detall how we have delivered benefits to customers in each of the areas | have
highlighted above, but | think it's fair to say we can look back with some pnde at how we've begun to realise our
five-year plan

Listening to customers

My thanks go to the Southern Water Customer Advisory Panel (CAP), which provides independent and cnitical
appraisal of how well we are meeting our customers’ needs Chaired by Anna Bradley, the panel members work
hard to provide the independent challenge and scrutiny which help us to ensure the six prionties 1n the business
plan are being delivered, and the 26 customer promises are being met | speak for the Board when | offer them my
gratitude for their oversight and diligence

The road ahead

To conclude, there 1s a tremendous amount of progress to be proud of but we should not under-estimate the
challenges facing our company and our sector Competition 1s entering the market, technologies are changing
forever the way we interact with customers and, in the long term, issues like climate change ang population growth
loom large But we are confident that the Southern Water team 1s up to the challenges ahead — particularly if the
company's strong performance over the past year is an example of the sound management and robust planning of
which 1t is capable

We have a diverse Board from a range of professional backgrounds who, I'm proud to say, form a strong team
This year has been one of bedding-in and setting our collective experience to work on delivering the goals for the
business plan period 2015-20 and beyond The strategic contributions from our nen-executive directors have been
cntical In developing a more customer-focused approach and supporting our capital delivery planning

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the dedicated members of staff who give the company i1ts passion and
energy, as well as our pariners and contractors for therr contnbution to Southern Water's successes | am very
proud to be the Chairman of such an aspirational organisation

st o nmg?

Robert Jennings
Chairman

10
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Qur Board

The Board 1s responsible for the overall strategic direction of the business Dunng 2015-16, it was made up of an
independent non-executive Chairman, two executive directors (the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer) and six non-executive directors, four of whom are independent

The day-to-day operation of the company 1s overseen by the Executive Management Team, which compnses the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and five functional directors None of these five directors 1s a
member of the Board

The uliimate holding company of Southern Water Services (Southern Water) 1s Greensands Holdings
(Greensands), owned by a consortium of pension and infrastructure funds, which are committed to a long-term
investment In our business

The Board members and Company Secretary are pictured above They are, from left, front row
Robert Jennings, Chairman

Joanne Statton, Company Secretary

Matthew Wnght, Chief Executive Officer

Rosemary Boot, independent non-execulive director

Mark Walters, non-executive director

Left to nght, back row

Bill Tame, independent non-executive director
Bronte Somes, non-executive director

Lisa Harnngton, independent non-executive director
William Lambe, Chief Financial Officer

Paul Sheffield, iIndependent non-executive director

Ftnd out more about the Board on pages 76-79
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Chief Executive’s summary

I'm pleased to introduce Southern Water's Annual Report for 2015-16 The report marks the completion of year
one of our five-year business plan for 2015-20 And, as the report will demonstrate, we've made a strong start

The business plan for 2015-20, or AMP6, was based on the most ambitious and extensive programme of customer
and stakeholder research tn Southern Water's history The feedback from more than 34,000 people informed the
six prionties that have laid the foundations of our business objectives In addition, we made 26 promises relating to
these prorities, against which customers can judge our performance

As we look back on our progress at the end of this first year of our five-year plan, 'm proud to report that in almost
all aspects of our business - leakage rates, drinking water quality, wastewater treatment, bathing water quality,
health and safety — the performance we have delivered places us among the best in our sector

in areas where we have faced challenges in the past, such as customer service, we are seeing signs of
improvement, although we know there 1s more work to be done and we are committed to building on the progress
made

This annual report looks in detail at our performance over the past year and how It measures up to the promises we
made to our customers We have sought to be open and transparent about when we've done well but also where
we have fallen short, and we have set out how we intend to meet our customers' expectations across all areas of
our business In the future Performance highiights from the past year include

Health and safety

We continue to lead the industry with our excellent health and safety performance, achieving the lowest number of
injunies In our history We recorded an uninterrupted run of no reportable injuries to any member of staff for 427
days An injury becomes reportable when a person 1s away from work, or unable to perform their normal work
duties, for more than seven consecutive days as the result of their injury

Leakage

We beat our regulatory target for the fifth consecutive year by reducing leakage 1o 84 million ltres per day, aganst
a target of 88 This puts us at the top of the sector league tables and means that Southern Water has had the
lowest levels of leakage in the industry for mare than 10 years

Drinking water quality

Our drinking water quality 1s, once again, cutstanding We prowvisionally achieved 99 98 per cent against the
Dninking Water Inspectorate's qualty measures, subject to confirmation As a result, of the 10 largest water
companies in the UK, we expect to be confirmed as sector leaders for the 2015 calendar year

Wastewater treatment

We achieved 99 3 per cent compliance with current environmental standards at our wastewater treatment
works We had failures at two works and while we strive for 100 per cent compliance, this performance represents
the best in our history It also places Southern Water alongside the industry leaders

Bathing waters

We recorded our best ever performance for the quality of our coastal bathing waters All but one of our 83
designated bathing sites met more stringent requirements under the new European Bathing Water Directive, the
jowest failure rate of any region in the UK

Bathing water quality I1s affected by many factors in and outside Southern Waler's control, which 1s why we
continue to work with partners, such as local authonties and environmental groups, to keep our beaches as clean
as they can be This approach paid dividends in Hastings where we worked with the council to identify 1ssues with
the public and pnvate sewer network to achieve a ‘good’ classification under the new more stringent bathing water
standards

12
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Pollution incidents

We had 167 pollution incidents in 2015 - a reduction of 43 per cent compared with 2014 and our best performance
In 15 years In fact, we have seen a major improvement in our pollution performance over the past five years, with
the number of less senous category 3 incidents falling from 466 i 2011 to just 160 1n 2015 In addition, the number
of senous pollutions fell from 21 tn 2011 to seven in 2015

Improving customer service

We've continued to improve the quality and responsiveness of our customer senvice but there 1s certainly more to
do Our score against Ofwat’s measure of customer satisfaction, the Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM),
disappointingly places us at the bottom of the industry league table for elements of our customer service, for
example, call handling times and how we deal with customer complaints

This I1s something we are determined to address Indeed, duning 2015—16 we have already laid the foundations for
future improvements which will help us fulfil our customers’ expectations

Our customer service teams have worked hard over the past year to implement significant changes Since 1
December 2015 more than 80 per cent of calls have been answered within 30 seconds, addressing one of our
customers' main frustrations a desire to have their calls answered quickly and have any problems resolved first
time We've also brought in new systems, such as Rant & Rave, which enable customers to give us instant
feedback so we can act immediately if we've got something wrong

Most importantly, the number of complaints to our company s now starting to fall In the last quarter of the year we
received nearly 11 per cent fewer complaints than in the same penod the year before

Our am s to better predict whal customers need so thal potential i1ssues can be resolved before they become a
problem One way we're doing this i1s through our new proactive customer contact team When a problem is
identified — such as an unusual Increase In a customer's water use — the proactive team contacts them to find out
the source of the increase and offer support The team can then establish if the increase 1s due, for example, to
more people at the property or a previously undetected leak in the pipe netwark

We're confident that measures such as this will help us provide the high-quality service our customers expect and
deserve, more of the time

Planning ahead

We're privileged to provide essential water and wastewater services to the communities we serve so we must think
about, and plan for, the longer term Therefore, at the same time as focusing on the delivery improvements today,
we are also planning and investing to address the challenges of tomorrow

Climate change, tighter environmental standards and rapid population growth in our area are all combining to ptace
greater pressure on the water and wastewater services we provide Outhined below are some of the innovative
ways in which we're seeking to mitigate these pressures and mantamn, or improve, service levels far customers well
into the future

Resilience

Improving the resilience of the water and wastewater services we provide while at the same time responding to
growth and protecting the environment 1s a challenge being faced by the whole industry In the South East, an area
of water stress and high environmental sensitivity, the challenge 1s even more acute

We have therefore developed an innovative, industry-leading approach to plan for sustainable supplies of drinking
waler We examined thousands of future drought scenanos to help us create realistic plans and our expertise in
this area has been cntical to the development of a National Water Resources Framework, which will inform national
planning for future water resource needs across the country

We have also established a group that 1s looking to develop a single water resource management plan for our
region This will enable us to take a holistic look at growth in the region and 1dentify solutions that increase the
resilience of our service while protecting the environment

13




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16 |

In addition, we are developing two specific water re-use schemes, which will provide a vital resource to support the
nvers we abstract from dunng droughts We believe there i1s potential for water re-use schemes to play a far greater
role in securing water supplies for future generations

Higher standards

Qur Bathing Water Enhancement Programme Is the first in the country that seeks to go beyond minimum

performance levels and deliver even higher standards of bathing water quality We're doing this because our

custamers told us that the standard of bathing water, and associated beach quality, 1s crucial to the lifestyle and

livelihood of the South East |

Working with local authorities, the Manne Conservation Society and a host of other local stakehalders, we're
currently examining how we can move another seven bathing waters in our region to the 'Excellent’ standard
needed for Blue Flags to be awarded

Affordability and vulnerabiiity

We’'re leading the water sector in supporting customers who are most In need We've joined forces with
organisations such as local authorities, including Bnghton & Hove City Council, and consumer debt advice
agencies, to provide proactive guidance for customers in financial difficulty

We now offer a range of taniffs with tallored payment options for those who qualify for extra help And we ensure
that free water-saving advice — which can contribute to lower bills — 1s widely available via our website, publications
and through external partners such as housing associations

As the first water company to complete the delivery of a universal metering programme, we have ensured that the
vast majority of our customers, around 90 per cent, now only pay for the water they use Alongside our metering
programme we're providing free water-saving audits, in order to help our customers save water, energy and
money

Building strong partnerships

A key theme of our 2015-20 business plan is the need to establish better refationships with stakeholders n our
region to deliver our targets and promises !

With this in mind, we introduced our stakeholder engagement team in April 2015 to build on our retationships with
local opinton formers Since its launch, the team has briefed MPs and organisations such as charities, chambers of
commerce and local authonties on the key aspects of our plan We hope thus will strengthen relationships between
Southern Water and different agencies to shape regional and national policy

A great example 1s our recent partnership with Natural England to employ water ‘catchment rangers’ to work with
farmers on solutions to the use of nitrates and pesticides which can affect water quality and the health of our nvers

Finances

Alongside the delivery of the 26 promises we made In our bustness plan for 2015-20, we will also reduce average
bills over the five-year penod by eight per cent before inflation

Consequently, our financial resuits for 2015-16 reflect a reduction in revenues of aimost three per cent, to £804
mithon, down from the £826 million reported 1n 2014-15

The reduction in revenues also contributed to a lower operating profit of £284 miliion — a 14 2 per cent reduction
from the previous year

To assist in delivenng improved performance for our customers, we have also seen an increase In operating costs
this year In total, operating costs increased to £286 milion from £273 mullion In the prior year This increase has
been driven by initiatives to improve our customer service, such as the creation of a proactive, outbound customer
contact team

14
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Costs were also added this year by a programme of work amed at introducing more efficient ways of working
across the business and by the cost of preparations for the introduction of market reform and retaill competition for
non-household customers

Over the past five years, our shareholders have supported us in strengthening the business by not taking a
dvidend This has enabled us to make considerable improvements to our operational performance over 2010-15
In addition, this support meant we could reduce our gearing, the ratic of debt to equity used to finance the
business, In turn reducing our financial nsk, strengthening our overall financial position and iImproving our credit
ratings

As a result of these iImprovements, we are now In a much stronger position financially and operationally As a
consequence, in 2015-18, we resumed dividend payments with shareholders receiving £79 6 million

Community pride

At Southern Water, we are proud to serve our focal communities So, at the same time as providing essential water
and wastewater services to the south east of England, it's important that we give something back

This year, our community engagement team talked to more than 20,000 customers at 22 events where they offered
practical advice and help on key i1ssues such as water efficiency, affordabiity and the correct disposal of fat, oil and
grease

We've also raised more than £182,000 for a number of local chanties, including the Air Ambulance Trusts, and
provided support for children’s hospitals and centres for adults with a range of disabilites We also continue to
support the international chanty, WaterAid — our supporters across the business raised a grand total of £75,000 for
the charity in the past year

Qur employees put In more than 24,000 volunteering hours in 2015-16 Ther efforts included community
gardening, decorating at a local children’s hospice and even building nest boxes for endangered dormice

Our Learn to Swim programme continues to go from strength to strength and this year alone we heiped more than
30,000 children learn to swim The scheme celebrates 25 years in 2017 and, to date, we have helped more than
700,000 children develop this Iife-saving skill

Thanks to our employees

Finally, 1 would like to pay tribute to our employees in what has been a landmark year in terms of performance It s
only as a resull of their hard work, dedication and commutment that | can report the progress we have made in the
past 12 months | think we can look back at the first year of delivering our plan with a mixture of pnde at what we
have achieved and optimism that we've laid foundations for a strong future

With four more years of our five-year plan to go, the need to tackle some long-term challenges facing the industry
and the opening of the market to competition, this 1s an exciting, If challenging, time for our organisation

Despite the challenges we face, | know that we don't just want to be good at what we do, we want to be the

industry leaders With the drive, commitment and engagement of our employees, stakeholders and customers, we
can be optimistic about the opporiunittes for success that lie ahead

Matthew Wright
Chief Executive Officer
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Strategic report — an introduction

This report marks the successful completion of the first year of our ambitious five-year business plan for 2015-20 —
a plan that s built around our customers’ priorities

We conducted the most extensive programme of customer and stakeholder engagement in our history, consulting
more than 34,000 people over a penod of 18 months to find out what was important to them Based on the insights
and feedback gathered from this research, we defined six key customer priorfies (see graphic below), and 26
specific promises, with measurable outcomes and clear performance targets which we are confident will deliver
industry-leading water and wastewater services for our customers

Responsive Affordable ' R AL
customer bills 0 “rfarmutTor
service g6 ~ovico

A constant supply Removing Looking
of high-quality wastewater after the
drinking water effectively environment

Over the course of our five-year plan, we will spend around £3 billton improving the services we provide in the
areas of highest customer priority Of this £1 8 billion relates to investment in new and improved assets, which is
equivalent to almost £1,000 for every property 1n our region Over the same penod of time, the average household
bil for our customers will fali by eight per cent before inflation

The majornity of this document 1s focused on reporting openly and transparently on the promises we made to our
customers and how we measured up against the targets we set for curselves based on their pronties

The remamnder will cutline how we plan to develop our business to get us ready for the challenges that we — and
our colleagues 1n the water sector - face over the longer term

A great start

Woe can lock back with some pride at the past year's performance We delivered our best ever performance against
many of our key measures Highlights from the year inciude

« QOur leakage teams beat our target for the fifth consecutive year, reducing leakage to 84 million hitres per
day, against a target of 88 million litres This performance means we remain as industry leaders

+  We provisionally achieved 99 98 per cent compliance against the Dnnking Water Inspectorate’s guality
measures — this equates to only two faillures in every 10,000 samples — making us sector leaders for the
2015 calendar year, subject to confirmation

= We achieved our best performance 1n 15 years in terms of pollutions, with a 43 per cent drop in the number
of incidents

+  We achieved the best performance In our history for meeting stnngent environmental standards at our
wastewater treatment works with 992 3 per cent meeting their permit

At the same time, we continue to look after our people Southern Water's credentials as a safe place to work are
again outstanding and we continue to lead the industry in health and safety Last year we achieved the lowest
number of injuries in our history

Rewards and penalties

To underpin the performance promises that we made te our customers we have agreed with Ofwat that a number
of our targets, for the penod 2015-20, should have financial penalties associated with them In a smaller number of
cases there Is also the opportunity for us to earn rewards If we beat our targets
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These financial penalties and rewards are attached to those measures our customers told us were most important
to them and will be reflected In customer bills in future mnvestment periods

All but one of the 83 bathing waters in our region met the new, tighter minimum standards introduced this year
Despite this excellent result, due o some extreme weather experienced in August, we did not meet our target to
maintain water quakity at 54 of the region’'s beaches at the very highest “excellent” status — which 1s consistent with
the standard required for a Blue Flag

Our performance of 43 beaches at excellent status means we will face a financial penalty of £1 458 million

A number of our promises have rewards and penalties attached that are based on performance over the whole
five-year period of our business plan This means we only earn a reward, or incur a penalty, If performance across
the whole period 1s better or worse than our target, rather than for individual years

Based on performance in the first year, we would incur a penalty in respect of internal sewer flooding, where we
are abave our target, but we will be working hard to beat our target in future years to offset this

We are on track for a reward for helping customers to reduce the amount of water they use, where we have beaten
our consumption target in the first year of our plan We are also on track for a reward for beating our leakage target
in the first year

Overall, based on our first year performance we would expect to face a net penalty, with the penalties for not
meeting our beaches and flooding targets exceeding the potential rewards in respect of consumption and leakage
However this will depend on how we perform for the remaining four years of our business plan period

Future challenges

Providing essential services to 4 6 million people across Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, 1s just one
part of what we do as a water and wastewater company

A huge amount of our ime 1s spent planning for and investing in the future, factonng in 1ssues such as climate
change, population growth and tighter environmental standards

Throughout this repart we will outine some of the Innovative approaches we are adopting to meet these future
challenges and maintain and improve on the levels of service we provide to the communities we serve A few
highhghts are histed below

»  We've introduced a new preactive service model which aims to remove the need for customers to contact
us by anticipating potential 1ssues and proactively contacting them This new service model, along with
improvements to our billing information, wiii help us meet our target to move up our regulators' league table
of service performance and continue to build on improvements already made

+ The South East I1s an area of water stress so we have to make sure we plan to deliver a sustainable supply
of dnnking water for future generations To do this, we have modelled thousands of drought scenarios and
worked with partners to develop a single Water Resources Management Plan We are also looking at two
specific water re-use schemes, which will ultimately lower the amount of water we take from nivers dunng
droughts

»  Our customers told us that clean, safe bathing waters were a priority, so we have invested Iin a new
Bathing Water Enhancement Programme which sees us working with erganisations such as the Manne
Conservation Society and a host of other stakeholders to raise the standards of bathing water across more
of the beaches in our region to ‘excellent’

+  Working with debt agencies and local councils, such as Brighton & Hove City Council, we have developed
a range of flextble payment options and tanffs for our customers in financial difficulty As part of this
programme our water-saving team has started a series of home visits and free retrofits of devices to further
help those customers struggling with high bills

These are just a few examples of the proactive approach we're taking to address the 1ssues our customers have
said were most important to them
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The regutatory landscape 1s also changing, with the introduction of retaii competition for water and sewerage
services to non-household customers in England from Apnl 2017 The changes will allow these customers to
choose which company provides their water and sewerage retail services

The purpose of market reform in the water sector 1s to stimulate innovation and deliver a choice to non-household
customers of who provides their retall service

Water companies will be required to separate the wholesale and non-household retail parts of their businesses to
create a level playing field for new entrants to the market These new companies can provide retall services, but
the existing water companies will maintain responsibility for the water and sewerage networks in the region, | e the
wholesale activiies

More than 100,000 of our non-household customers will be affected Our market reform readiness programme Is
well under way to deliver the business changes needed to meet the challenge of a new market and continue to
dehver our customer promises

After looking carefully at the options avallable to us — that will ensure both compliance and a business model that
wiil thrive in the new market — we have decided to sell our non-household retail business to Business Stream, a
specialist retailer who has been at the forefront of the competitive market in Scotland
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Customers

Responsive customer service

2015-16 2014-15
Customer satisfaction 79 73 72
Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) score’
Contacts resolved first time (%) 80 67 N/A
Customers who feel our service meets thewr
individual needs (%) N/A 66 N/A
Customers who feel our service meets the
needs of theirr community (%)2 N/A 33 N/A
Number of compensation payments made to 3783 3.912 3711

custorers {Guaranteed Standards Scheme)

1 Call categonsation of unwanted and wanted calls 1s associated with a degree of subjectivity Our year end audit identified that addiional
assurance processes and controls need to be implemented to further mitigate the nsk of call mis-categorisation As a resuit, we will put in place
an action plan to minimise any 1ssues going forward Call categonsation is a component of SIM In addition, the calculation method changed for
SIM dunng 2014-15 The pnor year score has been restated to reflect this new methodology

2 Durning the year we have refined our cusiomer survey questrons which have been used to measure performance against these promises As
such there 1s no companson to target in 2015-16 Future perfformance will be measured against the 2015-16 pasition on a consistent basis

We're continuing to improve the quality and responsiveness of our customer service but there is more to
do

We promised our customers we would do the following

* Improve our customer satisfaction scores and ranking in our regulators’ league table (SiM score)

* Resolve their quenies quickly, with 90 per cent resolved first ime by 2020

e Demonstrate an improvement in our services by increasing the number who felt we met ther needs and those
of their community

* Pay direct compensation to those customers we let down

We have continued to make progress with improving the respensiveness and qualty of the service we provide to
our customers, but we have not done this as quickly as we would have liked during the year or met some of the
ambitious targets we set ourselves

Qur performance in the second half of the year, and in parbicular in the last quarter, showed signs of significant and
sustained improvement Customer complaints were 11 per cent lower at the start of the year than the equivalent
period last year and customer satisfaction improved significantly, with scores of 4 13 {out of a maximum of 5) in the
final survey, compared with 3 80 at the beginning of the year

This improvement reflects the implementation of a new proactive customer service model Following detaisled
analysis of the root causes of dissatisfaction and research with our customers, we have moved to a model that
aims to identify 1ssues and contact customers before they would normally become aware there was a problem For
example, now the vast majonty of our customers are metered, almost 90 per cent, we can identify any changes n
consumption patterns and make contact with the customer before they receive a higher bill This allows us to
understand why a customer's consumption may have changed so we can take appropnate action, for example,
because of a leak, 1ssues with the meter reading or changes in family circumstances we might adjust a customer's
bill accordingly

In order to dehver this step change in customer expenence, during 2015-16 we outsourced all In-bound calls
relating to biling to the specialist provider Capita based in the UK This enabled us to restructure our key customer
teams and take stock of our intemal systems and processes It has also enabled us to quickly deliver significant
improvements in call waiting times
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Based on the changes we have made and the performance improvements we have seen so far, we are confident
that we can meet our targets and move up our regulators' league table

Customer satisfaction

Our customers have satd clearly that they want us to improve the quality of customer expenence we offer them To
meet their needs, we set ourselves some ambitious targets in our Business Plan 2015-20

Dunng 2015-16, we invested significant time and resources to develop a deeper understanding of what our
customers expect from us and what we need to do to address areas of our service with which they are dissatisfied

Ofwat uses the Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) to assess how well all water companies serve their customers
SIM 1s made up of two elements a quantitative and a qualitative assessment of customer service The quanttative
assessment looks at levels of unwanted contact (from a customer's point of view) including wntten complaints The
gualitative assessment looks at customers’ overall satisfaction with the service they have received, when they have
had cause to contact us The overall SIM score 1s weighted one third on the quantitative assessment and two thirds
on the qualtative

Based on performance over the five years from 2015~-20, companies that achieve a better than average SIM score
can earn financial rewards, while those that are below average receive a financial penalty These rewards and
penalties will be reflected in customers’ bills from 2020

Our customer service performance continued the trend of improvement established under our previous business
plan, but we did not hit all of our targets for this year In 2015-16 we marginally improved our SIM score to 73, up
from 72 1n 2014—-15 Despite the improvements we have delivered we remain at the bottom of the industry league
table for SIM, missing our target score of 79 for this year

Unless we improve our performance in ihe remaining years of the business plan period, our performance this year
means we would receive a financial penalty

In the second half of the year we began to see the results of cur work o transform our approach from cne that
reacts to customers to one that anticipates potential problems before customers become aware of them Customer
satisfaction, as measured by Ofwat’s SIM survey, has increased by nine per cent between the first and iast
quarters of the year — from 3 80 to 4 13 out of 5 There has also been a decrease In the number of cails we receive
In total, during the last year we received 1 5 milhon phone calls, a 25 per cent drop i customer calls from our
201415 figure of 2 0 million

Resolving 1ssues and meeting our customers’ needs

Our aim is to remove the need for customers to contact us by anticipating potential 1ssues and proactively
contacting them

On those occasions where it 1s necessary for customers to contact us, it i1s important that we deal with their quenes
quickly and effectively We are continuing to see improvements in the speed with which we answer customer cails
By early 2016, we were beating our monthly target to answer 80 per cent of calls within 30 seconds

We also promised that we would deal with more issues at the first point of contact By 2020 we have committed to
resolving 90 per cent of Issues at first contact We have set ourselves challenging improvement targets for each
year up to 2020 in order to achieve this, with a target for 2015-16 of 80 per cent of calls resolved first time
Disappointingly, despite the improvements we have seen In this area, we missed our target for the year, with a
performance of 67 per cent

Despite the challenges we have faced in rapidly improving our customer service performance, 66 per cent of our
customers agree the services we provide meet their needs while 33 per cent agree that we met the needs of therr
community During the year we have worked with our Customer Advisory Panet to refine the way we measure our
performance against this promise to better capture our customers’ views We will aim to improve on this
performance each year
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We want to ensure we provide a range of channels for our customers to interact with us and to pay their bills, by
providing clear, easily accessible information To enable us to do this we regularly attend community events, work
with focal schootls, social groups and chanties and work directly to help those customers with specific needs

Recognising when we get it wrong

If we fail to provide an appropnate service we compensale customers under our Guaranteed Standards Scheme
(GSS) The GSS sets out a minimum standard of service customers should receive from us in a range of areas
including responding to complaints and quenes, interruptions to supply and flooding from sewers

The GSS also includes enhancements to the statutory payments which we agreed with Ofwat as part of the review
of our business plan These enhanced payments to customers Include compensation for poor service in specific
areas, such as mussed appointments, County Court judgments (for unpaid debt) 1ssued in error and sewer flooding
inside homes or businesses The areas covered by the additional compensation reflect research, carned out for our
business plan to find out what customers found most frustrating in terms of service failure

We made 3,912 GSS payments dunng 2015-16 totalling £454,000, an increase of 201 payments from last year,
meaning we missed our target of no more than 3,783 The increase In payments was almost entirely due to a nse
in the number of complaints not responded to within 10 days This reflected the increased level of complaints we
were recelving at the start of the year Following the reduction in the number of complaints being received by the
last quarter, we are now responding to most complaints within five days There were improvements in water qualty
dunng the year, resulting in fewer calls about discolouration, taste and odour in 201516, at 58 compared with 77
calls the year before

Customer improvements

Further improvements are planned to ensure that we provide a service which fully meets our customers’
expectations and helps us achieve our target to be one of the best performers in Ofwat’'s SIM league table

In the first half of the year we will focus on improving the way we deal with comptaints, as well as how we calculate
payment schemes and pay any refunds We wili maintain our focus on a proactive approach to contact wath
customers, intervening to address 1ssues before they become aware of a problem

Over the next 18 months we will be building, testing and rolling out a completely new biling expenence for our
customers This ambitious programme aims to reduce complaints by a further 40 per cent over the next year and
help customers manage their accounts more easily The programme will

* Improve the way thal we weicome new customers to Southern Water, ensuring they understand the payment
options available to them,

*  Provide customers with the choice of receiving simplified electronic or paper bills,

* Introduce more services including the ability to set up a new account and manage more transactions, via our
website,

*  Provide monthly consumption monitenng and alerts for our most vulnerable customers, to avod the nsk of any
bill surpnises, and

*  Allow customers to momtor the progress of theirr quenes and complaints online

Imitially we will pilot these new services with those customers that contact us most often, to ensure that they meet
their expectations and deliver the benefits we expected These pilots will cover more than 180,000 of our
customers We will then roll out the new services to all customers as they are proven

As we develop these services we will continue to engage with our customers to understand how their expectations
are changing over fime and ensure that we develop our processes in response We know our customers don't want
to call us, but sometimes things go wrong and they have to When they do, we want to make sure we offer them
the best possible service This means our teams need to be armed with up-to-date information about customer
accounts, such as meter readings and billing history, so they can offer customers feedback, in real ime wvia a range
of responsive, proactive communications channels
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Affordable bills

Customers in genuine hardship
provided with improved support 127,500 142,040 113,210

Customers who feel we provide
value for money (%)’ N/A 61 N/A

Efficiency savings (Em) N/A 56 N/A

1 Dunng the year we have refined our customer survey questions which have been used to measure performance against these promises As
such there 1s no comparison to target in 2015-16 Future performance will be measured against the 2045~16 position on a consistent basts

We are committed to providing value for money and helping customers in financial hardship who struggle
to pay their water bills

We promised our customers we would do the following

*  Provide more support for those experiencing genuine financial hardship
*  Provide better information on how we are improving vatue for money
+ Deliver efficiency savings of at least £200 million between 2015 and 2020 to keep bills as low as possible

In the past year we have increased the level of practical support and advice we offer to customers in financial
difficulty Our new social tanff, Essentals, has launched and we've also started working with StepChange, one of
the UK's leading debt chanties By working in partnership with trusted third-sector erganisations we can be more
effective at identifying vulnerable customers and providing them with a more holistic approach to managing their
financial challenges

There was a significant focus in the year on proactive debt preventicn and early collection of money owing from our

customers prior to debt collection agency involvement, usually after a period of 57 days A review of our debt-
recovery procedures has also started This will help us to further reduce debt levels, and achieve our ultimate aim
to be a leader in affordability, helping vulnerabte customers

We are proud to have been recogmsed in two recent reports by Ofwat for the standard of the support we offer to
vulnerable customers in our area

Customers in genuine hardship

in 2015-16, we helped more customers in genuine hardship by providing better information, supplying targeted
advice and introducing new tanffs and payment schemes that support customers to tackle thetr affordabilty
challenges head on

Our target for 2015-16 was to increase the number of our most vulnerable customers who have received help to
pay their bills and manage their debt to 129,500 We significantly exceeded this figure, providing 142,040
customers with financial assistance and debt advice

We have continued our water efficiency and affordability programme, which offers free water-saving audits,
targeting vulnerable customers and homes with unusually high water consumption Duning these audits, we fit
water-saving devices to taps, toilets and showers We then monitor the customer's bills to see If better water
efficiency I1s reducing thetr consumption and, therefore, their bill If consumption doesn't fall, it helps us highhght
other factors that may need to be addressed, such as a leak on a supply pipe or within the customer’s plumbing

2 Affordability and debt {December 2015) and Vulnerability focus report (February 2016)
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We have joined the Censumer Counct for Water (CCW) and Bnghton & Hove City Council to support customers
already classified as ‘fuel poor' These customers are offered advice and practical help to lower their water costs,
alongside a service that helps them fili in applications for our financial assistance schemes

In the last year we have undertaken over 12,000 debt adwice visits using a specialist partner, Orbit, putting
affordability rather than debt at the heart of conversations with customers We are also working with the chanty
StepChange to identify and support our most vulnerable customers, such as those who are unable to meet therr
payments or who have difficulty applying for one of our tanffs or schemes The chanty also regularly recommends
our schemes to any customer they come into contact with who 1s in financial difficulty

Raising awareness of the services and support we offer Is cntical so we work hard to publicise our services through
a wide range of channels including information leaflets within customer bills, on our website, raising awareness
through social media campaigns, adverts in local papers and local authorty tenant magazines

Tariffs and schemes

Overdue bills and bad debt are a significant issue for the water industry, they have an impact on every customer’s
bill Ofwat estimates that customer debt adds around £21 to the average customer bill

it 1s essential we do all we can 1o help those in genuine financial hardship and reduce the burden of non-payment
on other customers while managing our costs We do this through a range of different payment schemes and
tanffs, including

*  WaterSure for those who have a water meter and use a large amount of water,

»  Water Direct where bilis may be paid from a customer's existing benefit schemes directly to Southern Water,
and

« NewStart for those in a position to make contnibutions towards paying current costs In regular instalments, with
Southern Water taking off the same amount from their arrears

We have significantly increased the number of customers on these supportive payment schemes from 32,000 in
March 2015 to 50,000 in March 2016

We established a new outbound contact centre which will focus on debt prevention and early cash collection, for
example, discussing high value bills and payment scheme increases with customers, before their bills arrve

By changing the way we analyse our data we hope to increase early debt collection rates, working with customers
to get a better picture of current and former occupancy and enabling them to consolidate their debt via one of our
affordable customer repayment schemes rather than passing them on to debt collection agencies

The debt advice visits we are offering with Orbit have already allowed us to successfully re-engage with a
significant number of customers {40 per cent) who had not previously responded to tradiional approaches

Social tariff

Some customers are not able to pay their water bills without help Either therr financial situation 1s severely
challenging for reasons beyond their control, or their consumption needs are tigh because of special requirements

Following a successful pilot n 201415, in partnership with the Citizens Advice Bureau, in 201516 we saw the full
roll-out of our new social tanff — called Essentials The tanff 1s targeted at customers who have genuine financial
difficulty paying theiwr water bills

Customers spending at least five per cent of their disposable household income on water service charges quallfied
for the Essentials tanff and were ehgible for a reduction in their bills ranging from 20 per cent to 90 per cent When
coupled with our NewStart scheme, this gives our most financially vulnerable customers a way to address their
debt while ensurng they make a contnbution towards the cost of water services

In 2015-16 we accepted 9,453 customers on to the Essentials tanff and we were able to identify more customers
that we could have helped but who fell beneath our tnitial affordabihty threshold Therefore, for 2016-17, we have
broadened our eligibility critena to help more people In future, those whose water bills take up three per cent or
more of their disposable income will be eligible for the social tanff as well as vulnerable customers in recempt of
pension credit Qur target is to have 65,500 customers on our Essentials tanff by 2020
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Vailue for money

It 1s important that, as well as being affordable, customers feel they receive value for money from theirr water
services For an average household in 2015-16, water and sewerage services cost less than £1 15 per day That's
less than the price of a broadsheet newspaper, less than half the cost of gas and electncity services, and less than
the average cost of a cup of coffee

Over the penod of our business plan, average charges will fall eight per cent before inflation

At the end of 2015-16, 61 per cent of our customers felt that the service they received represented good value for
money Through our work to explain what we do with the money our customers pay us, and what they receive In
turn, we are committed to increasing the proportion of customers who feel we deliver value for money

We will survey our customers each year in order to track our progress and publish the results online and include
them in our annual report

Working more efficiently

As well as helping customers directly, it 1s important that we ensure our bills remain affordable by constantly
looking at ways to improve how efficiently we deliver our services In 2015-16 (year one of our five-year business
plan) we delivered £56 million of cost reductions To help deliver these savings we have

= Established an integrated change delivery programme, comprising six strategic projects and more than 36
individual iniiatives to improve services and save money These programmes inctude the introduction of a new
work and asset management system which enables us to work more efficiently,

+ Refreshed our ‘react and maintain’ operational partnerships, working with Clancy Docwra, Cappagh Erowne
and BTU (Barhale Trant Utiities) to deliver savings 1n our daily operational costs such as day-to-day repairs
and maintenance of our network of water mains and sewers,

+ Fundamentally changed the way we deliver major capital investment to improve the operation of our networks
and treatment facilities, warking in partnership with some of the leading organisations in our sector MWH
Global was appointed as our Strategic Solutiens Partner, supporting our in-house engineering team to ensure
we achieve best value In the planning and design stages of our major construction projects COMP (MWH and
Costain) and GTM (Galliford Try and Imtech) maintain and improve our water and wastewater treatment works
and MGJV (Mornson Utility Services and Galliford Try joint venture) expand and mamntain our water mains and
sewer networks,

* Increased our investment in research and development New partnerships with universities and other
technology-led organisations will help us to identify and implement the next generation of efficiency savings
and help us plan to ensure that we can meet the challenges of the future, and continue providing reliabie
services for our customers Over the five-year plan period we will nvest £15 million in research and
development

Over the course of delivenng our five-year ptan, we aim to make overall efficiency savings totalling £200 million
These savings mean bills will be lower than they would otherwise have been and have contnbuted to a reduction in
average customer bills in 2015-16 of nearly four per cent Where we beat these efficiency targets, we will share the
benefits 50 50 with customers In the form of lower customer bills from 2020 onwards
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Better information and advice

2015-16 201415

Achieved Achieved

Water usage, per capita consumption

{htres per head per day) 13502 12972 134 84
Number of unwanted billing queries’ 44,100 62,726 29,326
Customers who are aware of the N/A 77 N/A

causes of blocked drans (%)°

Customers who are aware of how therr
money 1s used (%)’ N/A 60 NIA

Customers who are aware of how to
deal with hard water (%)2

1 Call categonsation of unwanted and wanted calls 1s associated with a degree of subjectivity Our year end audit identified that additional
assurance processes and controls need to be implamented to further mitigate the nsk of call mis-categonsation As a result, we will put in place
an action plan to minimise any 1ssues going forward

2 During the year we have refined our customer survey questions which have been used to measure performance against these promises As
such there 1s no comparison to target in 2015-16 Future performance will be measured against the 2015-16 posihon on a consistent basis

N/A 57 N/A

Our customers have told us they want better information and advice about what we do, how we are
performing and how we spend their money

We promised our customers we would do the following

* Provide better information to help reduce average water use per person, per day, from 148 litres to 133 Iitres by
2020

« Be clearer with our billing to reduce the number of quenies we receive by half from 49,000 to 24,500 by 2020

* Improve the advice we give on 1ssues such as how to prevent blocked drains and deal with hard water

*  Provide better information on how we spend customers’ money

Following the successful completion of our universal metering programme in 2015—16, this year also saw the
launch of our new water effictency programme Over the next five years we'll be carrying out thousands of visits to
provide both domestic and business customers with advice and free products to help them reduce their water use
and therr bills A particular focus will be on local schools, teaching our next generation of customers about the
importance of saving water

Working with local pariners as well as national organisations we will continue to raise the profile of water efficiency
and ensure we lead the debate on 1ssues such as water labelkng and changes to building standards

We have completed an end-to-end review of our billing process and a restructure of our customer service teams,
following extensive research The adoption of a new proactive customer strategy and deeper analysis of data will
enable us to dnve down the number of tmes customers need to contact us with a query about their bilt

By integrating our water-saving messages and advice about our fat, oil and grease campaign, we have helped
provide customers with a better understanding of the whole water cycle Supported by a programme of targeted
home visits, the distnbution of our new 'fat’ packs, as well as effective maintenance and cleaning of our network,
we have Increased awareness of what can safely be put down the drain and reduced blockages in our network

In response to customer feedback, we've also stepped up our use of social media and invested in a new
responsive, clutter-free website to prowide better real-ime information about what we do, why we do it and how
much it costs, as well as advice about managing the effects of hard water

25




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

Saving water

Small savings across our two million customers really add up and help us to reduce the amount of water we need
to take from the environment

Over the past year we've beaten the target we set ourselves to help our customers reduce average water use to
less than 135 htres per person, per day, with a final figure of 130 If we break this figure down, based on our
research with customers, an average person Is us:ng 33 per cent on personal washing, 30 per cent on toilet
flushing and 26 per cent on washing clothes and dishes (see diagram below) If we can sustatn these reductions for
the next five years then we can earn an incentive reward, of up to £6 9 million This will be reflected in customers’
bills from 2020 If we do not meet our target over the five years we could face a penalty of up to £11 milkon
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During the year we launched our new water efficiency plan, which builds on the pioneenng universal metenng programme
we rolled out between 2010 and 2015 This plan will help customers save water and, as a consequence, save energy and

money

Over the next five years we will visit thousands of homes, delivering simple advice about how to save water We will also
supply and fit free water-saving products including dual-flush devices to tollets, water-efficient showerheads and tap

regulators
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We have joined forces with AquaLogic, a specialist water efficiency company with a track record of working with water
companies across the UK, to deliver this innovative programme  Since we launched the programme in November 2015,
we have visited well over 1,000 customers, focusing on those households using more water than expected as well as
those struggling to afford their bills We'll also be working with smalt businesses to deliver similar water and energy audits

For the next generation, we've developed a new education programme aimed at teaching pnmary school children how to
save water at school and at home The campaign i1s led by our Water Hero characters, who have been a huge hit on
social media Qur Water Hero tweets were viewed by 362,000 people dunng the launch week of the campargn

As part of this programme we’ll also be fituing water-saving devices to save schools money In the past six months,
36 schools from our region have signed up to the programme, with the first 14 pnmary schools receiving a bespoke
education pack and water-saving visit In the next year we plan to expand this service further to another 60 local
schools

More broadly, we help our customers save water by providing clear and accessible iInformation and advice across a range
of channels — our website and social media, community road shows, information leaflet drops and home visits

Partnership working I1s at the heart of our water efficiency strategy By working with local authonties, for example,
we are hoping to get closer to our customers and deliver added benefits Planning policy 1s an area we have been
keen to highlight, to encourage more developers to build water efficient homes We've been working with Ofwat to
explore financial Incentives for those who champion water efficiency We have also continued to lead industry efforts
to encourage the adoption of water efficiency labelling of bathroom fitings

Simple bills

We know that simple, clear bills are important to our customers This 1ssue was highlighted in the customer
feedback we gathered when we were developing our business plan and a large proportion of the contacts we
recewve from customers relaie to the clanty of their hills

Before we take action it 1s important that we understand in detail the issues that cause customers to have to
contact us about therr bills ang this has been the focus of our activities through the year To do this we have been
analysing all of our contact data, including complaints, to understand the 1ssues that prompt contact and
dissatisfaction We have carned out further research with our customers to understand which parts of our billing
process they find mos! difficult and where they would ke to see improvements Our continued work with customer-
focused organisations such as Consumer Council for Water (CCWater) and the UK Customer Service institute has
helped inform this project at every stage

So, while we're disappointed that the level of biling queries has nisen during the year to 62,726, missing our target
of 44,100, we are confident that we have a clear understanding of the 1ssues on which to build our improvement
programme

Based on this detailed knowledge, in February 2016 we started to design a new customer billing process, which wili
be piloted and implemented over the next 18 months It will focus on simplifying our bilis and providing customers
with greater chotce about how they interact with us as well as more flexibility when it comes to paying their bill

We plan to build in new processes which will enable us to monitor changes in customer usage patterns so we can
proactively contact customers before they receive an unexpectedly high bill Providing customers with relevant and
timely information about their water usage will also help them to save money

As a first step in ensuring customers have clear information about their water service, over the past year we have
worked with CCWater to review the supporting information sent out as part of our annual biling process,
redesigning and rewritting our customer (information leaflets to make them easier to read and understand

We are confident that the new billing process will enable us to meet our target to reduce the number of billing
contacts to less than 25,000 a year by 2020
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Keep it Clear

Complementing our water-saving messages, we also have a fat, ol and grease (FOG) programme under way to
help tackle biockages across our network of drains and sewers The inihative has so far helped to boost the
number of customers who are aware of the causes of blocked drains to 77 per cent We are pleased with this level
of understanding and we are committed to tmproving on this figure next year

A dedicated customer engagement team has wisited hundreds of homes in sewer blockage ‘hotspots’ this year to
talk about how to prevent blockages from cooking waste and flushable items, such as wet wipes, nappies and
sanitary products They will visit In excess of 20,000 homes over the next four years as part of this programme

Joining forces with other regional water companies, we have promoted the Keep it Clear message, which offers
customers clear advice about protecting their homes from flooding by only flushing the three Ps — pee, poo and
paper — and collecting cooking waste to dispose of in the bin

We've distnbuted hundreds of new ‘fat’ packs containing

* A sink strainer, to catch leftover food waste for binning,
« A pot scraper, to clean waste and cold fat from pans for placing into the bin, and
+ A silicone funnel for customers to pour used cooking ol into a boettle for disposal

These packs, and the supporitng information provided by the engagement teams, have alsc been distnbuted
alongside our water-saving hterature at 22 road show events during 2015-16

Hard water

The majonty of water we supply is hard as it comes from underground chalk aguifers where the levels of calcium
carbonate are very high Levels of hardness vary from source to source across the region we serve

We do not soften water at any of our treatment works as the degree of hardness does not affect the quality of the
drinking water We do, however, advise customers that it can affect household appliances like kettles or showers

We made a promise to provide better information to increase customers’ awareness of how to manage the effects
of hard water, in the home or place of business We have developed improved information and advice, which is
now available on our website alongside a postcode checker that helps customers identify whether they live or work
in a particularly hard water area

We have surveyed customers to understand base levels of awareness about hard water and are committed to
increasing levels of awareness year-on-year Currently, 57 per cent of customers are aware of how to deal with
hard water Over the next year we will be improving the information we provide so that more customers know how
to manage the effects of hard water

Explaining what we do

We recognise that we are in the privileged position of providing essential services over which customers currently
have no choice of provider That means it 1s important for us to explain to customers where their money goes and
we have committed to increase awareness of this through our reporting Currently, 60 per cent of our customers
say they know what we do and how we spend their money We want to keep mncreasing this level each year

We are committed to open and transparent reporting of our performance against the promises that we made to our
customers and we don’t Just plan to do this in our annual report We have also carned out research with customers
to find out how they would like to receive information about cur performance

Based on the feedback we received, we now plan io implement a tallored communication campaign over the
summer to meet their needs One suggestion, which we’ll be explonng, 1s the addition of a bespoke reporting area
of our website where our customers and stakehclders will be able to find detailed, but clear infermation about our
activities and performance

With every bill that we send out we include a breakdown of how we spend customers’ money We have continued
to attend local events with our Water Café, giving us a chance to tell customers what we do and provide advice on
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saving water, avoiding blocked drains and managing the effects of hard water Duning the year we attended more
than 22 events, tallang to more than 20,000 pecple

Where we are carrying out any planned works, we have a dedicated customer team which works alongside our
construction partners, to ensure that we explain what 1s happening, when work will be taking place and why
Supporting our engineenng and construction teams to deliver our planned investment proagramme, this team 1s
involved at every stage of the project, from planntng through to delivery, to ensure we provide timely, relevant and
proactive communications to customers, stakeholders and media This mmimises unwanted contact and promotes
the benefits of the investment we are delivenng in the communities we serve

For more information

More than 1 5 million people visted our website over the past year, demonstrating that it has become a key point of
contact with our customers and stakeholders As a result, and in direct response to customer feedback, we have
invested 1n a new, clutter-free responsive website for southernwater co uk, which, in due course, we will be inviting
people to expenence through a live testing site This will aliow us to gather vital feedback about the new
functionality we're developing so that we can quickiy respond to any probiems our customers are having

A particular area of focus has been our new ‘What's Going On' service on our website A quick click takes
customers through to a timeline where they can track the progress of live incidents, hour by hour This new feature
Is also supported by a live Twitter feed that appears on the homepage

Our Live Chat service now hosts more than 6,000 conversations a month and enables customers’ queries to be
dealt with swiftly We’re now planning further improvements to ensure we are keeping up with customer
expectations and developing the nght kind of digital expenence

Social medra

We've expanded significantly our social media channels and re-launched our @SouthernWater Twitter feed in
August 2015

Over the past year we've achieved around a 200 per cent rise in Twitter views and around 4,000 1n users hinking
through io the website On Facebook, we started providing proactive shareable content in January and have seen
a huge nse in the number of people we now reach

Southern Water 1s now number three in Facebook’s 'pages to watch’ (which compares the performance of our page
with other water companies) When we launched we were at number six and have nsen to number three with
nearly 1,200 likes Only Yorkshire Water and Thames Water have a larger following in the water sector

This improved social media presence is making it easier for us to build and support our local online communities by
providing information and advice on key 1ssues such as how to save water, save money and prevent blockages
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Services

A constant supply of high-quality drinking water

2014-15

Achieved
Overail dnnking water quality index {%) 99 98 99 93 99 97
Number of contacts regarding
discolouration {per thousand 083 0.80 058
populaton)
Leakage (rmullion litres of water per day) 88 B4 82
Customer minutes lost supply > 3hrs 8 12 6
;Jrlégsbfr; of properties with low water 254 288 254
Number of customers affected by 0 0 0

temporary use bans

Asset health Stable Stable Stable

We've provisionally achieved 99.98 per cent comphance against the Drinking Water Inspectorate’s (DWI)
water quality measures, which puts us at the top of the industry league tables, subject to confirmation

We promised our customers we would do the following

« Maintain the excellent quality of their dnnking water and reduce discolouration incidents

*»  Not increase the average amount of time they are left without water

* Reduce the amount of water lost through leakage

» Keep down the number of households suffering from persistent low water pressure

*  Avoid any restnctions on water use, such as hosepipe bans, unless we have expenenced two dry winters

Delivening these promises demands continuous operational focus and vigitance, with a particular emphasis on the
protection of public health We are proud that our water service performance over the calendar year 2015 was once
again industry-leading

We expect the DWI to confirm in July that our performance against their overall drninking water quality index will put
us among the top companies in our sector for the past year

Our leakage performance also continues to be the best of any of the 10 major water and sewerage companies,
with leakage as a percentage of water put into supply being around ten per cent lower than the average While we
continue to ask our customers to use water wisely, it 1s vital that we strive to avold unnecessary wastage

As well as the hard work of our leakage detection teams, this reflects the benefits of our universal metening
programme, completed 1n 2016 Close to 90 per cent of our customers now have water meters, giving us a much
better understanding of where water 1s being used The new meters we mnstalied also have built-in leak alarms to
give us early warning of any 1ssues

Sadly, we missed our target for customer interruptions to supply This was affected by two particularly challenging
incidents, which affected large numbers of customers However, our underlying performance, excluding these two
incidents, was better than our target level

All of the water service performance targets have financial penalties associated with them if we do not meet our
targets, while there 1s the potential for us 1o earn rewards for beating our targets on leakage We did not incur any
financial penalties in the report year
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Drinking water quality

Providing a constant supply of high-quality dnnking water 1s cntical to ensure we protect the health of all our
customers and local communiites

Effective water treatment and its safe distnbution through our network of pipes to homes and businesses ensures '
customers can enjoy safe, wholesome water |

The UK has some of the highest standards of water quality in the world, and we are proud that our water gualty
performance places us among the leading compantes in our sector

To mamntain high standards of dnnlung water quality and safeguard publc health, we carry out over 500,000 water
quality tests each year at sampling points across all of our 83 water supply works, our 195 service reservoirs and at
a randomly setected sample of customers' properties We also respond to and investigate customer complaints
about water supply, for example in response to contact about an unusuatl taste or odour from drinking water

A system of automated controls at our water supply works ensures that, If the quality of treated water 1s reduced it
Is prevented from entering the public water supply while we respond and adjust our treatment processes We use
the flexibility at the reservoirs and within our network to keep water available for customers while we carry out any
necessary work

Wae are proud that the quality of our drinking water 1s outstanding This year we've provisionally achieved 99 98 per
cent compliance against the Dnnking Water Inspectorate’s (DWI) overall water quality measures We expect to
have the highest quality water of the 10 iargest water and sewerage companies in the UK (subject to DWI
verification)

When we carry out a repair on our 13,700 kilometre network of water mains, there 1s the potenhal for water to be
temporanty discoloured This 1s often the result of harmless factors like air in the water, disturbance of mains
deposits during scheduled work or residues from the customer's domestic pipes However, it 1s understandably
worrying for our customers

Just 4,000 of our 2 4 million drinking water customers notified us of discolouration in 2015 This s a rate of less
than one (0 8) customer contact per 1,000 customers served This excellent result, which beat the performance
target we setin our plan, 1s testament to the care and professionalism of our employees

Leakage

We continue to lead the UK water sector on leakage and we've beaten our target for the fifth consecutive year,
reducing leakage from our network and customers’ supply pipes to 84 milhion litres per day against our target of 88
million litres per day

Last year we lost the equivalent of 16 per cent of the water that was put into supply This was the lowest leakage |
level of any of the water and sewerage companies For companson, the average leakage leve! for the 10 water and |
sewerage companies in England and Wales was 23 per cent in 2014-15

This industry-leading performance 15 down to our hard-working teams who, 24 hours a day, find and repair leaks on
our 13,700 kilometre network of water mains Of the 21,000 leaks repaired over the year, 15,000 were found by our
leakage team Locating leaks on our extensive network of mains 1s done both through wvisual inspection and
through constant monitoring of flow levels Measunng any flows at night, when there I1s Iitle consumption, helps us
pinpoint any unusual patterns that may indicate a leak

Qur pioneernng universal metering programme has also helped us detect and fix leaks due to the meters' built-in
leak alarms that alert our engineers to unexpectedly high consumption This means that in many cases we can act
quickly and proactively to fix the pipes concerned before our customers even notice any impact on their service
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Burst mains and water pressure

Sudden changes in water pressure, ground movement caused by freezing temperatures and pipe defects can all
result in burst water mains Bursts on our larger diameter mains can have dramatic effects and impact on a large
number of customers

While we continually moniter the serviceability of our matns, some level of bursts on a network of almast 14,000
kilometres 1s inevitable When we do suffer a mains burst, our prionty s to ensure we Isolate the problem and
restore supplies to customers We can often do this by simple changes to the way we route flows through the
network However, where large mains are affected this can be more difficult

We always measure the number of minutes that customers are without water, but our performance target reflects
only those interruptions which exceeds three hours, where customers are most inconvenienced

During the year we missed our target for interruptions of no more than nine minutes on average per customer, with
a performance of 12 minutes This was affected by two major bursts on large trunk mains one near Sittingbourne,
Kent, which led to a loss of supply to the isle of Sheppey, in January 2016 and one in Hastings, East Sussex in
August 2015 These incidents affected 10,300 customers Without them we would have beaten our target with an
underlying performance of three minutes

Durng these major incidents, our teams worked around the clock, in difficult circumstances, to solve the problems
To restore supplies to customers on the Isle of Sheppey, for example, we needed to tunnel under the A249 dual
carnageway at a depth of 20 metres We made sure that customers had alternative supplies of water and we kept
customers, stakeholders and the media informed about what had happened and what we were doing about it

While interruptions on this scale are regrettable and we do all we can to manage such risks, we were pleased to
recelve positive feedback from customers about the way we managed the ncidents

Low water pressure can be caused by a range of issues, such as changes to the operation of the supply network,
new connections to the network or high demand It can affect the operation of household apphances such as
showers and heating systems We monitor our network to ensure that the number of customers expenencing such
problems does not increase and work with those customers affected to mitigate the effects

Disappointingly, despite these efforts, the number of properties reporting low pressure reached 297 outof 1 1
mithon that we supply This is higher than our predicted target of no more than 254 properties

Water restrictions

In the event of a drought we sometimes have to impose restrictions on non-essential water use, such as the use of
hosepipes, to preserve water supplies The last ime we had to impose restrictions on water use as a result of a
drought was in Apnil 2012 Thanks to a combination of reductions in customer demand, assisied by our metenng
programme, lower leakage and relatively berign weather conditions, we have not had to impose any restrictions
since then

We have committed to ensunng that we will avoid the need to impose restrictions unless we have expernenced two
dry winters During the winter, our groundwater sources refill, enabling us to extract water to meet higher customer
demand over the summer penod Without winter recharge, sources can become depieted and prevent us from
taking water from them If we do impose water use restnctions before we have had two dry winters we will pay a
financial penalty reflecting the number of customers affected

Maintaining our sites and infrastructure

As well as delivering the promises we made to our customers over the next five years, we have a responstbility to
ensure we can continue to deliver high-quality services to our customers over the long term To do this it 1s
essential that we continue to invest in our treatment works and pipe networks and operate them responsibly

To measure how well we are looking after the long-term health of cur assets, we have agreed a set of performance
indicators with the industry regutator, Ofwat These indicaters apply to alt water compames and enable a
comparative assessment of performance They include, for example, measures of the quahly of water leaving our
treatment works, and the number of bursts we experience on our water network If we fail to meet any of these
targets then we receive financial penalties associated with them
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This year we have achieved an assessment of ‘stable’ asset health — which means we have met or beaten ali of
the performance measures set This performance reflects the benefits of our continuing investment programme,
which will see us spending around £3 billkon durning 2015-20 to )improve the services we provide to our customers
Of this iInvestment, approximately £1 8 billion will be spent specifically on building, repairing, refurbishing and
upgrading our assets

As well as routine maintenance and our rolling mains replacement and refurbishment programme, we have also
completed a number of important upgrades to our facilites this year For example, dunng the year we invested
around £2 milllon to repatr siructural faults in the reservorr at Cooks Castle on the Isle of Wight, to maintain dnnking
water quality and secure a resilient supply for our customers

These important Investments will help us deliver a reliable service to our customers today, as well as ensunng that
we can continue to do so leng into the future
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Removing wastewater effectively

Number of blockages per km 057 0.56 0 55
Number of internal flooding incidents 446 492 487
Number of external flooding incidents 9,694 8,314 9,796
zzgxrlzi?; gc'>f0 t;t;s:}fmer complaints 390 262 364
Asset health Stable Stable Stable

Our multi-million pound investment in wastewater assets continues to deliver improvements for customers
We made the foliowing promises to our customers

* Noncrease in the number of blockages 1n our sewers

* A 25 per cent reduction in sewer flooding inside homes and businesses by 2020

* Noncrease In the number of incidents of sewer flooding affecting outside areas

+ A five per cent reduction in the number of complaints about smells from our treatment works and pumping
stations by 2020

To achieve this we're investing a total of £1 8 bilion between 2015-20 to maintain, enhance and extend our
wastewater and water sites and networks We've also iaunched a major campaign to help customers better
understand what can and cannot be flushed down the tollet and poured down sinks — with the aim of reducing
blockages tn our network, which can tead to flooding from sewers

Through responsible management of our works and investment at key sites, we have recorded one of the lowest
levels of complaints about smells Our investment and maintenance programme has ensured we have met, or
improved on, all our asset health measures

Blockages

Managing sewer blockages i1s one of the biggest challenges we face in removing wastewater effectively
Blockages, which can be caused by a buiid-up of fat, oils and grease (FOG), or wet wipes, sanitary products,
nappies and other ‘non-flushables’, can lead to flooding from our network, pollution to watercourses and customer
inconvenience So reducing the number of blockages can have multiple benefits for both customers and the
environment

In the past year we met our target of reducing blockages to ¢ 57 per kilometre of sewer, achieving 0 56

We have achieved this through regular routine maintenance of our network — for example jetting those sewers
which are at highest nsk of blockages — combined with an extensive education campaign to ensure that our
customers and businesses understand what they can safely flush down the toilet or put down their sinks

Working in partnership with our customers in this way Is vital to our success Around two-thirds of btockages are
caused by fat, oIl and grease being poured down sinks, and from non-flushable items It costs around £1 8 milhon
every year to have these obstructions removed All of these types of blockages are entirely preventable and our
FOG programme 1s focused on educating our customers about what not to pour down the drains More information
on this programme can be found 1n our Better Information and Advice section, see pages 25 to 29
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Flooding from sewers

Flooding from sewers 1s one our cusiomers’ biggest concemns In particular, internal flooding of properttes with
sewage 1s unacceptable Customers expect us to maintain a sewerage system that is ‘out of sight and out of mind’

We never underestimate how distressing it 1s to expenence a flood instde someone’s home or business and do
everything we can to support our customers should the worst happen Clean-up services are offered to customers
within 12 hours of an internal flooding incident if it has been caused by one of our sewers Qur advisers are
avallable by phone, email or online to guide those who have been affected on the next steps

The overall trend in the number of internal fiooding incidents 1s down and we are on track to achieve our promised
25 per cent reduction by 2020 But due to an extracrdinanly wet August which put exceptional pressure on our
network, we had 492 recorded incidents against our target of 446 for the year

We beat our target of reducing the number of external flooding incidents (those that occur outside properties) with
8,314 incidents in the year agamnst a target of 9,694 But there 1s still more to do and partnerships with customers
will help move this work forward

We own and operate 39,600 kilometres of sewers which includes approximately 17,500 kilometres of sewers that
were privately owned untl October 2011 We also operate 2,375 wastewater pumping stations and will be taking
responsibility for an estimated further 640 private pumping stations from Qctober 2016

As most of our sewers take rainwater run-off in addition to wastewater from homes and businesses, the
performance of the network I1s susceptible to extremes of rainfall and can result in vanations in performance year
on year

In companson to other parts of the UK, our region suffers from high groundwater levels during periods of prolonged
rainfall This 1Is manly due to the predominantly chalk geclogy of the North and South Downs which contain
aquifers that supply clean water to many of our customers In some cases, high groundwater levels can enter our
sewers When this happens, the sewers can flood

We were the first company in the UK to develop dedicated infiltration reduction plans for those areas worst affected
by groundwater flooding

We are developing new, holistic methods of protecting our sewerage network and our customers from groundwater
flooding by building stronger partnerships with agencies such as local authonties, fandowners and the Environment
Agency

Tackling odour
Tackling smells 1s always a prionty for us and our jong-term prevention work continues to pay off

In 2015-16, we received fewer complaints than ever about smells from our treatment works and pumping stations
The final figure of 262 complaints was down from 364 in the year before

This iImproved performance 1s part of a long-term trend in which complaints about smells have dropped by more
than half in the past 10 years We have made a commitment in our business plan to reduce the figure by a further
five per cent over the next four years

Over the full peniod of the Southern Water Business Plan 2015-20, we will be investing significantly in large
schemes to reduce smells

For example, a £20 million major mamntenance scheme at East Worthing Wastewater Treatment Works 1s part of an
ongoing programme to provide a long-term solution to problems including the maintenance of two nine-metre long
screens which continue to get clogged with debns The two screens filter out items such as wet wipes and sanitary
products that have been wrongly flushed down toilets If left to accumulate, these items are a major contributor to
the odour problem

We're also investing In our people by ensuring we have specifically trained employees on site to communicate
better with customers and other stakeholders We're continuing to focus on maintaining the high standards we
have set with an effective planned maintenance programme of odour control units, operational awareness of odour
controf through management plans and an effective reactive response should a problem anse
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Where there 1s a nsk of smells ansing from essential maintenance or activities associated with our investment
programme, we work hard to keep customers informed We understand that when people know what 1s going on it
makes any Inconvenience easier to bear We are using letter drops, meetings and maintaining regular contact with
key stakeholders in affected areas to keep customers informed

Maintaining our sites and infrastructure

As well as delivenng the promises we made to our customers over the five years of our plan, we have a
responsibihty to ensure we can continue to deliver high-qualty wastewater services to our customers over the long
term To do this it 1s essential that we continue to invest in our treatment works and pipe networks and operate
them responsibly

To measure how well we are looking after the long-term health of our wastewater assets, we have agreed a set of
performance indicators with the industry regulator, Ofwat These include, for example, the compliance of our
treatment works with therr environmental permits, the rate of collapses on our sewer network and flooding from our
sewers If we fail to meet any of these targets then we receive financial penalties associated with them

This year we have achieved an assessment of ‘stable’ asset health — which means we have met or beaten all of
the performance measures set by Ofwat This performance reflects the benefits of our ongoing investment
programme, which will see us spend around £1 8 billion between 2015-20 to build, repair, refurbish and upgrade
our assets

We spent more than £45 million in 201516 as part of our programme of maintenance, repair and refurbishment of
the wastewater network We have completed extensive reviews of our pumping stations' efficiency and put n place
a flood mitigation programme to prevent the same i1ssues recurning This included a £10 million programme to
replace essential kit in 500 pumping stations

Other projects to reduce the nisk of fiooding from our network include the installation of new pumping stations and a
sewerage network at Botley Park in Hampshire This ambitious scheme tnvolves tunneiling under rail infrastructure
at a cost of £6 9 million

This level of Investment, combined with programmes to educate and advise customers on how o help us keep
sewers and pipes operating efficiently, 1s contributing to making Southern Water's wastewater service more
effective
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Environment

Looking after the environment

2015-16
Achieved

Wastewater treatment works 100 99 32 98 98
comphance (%)
Maintain bathing waters at 54 54 43 54
Number of senous pollution incidents

8 7 12
(category 1 and 2)
Number of less serious pollution
tncidents (category 3} 283 160 283
Distribution mput (millien hitres per day) 525 48 520.64 524 24
Renewable energy use (%) 14 4 173 16 0

The environment i1s at the heart of our business We have a duty to ensure we carry out our daily
operations in a way that protects our nivers, streams and coastal waters while also playing a key role in
improving the health of our local environment

We promised our customers we would do the following

« Aim for 100 per cent compliance by our wastewater treatment works with required standards — and at least
mamntain performance at 97 7 per cent

* Increase by seven the number of beaches with ‘excellent’ bathing water quality by 2020

»  Ensure our operations wili cause no serious pollution incidents affecting local nvers, streams and beaches by
2020

»  Reduce the amount of water we take from the environment by 1 4 per cent, despite predicted population
growth of four per cent

* Increase the proportion of renewable energy we use to 16 5 per cent by 2020

In 201516 we made a great start to fulfiling these promises We have significantly improved compliance with
environmental standards at our wastewater trealment works, achieving over 99 per cent compliance with permits
The region's bathing waters are the cleanest in England with 82 of our 83 bathing water sites meeting tougher new
European quality standards

The number of pollution incidents in 2015 fell by 43 per cent on the year before, making last year's performance our
best in 15 years 1n addition, we've also beaten our target for the amount of water we take from the environment
and are continuing our efforts to generate more renewable energy

All but one of the 83 bathing waters in our region met the new, tighter mimimum standards introduced this year
Despite this excellent result, due to some extreme weather expenenced in August, we did nat meet our target to
maintain water qualty at 54 of the region’'s beaches at the very highest ‘excellent’ status — which 1s consistent with
the standard required for a Blue Flag

Qur performance of 43 beaches at ‘excellent’ status means we will face a financial penalty of £1 458 million, which
will be reflected in custemers' bills from 2020 Following investigation of the causes, we have put in place a number
of improvements for the 2016 bathing water season and expect to get back to the target level of 54

37




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

Wastewater treatment

Every day we remove and treat 718 millton fitres of wastewater from people’s homes and businesses before
releasing it safely back into the rivers and coastal waters

Qur region contains many environmentally sensitive sites, including the chalk streams in Hampshire, important
shellfish beds along parts of our coastline and bathing waters across Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the iste of
Wight Each of our 366 wastewater treatment works has a unique set of standards, set by the Environment Agency
(EA), that we have to meet before we release the treated water back into the environment These standards ensure
the water released is of the highest quality, protecting the ecological health and biodiversity of our region’s rivers,
streams and coastal waters

These watercourses play an important part in making the South East a great place to live, work and visit, and are
critical in boosting the region’s economy A large proportion of our investment programme s targeted at making
further environmental improvements across the region

The performance of our wastewater treatment works has been an area of particular focus this year As a resuit of
this, 99 3 per cent of our 293 works which have stringent environmentat permits met the required quahty standards
over the last year This represents a further improvement on last year and is heiping to make sure our local
environment 1s protected

To achieve this we've spent more than £160 milhon on operating, maintaining and improving our treatment works
over the past year We have also completed a focused programme of activities, including

* A thorough reassessment of our nsks, including analysis of the root cause of hisionc performance failures
and a review of the operating plans for all of our medium and large-sized treatment works and a
repriontisation of our planned maintenance programme to address the highest nsks,

« Enhanced training for our operators, using a ‘licence to operate’ model,

* Ensuring that we maintain adequate spares for cntical equipment, improving the speed with which we
make repairs to assets that have falled and minimising the equipment out of operation, and

¢ Ensunng that trade effluent customers — those discharging non-domestic effluent to the sewers - are
complying with the terms of the consents 1ssued to them and identifying other nisks from riegal discharges
to the sewers

The concerted effort that we have put into this area over the past vear 1s continuing to yield benefits with alf our 366
treatment works achieving standards in the first three months of 2016

Bathing water

The 1,100 kilometres of coastline and 83 designated bathing waters that sit within our region are one of the South
East's greatest assets and are vital to the iocal economy

We play an important roie in protecting these coastal waters to ensure they are of the highest quality and have
invested miliions of pounds 1n doing so over the past 25 years As a result, bathing waters in our region have never
been cleaner

In 2015, a more stnngent set of standards was introduced to measure bathing water qualty across Europe The
highest, ‘excellent’, standard 1s now twice as high as it was previously Instead of an annual measurement, now
four years worth of water qualty samples contnbute to the bathing water classification made by Defra

The EA takes weekly samples at all designated sites durnng the bathing water season on behalf of Defra The 83 in
our region are all beaches but elsewhere in the country some lakes and ponds are also sampled

All but one of the designated bathing waters across our region met the higher Eurcpean standards Only Walpole
Bay in Margate fatled to reach the mimmum standard This i1s believed to be a result of seaweed build up in the bay
rather than anything to do with our sites in the area Even though we believe Walpole Bay farted for natural
reasons, we would rather not have any beaches faiing in our region Therefore we are committed to working with
the local council and the EA to fock at ways to address this

In addition to meeting the new minimum European standards, we set ourselves a further target to improve bathing
water quality across our regron, something that 1s extremely important to our customers To do this we look at the
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last year's bathing water results and compare performance to previous years The samples taken in 2015 alone
saw 43 bathing waters reach the excellent standard, falling short of our target to maintain 54 bathing waters at
‘excellent’

This 1s largely because the South East experienced the wettest August since 1977, which impacted on water
quality towards the end of the summer Although disappointing, having investigated the reasons for the decline in
performance at these beaches and put in place improvements we are confident that we will recover the position for
the 2016 bathing water seascn

We are also making good progress on our programme to bring a further seven bathing waters across the region to
‘excellent’ standard by 2020 We have started technical investigations of several bathing waters and will be
engaging with customers and stakeholders over the coming months as part of our Bathing Water Enhancement
Programme

The improvement programme has been driven by our customers’ desire for clean, safe access to bathing water
and beaches and by our own commitment to protect the environment and support the communities we serve

Collaboration with local authorities, farmers and other agencies i1s a key part of delivering these improvements and
we are developing important partnerships on the ground Delivening this programme is the first step towards our
long-term ambition, as set out In our Strategic Statement {April 2013), to bring all coastal waters at bathing sites n
the region up to the standard required to achieve Blue Flag status by 2040

Preventing poltution

We recorded 167 pollution incidents in 2015 — a reduction of 43 per cent compared with 2014 and our best
performance in 15 years

Pollutien incidents are categonsed Into three levels of seventy, with categories one and two being the most serious
In 2015, the number of senous incidents fell to seven, beating our business plan target of eight We have made
significant improvements since 2011, cutting the number of serious pollution incidents by twe thirds Qur aim s to
efiminate all senous pollution incidents by 2020

We have achieved a large reduction in the number of the less sernous, category three pollutions In 2015 we had
160 mncidents, beating our target of 283, despite a very wet period during January and February

We have achieved this by expanding and optimising our sewer jetting programme to target hotspots where we
experience a higher rate of blockages, which can lead to pollution We've also launched a targeted customer
educaton campaign in these areas to tackle the causes of sewer blockages

In addition, we have enhanced our risk assessment programme so we can better pinpoint the likelihood and
consequences of fallure at our sites including pumping stations, pipes and sewers

And where we do expernence incidents, we have made sure that we react quickly, priontising those with the highest
nsk of causing pollution We make sure that we learn frem any flooding incidents that do occur and we make the
necessary repairs to make sure it doesn’'t happen again

We have made good progress as a result of these improvements, but there 1s more to do and we will maintain our
focus in this area We are confident that we wili achieve our promise to have no senous poliution incidents by 2020
and reduce the number of category three incidents to no more than 158

Reducing the amount of water we take from the environment

in order to supply our customers with high quality, healthy drinking water we need to take water from local rivers
and underground sources through a process called abstraction We promised our customers that we would reduce
the amount of water we abstract, in order to help protect the environment

Last year the amount of water we put into supply each day reduced by nearly 2 5 milhon litres to 520 64 million
Itres per day, beating our year one target by one milhon litres
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We are committed to reducing abstraction levels further, despite predicted population growth in aur supply area of
around 80,000 people by 2020 To do this we need to continue to reduce leakage from our network, help our
customers use less water and make sure the homes of the future are more water efficient

The government has commiited to reforming the rules around abstraction by 2020 The current legislation has been
in place for more than 50 years and no longer meets the needs of the environment or abstractors

As a company operating in a water-stressed region, we expect the reforms to stnke the nght balance between
protecting customers’ supplies and the needs of the environment We believe there 1s potential for the reforms to
be more progressive, allowing us to trade water easily with other abstractors within our catchments and develop
future water resources that will benefit other water users

To explore the 1ssue further, we co-hosted an event with colleagues from Anghian Water in December 2015 to
discuss the Australian experience of abstraction reform and what lessons could be learned for the UK We are also
progressing two pilot projects to look at the opportunity for trading with other water companies We look forward to
working with Defra, the EA and our peers, and contnbuting to the development and implementation of the new
system

Renewable energy

We are currently ahead of our promise to increase the amount of renewable energy we use across our operations,
with 17 3 per cent of our total energy use now coming from renewable sources

In the past year we have been focusing on increasing the efficiency of our 16 Combined Heat and Power Plants
(CHP), which turn sewage sfudge biogas into power that 1s used to run our sites

We are committed to ensuring that we produce renewable energy through heat recovery from waste or solar
power, to offset the energy consumption from our daily activities

Our plan to generate more renewable energy for use at our sites 1s, therefore, continuing We have selected sites
where we propose to install photovoltaic (solar power) panels and we have also undertaken energy audits as part
of the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme
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Environmental responsibility

Carbon performance

201516 2014-15

Target Achieved

(restated)
Greenhouse gas emissions — kiCOze 281 267 386 273
" KgCQse per person suppled with treated - 27 - 27
water .
KgCOze per person supplied with - 39 - 41

wastewater services
Note - Last year's figures have been restated to reflect annual changes in carbon reporting and emission factors

We've continued to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions

Our customers told us they wanted us to demonstrate our care for the environment Parl of this 1s responding to
Issues such as climate change and keeping our carbon emissions {greenhouse gases) to a minimum

During the year we produced greenhouse gases equivalent to 267 kilotonnes of carbon dioxide These emissions
result from our consumption of gnd electnoity and natural gas, our transport and from our wastewater and sludge
treatment processes

Our operational emissions for 2015—16 were two per cent below those of the previous year, our lowest emissions
for four consecutive years in real terms Thts reduction has been calculated using consistent emission factors for all
years to identify a real change in performance rather than changes to UK emission factors We did this by
generating more renewable energy to run our operations and by making key sites more energy efficient

We achieved our fourth Carbon Trust Standard accreditation in recognition of our excellence In monitoring and
managing carbon emissions and have continued to focus on renewable energy generation, which was cne of our
key customer promises And we have increased the proportion of renewable energy generated to over 17 per cent
of our overall electncity consumption

We continued to participate in the government's Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Effictency Scheme and will
buy government carbon allowances at a cost of £3 8 million for the year to be compliant with regulations

Low carbon design

Qur in-house engineenng team 1S responsible for designing improvements to our treatment works and pumping
stations and ensunng they use matenals and processes which reduce greenhouse gases for the whole of their
operational life

The designs must also factor in the pressures of population growth, increased treatment standards and carbon
impact

Recycling waste

During the wastewater process, sludge 1s produced This solid matter, which is treated, 1s often recycled for use as
a source of fertiliser by local farmers We produce about 240,000 tonnes annually and sometimes it is necessary to
send 1t to landfill, which 1s costly and means we lose the nutnent benefit of sludge applied to land

in 2015 we sent no sludge to landfill for a second year runnming This 1s a remarkable improvement from 2013-14
when we sent 808 tonnes In addition, the majonty of gnt and screed - the debns removed from wastewater — s
also still baing diverted away from landfill with more than 95 per ¢ent now composted
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Conservation and biodiversity

In the last year we've agreed management plans for our sites of special scientific interest {(SSSIs} with Natural
England to achueve ‘favourable condition’ ratings We have compiled management plans for our 11 largest 3551
locations (sites of one hectare or larger)

Qur wark 1s continuing to control the nsks associated with invasive plant species such as Himalayan balsam,
Japanese knotweed and giant hogweed at sites across our region including Brede Water Supply Works,
Powdermill Reservoir, Ashford Wastewater Treatment Works and Bewl Water Reservoir The work 1s achieving
great results in biodiversity improvements, asset protectton and community support Asset protection 1s also
enhanced by removing species which can damage reservoirs and other vital infrastructures
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About us

Our workplace

Health and safety

We continued fo lead the industry with our excellent health and safety performance and achieved the lowest
number of injunes n our history We recorded 427 days without a reportable injury to a member of staff and there
were an exceptionally low number of supply partner injunes

Our total of 0 14 reportable injuries per 100 full-ttme employees/contractors beat our target of 0 31 and was the
result of our longstanding and continued commitment and focus on safety Our employee-only total was 0 09

For the 17th consecutive year, we achieved the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) gold award
and were presented with our third Order of Distinction In therr international Occupational Health and Safety Awards
We're the first water company to receive such an accolade

Our Aim for Zero Injuries campaign played a vital part tin our exemplary performance Its initiatives included a two-
day health and safety conference for more than 500 staff and contractors to share best practice We are also
carrying out further work to concentrate on managing road nsk

We continued our campaign to encourage siaff to report hazards at work, donating £2 for each one recorded to our
regional Arr Ambulance Trusts

Safety at work receives a great deal of attention because the outcomes of getting it wrong are immediate and can
be devastating However, it 1s equally important to keep general staff health in focus

Increasingly organisations are realising that health 1ssues 1dentified at work are often linked and influenced by
personal health and fitness outside work At Southern Water we have recognised this for some years and our
ongoing wellbeing intiatives are designed to encourage good personal health

During the year we worked closely with our supply partners and recommitted to our Wellbeing Promise which sets
clear joint aims for us and our staff to work together on their wellbeing Specific campaigns in the last year included
wellbeing days where a range of external specialists visited us to advise and encourage staff on improving their
personal health and fitness Examples ranged from staff pedalling their way to fitness with a static bike challenge
and tackling the WaterAid Mountain Challenge, to attending a presentation by a specialist consultant on men’s
health and cancer

In the wider commurity, we continued with our long-running Learn to Swim programme for children (see our
Community section on page 46 for more information) Nationally, we participate in the Water Safety Forum and
assist with the formulation of the national drowning prevention strategy

Also at national level we work with the Health and Safety Executive and other stakeholders to support and promote
the Estate Excellence programme, an iniiative designed to help small to medium-sized enterprises take sensible
steps to improve awareness of health and safety 1ssues in therr businesses
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Our people

As of 31 March 2016, we directly employed 2,259 people across Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight
We also indirectly provide employment to many more through our suppliers

People development

We are committed to providing training and career development opporturuties for alt of our employees’ and we also
recognise the need to support their wellbeing

Nurturing in-house expertise 1s an investment in the company's future, therefore, we have continued to implement
our leadership development programme to cultivate talented employees As part of this, 24 of our ine managers
took part in our Leaders for Tomorrow scheme, which sees them complete a senes of practical modules throughout
the year Around 26 middle managers completed the inspired Leader Programme, a 12-month programme focused
on improving a series of key people management skills We also hosted a number of business lead conferences for
senior managers from all areas of the business thts year, where they defined joined-up approaches to achieve our
business goals

Around 40 of our most outstanding junior colleagues were put through our five-day residential course in the past 12
months Called the Employee Development Programme, the scheme offers attendees a forum to develop therr
own, Innovative business ideas They then pitch their propositions to members of the Executive Management
Team

In our Operations team, we had a number of graduates from our award-winning apprenticeship programme All of
our operators work to the highest standards, regutarly completing Licence to Operate training, which tests their
knowledge of water and wastewater processes, and our apprentices are no exception We asked them to conduct
more than 60 water supply competency assessments and 265 wastewater assessments dunng the current year

In addition, we sustained our customer-focused Ambassador Proagramme, which 81 employees attended durnng the
year This scheme provides training in customer service skills and continues to contnbute sigrificantly to our
service improvements in Operaticns

Our commitment to developing employees’ potential continued with the creation of four talent pools sponsored by
the Executive Management Team We held discussions with employees to identfy their career development needs,
which led to 115 personal development plans being put into place A number of graduates also joined our corporate
graduate programme dunng the year, we spoke at the region’s schools 1o promote the water industry as a career
and continued with our STEM work to ensure a talent pipeline for the future

We're also investing In our customer services teams 1o ensure we meet our customers’ needs A senes of training
events to help employees improve therr skills have been held, including an extensive management development
programme, traiming on metenng and water usage, and 123 people were also given training on how to use a new
customer feedback system We also provided coaching, mentoring and secondment opportunities

Employee engagement
When we recruit and invest in the development of good staff, we want to keep them

We survey our staff every year to find out what they really think of us and how we can be a better employer The
fatest engagement survey was filled in by an impressive 76 per cent of the workforce We received 2,003
comments from employees on why Scuthern Water 1s a good place 1o work and suggestions for how we could
improve Qur two higgest directorates increased their overall engagement score As a result of staff feedback, we
are continuing to conduct a development process for managers on how they motivate, care for, consider and talk to
their teams

Once again we held our Staff Thanks and Recognition (STAR) awards and recetved 294 nominations for 15
honours, including Employee of the Year Staff are nominated by therr colleagues In categones that reflect the
company's principles customers first, everyone matters, always improving, local pride, taking ownership and
succeeding together

As part of our comprehensive strategy to safeguard the wellbeing of our employees, 15 people were given the
opportunity to attend a tme management programme, eight people attended a leadership behaviour programme
and 186 employees attended a resilience programme
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Our suppliers
This has been an important year during which we have further developed the way we work with our suppliers

Our aim 1s to become true partners with our strategic and important suppliers and contractors, working
collaboratively with them rather than them simply providing us with a product or service

Unlocking the power of procurement through the use of technology has made it easier for us to identify new
opportunities, engage the supply market more efficiently and ensure we meet new Utilies Contract Regulations

We've continued to develop and evolve our framework that looks at managing the whole contract from its inception
to its end, which means we are building even closer relationships with our supply chain and they work with us
rather than for us

Woe approach the next financial period with confidence that tegether with our suppliers we will provide excellent
services for our customers
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Our community

Our community work 1s a mixture of supporting charitable actvities and providing free educational resources to
promote wise water use

We pride ourselves on being rooted in and contributing to the communities where our customers live and work and
we do so through a varniety of initiatives

Educatton

We're commitied to educating people about how to use water wisely Our mime show, The Drips, took messages
ahout wise water use to around 5,300 children in the past year and staged 28 plays in our region's schools

We've also attended 22 community events with our road show and offered advice on the responsible management
of water and wastewater to more than 20,000 of our customers

Cur Sporting Chance programme 1s 1n its fifth year With our five partners — Bnghton & Hove Albion Football Club,
Giilingham Football Ciub, Kent County Cricket Club, Portsmouth Foolball Club and Sussex County Cricket Club —
we gave more than 20,000 children the chance to expenence sport with professional coaches while learning about
why water 1s important to health, how to be water efficient and why keeping our sewers clear is so Important We're
aiming to increase that number over the next year to 25,000 by recruiting the commuruty teams at Hampshire
Cricket Club and Crawley Town FC

We are also planning to introduce a 'Schocl Gates' outreach programme to complement Sporting Chance This
means that parents will receive the same messages as their children about water efficiency, keeping sewers clear
and health

Learn to swim

Our flagshp community programme Learn to Swim celebrates 25 years 1n 2017 Durning that ime more than
700,000 children across the region have been taught how to stay safe arcund water and another 30,000 will be
taught this year

We're grateful to our scheme ambassadors, former Olympic gold medallist Duncan Goodhew and Invictus Games
veteran Mike Goody, for therr support This year's instructors’ seminar was focused on helping to teach people with
disabthities to get the most from swimming We also held two achiever events for children in Gilingham, Kent, and
Fareham, Hampshire where dozens of youngsters were recognised for their swimming skills

Access and recreation

Our four reservairs Darwell, Powdermill and Weir Wood In East Sussex and Bewl Water on the Kent/Sussex
boundary ali offer outdoor activities such as fishing and salling Bewl is the biggest stretch of open water in the
South East and our largest reservoir Each year i1t attracts an estimated 98,000 visitors who take part in
windsurfing, sailing, fishing, cyching, walking and boat tnps

We have a long-standing partnership with the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wiidiife Trust which manages our
Testwood Lakes site near Southampton on our behalf Testwood Lakes has a purpose-built education centre which
hosts environmental acivities for the thousands of children, many of them on scheool trips, who visit each year

Other visitor attractions in our region include the historic steam pumping engines at our water supply works in
Brede, East Sussex, which are cared for and displayed by Brede Steam Engine Society

Our sewer tours offer a fascinating insight into the essential network beneath Brighton's streets These entertaining
and educational tours look at the hustory behind the construction of our sewers In a typical year, some 1,500
visitors take a tour and learn more about the architecture and history of this hidden environment
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Charity and velunteering

We contribute to the wellbeing of our customers and our communities, and our staff are actively encouraged to get
involved in work to improve their communities Dunng the last 12 months, Southermn Water staff gave 24,000 hours
of their time to help community projects

One of our lighlights this year was a visit by His Royal Highness the Duke of Gloucester to Southern Water's mutti-
award winning wastewater treatment works in Peacehaven Hosted by Southern Water Chief Executive Matthew
Wnight, the Duke met staff and heard how the site treats 95 million litres of wastewater every day from Bnghton &
Hove and the surrounding towns He was also shown its 18,000 square metres of green roof, one of Europe's
largest

Other guests at the event included pupis and staff from Chailey Hentage School, the beneficiary of £6,000 of
fundraising since 2013 While there, the Duke officially opened a new conference room named The Herntage Room
in recognition of the school

Annual events

Southern Water's big annual events are designed to get participants engaged with our chosen charities Our last
annual ball raised £100,687 for Cancer Research UK Qur popular race day brought in more than £28,000, which
was split between the Rainbow Centre in Fareham which helps people with neurological disorders, and the
Rockinghorse Children's Chanty in Brighton In fact, a total of £182,000 was raised for good causes over the
course of the year as a result of our fundraising efforts

We've taken part — and sponsored each other to take part in — a range of events to benefit causes including the Arr
Ambulance Trusts in Kent, Sussex, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, The Snowdrop Trust, Action Research for
Children and Macmillan Cancer Support

We're continuing our long relationship with WaterAud, the international charity which helps provide poor
communiies with access to clean water and sanitation systems Dunng 2015-16 we raised a total of £75,000
through various activities

We're aiso looking ahead to celebrating our 10th chanty race day this October which we hope will be more
successful than ever
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Financial performance

Financial performance

Accounting policies

The financial results have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting Standard 101) for the
first ime this year, having previously applied generally accepted accounting practice in the UK (UK GAAP) As a
result the prior year comparatives have been restated Reconcihations from UK GAAP to IFRS for the income
statement and balance sheet in respect of prior years are presented in note 31 of the financial statements

The accounting policies of the company are set out on pages 103 to 112

Income statement

Qur income statement 1s summarised in Table 1 below

Table 1 Years ended 31 March Change

2016 2015 Yo
£m £m

Revenue 8037 826 2 {(27)
Other cperating income 1.7 12 417
Operating costs {286 3) (273 1) 48
Depreciation, net of amortisation {234 6) (222 8) 53
Operating profit 2845 3315 (14 2)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 04 13 (69 2}
Net finance costs (86 2) {91 9) (6 2)
Fair value losses on denvative financial
instruments (70.4) (130 3) (46 0}
Profit before tax 128.3 1106 161
Tax (8 4) (17 0) (50 6)
Profit for the financial year 1199 936 261

Revenue decreased by 2 7 per cent to £803 7 million {2014-15 £826 2 million) principally because of the
apphcation of new price controls at the start of the regulatory penod Our water and wastewater wholesale revenue,
which accounts for some 90 per cent of our total revenue, 1s now subject to an annual revenue cap Under these
revenue caps, the total revenue we were permitted to recover from our main charges in 2015-16 was some three
per cent lower than our actual revenue 1n 2014-15

Operating costs increased by 4 8 per cent to £286 3 million {2014—15 £273 1 million) and the major reasons for
thus movement of £13 2 miliion are described below and in Table 2

As a result of the transition to IFRS we are no longer permitted to account for our infrastructure maintenance and
repairs using renewals accounting Consequently, certain expenditure to maintain our infrastructure assets that
was previously capitalised under UK GAAP I1s now treated as an operating cost Due to the nature of maintenance
work, this has the effect of making operating expenditure more volatile, depending on the level of maintenance and
repair activity carmed out in any one year
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Table 2
Year-on-year increasef/(decrease) in operating costs

inflation 34
Increased bad debt charge 26
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 66
Market reform preparation 20
Customer services improvement programme 29
Change programme 40
Refund of rates charges (133)
Insurance proceeds received 2014-15 24
Other 26
Movement in operating costs 132

In 2015-16 we undertook additional planned works on our sewer network in order to reduce the level of pollution
and flooding incidents This additional work, together with the change In accounting treatment, resulted in an
increase In operating costs of £6 6 millon

During 2015-16 we have also undertaken a number of specific projects which have resulted in increased operating
costs These include preparations for market reform, which will see the introduction of retail competition for non-
household customers, Inittatives to iImprove our customer services performance, such as the creation of a proactve
outbound contact team, and an overall change programme aimed al making business improvements to help dnve
future efficiencies

These cost increases were offset by a successful appeal against historic rates charges which resulted in the receipt
of a refund of £13 3 million

Depreciation increased by 5 3 per cent to £234 6 million (2014-15 £222 8 million) as a result of the continuing
significant capital Investment programme As we reached the end of our previous five-year capital investment
programme, AMP 5, a large number of schemes were commissioned duning the year, adding a further £8 0 million
to the depreciation charge on top of the full-year impact of schemes commissioned dunng 2014-15

Operating profit for 2015-16 decreased to £284 5 million (2014-15 £331 5 million), a 14 2 per cent reduction as a
result of the factors set out above

The profit on disposal of fixed assets of £0 4 million (2014-15 £1 3 millon} mainly relates to the sate of land,
buildings and equipment, surplus to operational requirements

Net finance costs of £86 2 million decreased by 6 2 per cent (2014-15 £91 9 million) This Is largely driven by
lower indexation on inflation-linked bonds as a result of lower RP1in 2015-16 This accounted for a reduction of
£11 8 million offset by higher net interest payable of £7 7 million following a step up In the interest payable on some
of the financial iInstruments

As a result of adopting FRS 101, farr value movements on our financtal instruments are now recorded through our
income statement During 2015-16, the underlying habiity associated with our financial instruments increased,
resultng In a loss of £70 4 miilion being recorded in the income statement (2014-15 loss £130 3 million)

We have recognised a total tax charge to the income statement of £8 4 million (2014-15 £17 0 mullion) This differs
from the charge that may be expected of £25 7 million, based on the profit before tax of £128 3 milllon and the
current period tax rate of 20 per cent, as described in note 9 This 1s pnmanly the result of the announcement of the
reduction in the rate of corporation tax from 20 per cent to 19 per cent with effect from 1 Apnl 2017 and 18 per cent
from 1 Apnl 2020 A credit of £22 0 million 1s recogmised for the impact of these changes on the deferred tax hiabslity
of the company




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

The profit after taxation for the year amounted to £119 9 million (2014-15 £93 6 mullion)
Cash flow statement — summary

Cur cash flow statement 1s summansed in Table 3 below

Years ended 31 March

2015

£m

Net cash inflow from operating activities 466.9 480 2
Net cash used in investing activities (164 9) (252 3)
Net cash used in financing actvihes (457.6) (189 9)
Net (decrease)increase In cash and cash equivalents (155.6) 380

Net cash inflow from operating activities has decreased to £466 9 milion for 2015-16 from £480 2 million in 2014—
15 This decrease results from the impact of the lower charges to customers, reducing our cash inflow from
revenues, the payment of lump sum contnbutions In respect of our pension deficit, lower payments of group tax
relief and the settlement of an inter-company debtor in 2015-16

The net cash used in investing activittes decreased to £164 9 million for 2015-16 from £252 3 million in 2014-15
This decrease matnly results from the transition between two regulatory periods Capttal schemes relating to the
previous regulatory penod reached completion and new capital projects associated with our plans for 2015-20 are
in early stages of design and construction and, therefore, incurring lower levels of expenditure

The net cash used In financing activities increased to £457 6 million (2014-15 £188 9 mulion) This increased cash
outflow principally results from the payment of accrued indexation associated with denvatives in place on some of
our debt of £298 4 million (2014-15 £5 0 million) and the payment of ordinary dividends excluding those in relation
to the SWSG dividend loop, of £79 6 million, offset by cash received from new loans of £110 0 million

Overall these resulted in a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of £155 6 million (2014-15 net increase of
£38 0 million}

50




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

Statement of financial position — summary

Our statement of financial position 1s summansed in Table 4 below

Years ended 31 March

2016 2015

£m £m

Non-current assets 6,491 0 6,484 6
Current assets (excluding cash) 194.7 2227
Cash and cash equivalents 179 1735
Total assets 6,703.6 6,880 8
Current liabihities (277 Q) (248 0)
Nen-current iabhties (5,066 8) (5,275 2)
Total habithes (5,343 8) (5,523 2)
Total net assets 1,359 8 1,357 6
Shareholder’'s equity 1,359 8 1,357 6

At the end of the year to 31 March 2016, we had non-current assets of £6,491 0 million (2014—15 £6,484 6
million), an increase of £6 4 mithon from March 2015 This increase mainly results from capital iInvestment in
tangible and intangible assets of £241 4 million offset by depreciation of £234 6 milon

Current assets decreased to £194 7 milhon (2014—15 £222 7 milhon) This decrease largely results from a
reduction of £14 3 million in an inter-company debtor in relation to interest payments with SWSF and a lower leve!
of accrued income as a result of the impact of lower charges to customers of £8 7 million

Current Lhabilities increased to £277 0 millton (2014-15 £248 0 milion) This increase 1s driven by a new short-term
loan of £50 0 million from the drawdown of a term faciiity, offset by an expected reduction in capitai creditors of

£9 5 million, hnked to the lower capital expenditure in the year as we reached the end of our five-year capital
programme for AMPS, and the payment of a lump sum contribution to the penston scheme of £15 9 million which
was accrued at 31 March 2015

At 31 March 2016 non-current liabilities totalfed £5,066 8 million (2014-15 £5,275 2 millon) The reduction of
£208 4 milhon pnncipally resuited from the decrease in the liability associated with denvative financial instruments
of £228 2 milkion

During 2015-16 we repaid £298 4 miliion of accrued indexation associated with these instruments, which was
offset by an increase in the liability due to the impact of market rates on the underlying instruments of £70 4 million
Further details can be found In note 20 to the accounts

tn addition to the reduction in the denvative hiability, our pension habiity reduced by £13 1 million {ollowing the
payment of a deficit contnibutton of £30 6 million which offset the impact of market movements on the deficit Our
deferred tax batance also reduced by £33 6 milion as a resutt of the announcement of future changes to
corporation tax rates These reductions were offset by new loans 1ssued of £60 0 million

Overall, net assets increased from £1,357 6 million to £1,359 8 mitlion
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Dividend policy

We aim to deliver a sustainable long-term capital structure, taking into account the interests of all stakeholders Our
shareholders are long-term investors and fully support the strategy adopted

Qur dividend policy I1s to propose dividends having given due consideration to the following financial and
performance cntenia

Assessment of headroom under debt covenants

Assessment of the impact on the company’s credit rating

Assessment of the iquidity position and ability to fulfil icence conditions
Assessment of key areas of business nsk

Assessment of current year and cumulative distnbutable reserves

Drrectors’ duties under law and Ofwat-administered regulatory arrangements

DN DB WN -

Distnbution proposatls submitted to the Board will also include an assessment of ocur performance agamnst the
business plan, including expected performance over the balance of the regulatory pernod

Our dividend policy, and the associated financial and performance critena, 1s intended to support the credit ratings
of the business and ensure continued access to diversified sources of finance

These tests are not applied to the intenim dividends of £45 5 mithon paid to SWSG, as this dividend payment is
instantly offset by a corresponding interest receipt from SWSG and therefore does not get distnbuted to the
shareholders of our ultimate parent company, Greensands Holdings Limited (GSH})

Qver the past five years, our shareholders have supported us in strengthening our financial posiion and In
delvering improved operational performance This support has placed us in & stronger position for the start of this
five-year period and, as a result, we have been able to resume dividend payments this year Ordinary dividends
totaliing £79 6 million were paid in relation to 2015-16 (2014-15 nil) These dividends were paid through our group
structure to the shareholders of our ulimate parent company GSH
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Taxation
We manage our tax affairs in an open and transparent way and contribute materally to the Exchequer each year

Ali companies within the Southern Water and wider Greensands groups are UK tax resident, ensuring that each
company I1s subject to UK tax Tax planning 15 always aligned with our commercial and economic activity This
practice continues to be recognised by HMRC, which assesses us as a ‘low-nsk’ company

Qur rate of corporation tax against accounting profits — our effective tax rate — is less than the statutory rate of
corporation tax published by HMRC because of differences in the way in which some items of expenditure are
treated for accounting and tax legislation This is especially the case with regard to capital investment expenditure,
where the UK taxation system recognises the benefit to the economy of investment in UK infrastructure Since
privatisation in 1989, the water industry has been required to make significant capital investment to improve
environmental performance and resilience to drought and flooding, maintain existing assets and, tn particular for
us, accommodate population growth in the South East Our taxable profits are lower than our accounting profits as
a result the tax treatment of our capitat expenditure This has the effect of reducing the amount of tax we pay, the
benefit of which 1s passed to our customers through reduced bills

Another aspect of our significant capital investment programme Is that we borrow money to finance our capital
investment The interest associated with this borrowing is recognised as both an accounting and tax expense, so
reducing profit and further reducing the amount of tax we pay Again, the benefit of this 1s passed to our customers
through reduced bills

Our contributions to the Exchequer amounted to £51 3 millon These are explained below

» Bustness rates of £25 7 milion paid to local authonties (2014-15 £25 1 million} and payments to the
Enwironment Agency of £8 4 million (2014-15 £8 4 million), which reduce profits chargeable to corporation
tax In 2015-186, these payments were offset by a refund of historic rates charges totaliing £13 3 milion
following an appeals process In relation to histonc charges

+  Employment taxes of £26 7 million (2014—15 £23 3 million) paid to the Exchequer under PAYE (Pay As You
Earn) and National Insurance contributions

* Carbon Reduction Commitment of £3 8 million (2014-15 £3 7 milion) levied on our power costs, which
reduces profits chargeable to corporation tax

Payments have also been made to other group companies of £15 1 million for tax losses surrendered lo the
company Of these, £11 4 million was paid to SWSG and then repaid to us as interest, with the remainder pad to
the Greensands financing companies Overali, Southern Water pays 12 4 pence in the pound for losses
surrendered from group companies As a result of capital allowances and interest charges, no corporation tax was
paid by the group in 2015-16

Financial KPIs

Within our financial debt structure 1s a comprehensive set of covenanted financial ratios Of these, there are two
key ratios, namely the ratio of net debl to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) and the ratio of adjusted net cash
ncome to net interest cost

The net debt to RCV ratio Is calculated as short and long-term sentor borrowings, less cash and short-term
deposits to the RCV (all values taken from our Regulatory Accounts) The RCV 1s set by Ofwat at each five-year
penadic review and reflects ferecast growth in the asset base from capital investment and inflation The RCV is
adjusted at each penodic review for relevant changes to the level of expenditure or performance during the five-
year pernod The ratio of senior debt to RCV s targeted to be maintained at around 80 per cent, comfortably within
our debt covenants

Sentor adjusted cash interest cover (measured as net cash inflow from operating activities less RCV depreciation
to senior debt interest) 1s targeted to be maintained above 1 1 times {o meet covenanted levels
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2012—13 performance 79 2012-13 performance 15
2013-14 performance 78 2013-14 performance 16
2014-15 performance 78 2014-15 performance 16
201516 performance 79 201516 performance 19
Covenanted lock-up level <85 Mimmum target tngger level 11

Credit rating As at 31 March 2016

Standard & Poor's

Fitch

Moody’s

In February 20115, Moody’s removed the negative outiook on our credit ratings following an assessment of the
PR14 Finat Determination (the regulatory business plan for the period April 2015 to March 2020), including a
recognition of our impreved operational and financial performance in recent years Ali credit ratings are now

‘stable’

Class A debt A-
Class B debt BBB

Class A debt A-
Class B debt BBB

Class A debt Baat
Class B debt Ba1
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Capital structure
Why Scouthern Water raises finance

Significant capital investment has been a feature of our business since pnvatisation in 1988 We have invested in
both maintaining our existing asset base and constructing new assets in order to improve the environmental quality
of wastewater, improve the qualty of dnnking water and accommodate population growth in our area of operation
As an example, before pnivatisaton, 350,000 m® of wastewater per day was discharged into our coastal waters was
untreated, but the comptetion of cur £300 million Cleaner Seas for Sussex scheme In 2013 marked the conclusion
of a programme of capital mvestment to fully treat wastewater of the coastal towns and cities from Kent to
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight A further example I1s a current £63 milhon construction project at Woolston which
will improve the quality of effluent discharged into the River lichen as well as reduce odours

We raise finance to pay for the construction of new assets and to repay loans taken out In previous years In
additton we are partly financed by shareholder equity, sufficient in size to absorb financial nsk and contnbute to the
financing of construction of new assets

The level of customer charges 1s calcuiated to cover our operating expenditure, our annual financing costs
{including any equity return to our shareholders) and the amount required to invest in and maintain our assets,
such as water pipes, sewers, pumping stations and treatment works

The charts below lllustrate the sources and uses of expected cash flows for the current regulatory period, Apnt
2015 to March 2020, and demonsirate our requirement to raise finance to fund our capital investment programme
The data 1s based upon the regutatory price determination, which sets out both our performance obligations and
the limits on customer charges for this current five-year pnce pernod

Hanlanng
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13%
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11% \ Doy todsy
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82% 24%

Day-to-day running costs — this includes wages for direct employees and people indirectly employed through our
supply chain as well as power, chemicals and materials costs and the charge made providing for bad debt when
charges are not paid by customers

Maintaining our existing assets — capital expenditure to maintain our underground pipe network and treatment
works, Including capitalised employee costs

Interest on debt — interest incurred on money we have borrowed to finance the business This borrowing helps us
to spread the cost for customers of iImprovements made to our services over the longer term

Maturing debt - this relates to the repayment of loans as they mature and 15 offset by new finance raised

Building new assets — for example our £63 millon modernisation of the treatment works at Woolston in
Southampton and other projects to enhance treatment standards and cater for growth

Tax, rates and licences — this includes corporate taxes, business rates on buildings, wastewater treatment works
and water supply works and Environment Agency licences

Ofwat / regulator adjustments ~ these adjustments, rewards and penaities have been applied by our regutator
Ofwat in the period 2010-15 They relate to customer satisfaction, cost savings and revenue cotlection

Profit — return earned on uihmate shareholders’ investment in the business
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Capital structure and borrowing covenants

We refinanced our regulated business in 2003 with the am of reducing our cost of capital and gaining access to
long-term and secure sources of finance This was achieved by replacing a short-term parent company loan with a
senes of listed bonds 1ssued under a long-term framework for sustainable future financing (known as
secuntisation), which continues to be in place today

Our financing subsidiary, Southem Water Services (Finance) (SWSF), was established for the express purpose of
raising debt finance on our behalf The Southem Water Financing Group (see ownership chart below) was also
established at that time to create a financial nng-fence to protect our ongoing operation from lenders in the event of
default

The financing group, whose immediate parent is SWSG, provides secunty to finance providers in the form of a
charge over the share capital of SWS Group Holdings (SWSGH) No secunty is provided over our individual
regulated operating assets This structure ensures that, in the unlikely event that either Southern Water or SWSF
were to default on their debt obligations, we will continue to operate our business as usual Debt providers are not
permitted to either break up or interrupt our business and can therefore only look to a new owner of the financing
group to recover their debt i the unhikely event of serious defauit

In 2003, a Common Terms Agreement (CTA) between the members of the financing group and its debt investors
was established The CTA sets out arrangements for the ongoing management of our debt 1ssuance programme as
well as a number of operating arrangements In order to mnimise our financial nsk and adhere to good industry
practice

One of the CTA arrangements 1s a hmit on the indebtedness of Southern Water and SWSF This includes
precautionary ‘early warning’ limits which prevent us from paying dividends If a imit 1s breached We ensure that
we operate with sufficient financial headroom against these limits and have not breached a imit at any time since
the implementation of the financing framework in 2003
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Southern Water ownership structure summary

Shareholders
Greensands Holdings

Greensands Europe

Greensands financing companies

Southern Water Capital

Southern Water Services Group

+ *,

-
b LN B0 5

Southern Water Financing Group

Greensands Holdings (GSH) 1s the ullimate parent company of Southern Water and all other group companies,
with no minonty interests A number of Greensands companies were set up to finance the acquisition of the share
capital of Southern Water Capital {SWC) from the Royal Bank of Scotland in Octeber 2007 (investing £1 9 bilhon of
equity and debt to finance the acquisition) The shareholders of GSH are a consortium of infrastructure funds and
pension companies, with no single shareholder having majonty control

There s additional indebtedness al the level of the Greensands financing companies Secunty granted to these
ienders 1s imited to the share capital of Greensands Holdings Ltd There are no debt guarantees in place between
the Greensands financing companies and the Southern Water Financing Group, with the result that SWS s fully
protected, and fully isolated, from a default at any Greensands company

Shareholders of GSH are represented on our Board through two non-executive directors Dunng 2015-16 the
Board also consisted of a further four non-executive directors, who are independent of the shareholders, a non-
executive Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer You can find out more about our
Board on page 76

Our Chairman ts also independent Chairman of the GSH Board, which meets four times a year The purpose of
GSH s to act as a single-purpose entity, being the ultimate holding company for Southern Water, and provide the
financing structure for the group As a consequence, the GSH Board complements and supports the aims of the
Board of Southern Water for its long-term success and our Chairman unites the respective Boards in this common
aim As a resuit we feel his cross directorship does not undermine his independence No other independent
members of our Board sit on the Board of GSH

All compantes within the Greensands Holdings group of companies are UK restdent for tax, with all profits and
losses falling within the UK tax junisdiction
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How we finance the business

In note 19 to the financial statements, we provide an analysis of our outstanding debt at 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2015 Qur loans comprise sterling bonds, issued by our financing subsidiary SWSF, and listed on the UK
Stock Exchange, plus bank loans, and a loan from the European Investment Bank

The regulatory framework, under which revenues and the RCV are indexed, exposes us to inflation nsk This nskis
managed through the use of inflation-inked loans and denvatives within the overall debt portfolio We do not intend
to access future inflation-linked debt through the use of denvatives but will instead seek such debt from natural
sources, such as public and private bond markets As a consequence, we expect the proportion of the RCV and
debt that is currently linked to inflation through the use of denvatives will decrease over time

We are not restricted to 1ssuing sterling bonds but will ensure any other currency loans are fully hedged back to
sterling We also hedge our exposure to interest rate volatility by ensuring that at least 85 per cent of our
outstanding debt liabihties {in respect of Class A and Class B debt} 1s either inflation-linked or fixed rate for the
current five-year regulatory pencd and at least 70 per cent in the next period (on a rolling basis)

We also consider refinancing nisk by ensuring that lcan maturities are not concentrated in any single year or
regulatory period When 1ssuing new loans, we test that refinancing obligations are less than 20 per cent of RCV In
any two consecutive years and 40 per cent of RCV within any five-year regulatory penod The matunity profile of
loans extends to March 2056, which ensures we comfortably meet this test Although not formally required, we
ensure that inflation-hnked swap accretion payments are included within our matunty analysis

We ensure that sufficient iquidity (cash and committed bank facilities) I1s in place to fund the business for at least
the next 12 months (including loan and inflation-linked swap accretion matunties), an important consideration given
that we have negative cash flow generation in the majonty of years as a result of our ongoing capital investment
programme

As a result of our prudent iquidity policy, we can at tmes have large cash balances We reduce the nsk of losing
cash on deposit, from bank or fund failure, by setting maximum limits on cash deposits and minimum credit ratings
for each bank or fund Banks must have, as a minimum, a credit rating of P1 (Moody’s), A1 (Standard & Poor's) or
F1 (Fitch) Funds must be the most secure rating of AAA rated

In addition to our loans as analysed in note 19, we have in issue a loan of £812 3 million to SWSG which was put in
place as part of the refinancing in 2003 (note 13) We receive £56 @ million annual interest on this loan from

SWSG In order to enable SWSG to make this payment, it receives dividend and tax payments from us For the
year ended 31 March 2016, the dividend was £45 5 millon and the tax payment, in respect of the taxable losses
incurred by SWSG, amounted to £11 4 millon This loan provides no tax benefit to ether us or the Greensands
Group, with the tax payment we make to SWSG simply negating any tax effect of this loan This 1s illustrated tn
figure 1 of the diagram below

The Greensands companies also have thewr own loans a UK-listed bond and bank loan issued by Southern Water
Greensands (Financing) (SWGF), represented in the diagram below as part of the Greensands financing
companies, and Eurobonds 1ssued by Greensands Europe Interest on these loans may result in a tax expense
which can be used within the Greensands Holdings group of companies
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Interest and dividends payments 2015-16

Fig ! lhg 2
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Southern Water Financing Group

Footnote

a) Interest paid by SWSG (b SWS on £812 3m loan

b) Dhidend paid by SWS to SWSG to facilitaie the interest payment on the €812 3m loan
¢} Paymenl of gioup lax 1elle! by SW5 for the taxable losses al SWSG

Greensands financing
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d) nterast payments from SWS to SWSF on the leons taken out by SWSF on behalf of SWS This is then used by SWSF to pay the interest on these axtarnal loans

©) Ordinary dividend ultmately pald to investlors

f) Interest payments on the preference shares

¢) Dhvidencs received from other group companias
h} Interest payable on late1-company loans

I} External interest payable funded rom mteres! receivable and cash held In the Groensands financing companios

J) Dividends patd to invesiors
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Viability statement

Details of our Code of Board leadership, transparency and governance are set out n the corporate governance
section of the Annual Report on page 70 In developing our code we have drawn on the appropnate principles of
the UK Corporate Governance Code (UK Code) In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the 2014 UK Code, the
Board has assessed the prospects of the company over a longer penod than the 12 months required by the ‘Going
Concern’ provision The Board has selected to conduct this review each year based on a roliing three-year penod
for the following reasons

| The certainty on wholesale and retall pnce controls 1s provided for each five-year penod in a Final
Determination by Ofwat,
t The internal planning cycle looks forward to the end of the regulatory penod and s, on average, three

years, and
n A three-year review minimises the period of uncertainty in years at the end of each planning cycle

In assessing the viability of Southern Water over a three-year period to March 2019, the directors have taken into
account current performance and the financial and operationat impacts, in severe but plausible scenanos, of the
prnincipal nsks documented In the Strategic Report on page 61 These include the impacts of

« Incidents, for example severe weather, cyber security or a major operational event, on operating costs and
remedial capital investment,

*  Market reform on future revenues, and

* Changes to RPI or interest rates

For each scenano the impact has been assessed to ensure that our ratios are not breached and that headroom 1s
maintained to ensure that we can continue to achieve our operating company and holding company debt service
and geanng targets

In addition, the directors have assumed that funding for the ongoing capitat investment programme will continue to
be available in all plausible market conditions

Based on this assessment, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company will be able to continue
in operatton and meet its labilities as they fall due over the period to March 2019

In arnving at their opinion the directors have taken into account

* The certainty of wholesale and household retail price controls to March 2020 provided by the 2014 Final
Determination by Ofwat, following its acceptance by the Board,

» The financial strength of the company at the balance sheet date and the fact that it has arranged £350
million of five-year committed bank faciliies as back up hquidity (maturing :n 2019), of which £350 million
remains undrawn at 31 March 2016,

* The key financial ratios over the planning hornizon of the company's three-year assessment penod as
reflected n strong investment grade credit ratings with stable outlook,

* The company's annual budget and business plan projections, including stress testing reflecting plaustble
but severe combinations of the pnncipal nsks of the business,

» The company's formal nsk and governance arrangements which are monitored by the Audit Risk &
Compliance Committee and Board,

* The Licence which 1s in place on a rolling 25-year basis, and

* The pnmary duty of Ofwat to ensure that water and wastewater companies can finance their functions
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Risks

Risk management is a core component of our wider governance and internal control framework, which provides the
overarching structure through which the company 1s managed to achieve its objectives

The most significant nsks facing us are referred to as ‘the principal nsks' These are nsks that are considered by
the Executive Management Team and Board to have the greatest potential to affect the achievement of strategic
objectives, based on outputs from the “top down™ and “bottom up” nsk assessment exercises and their ongoing
review and monitonng

The Board 1s responsible for determining the nature and extent of the prnincipal nsks 1t 1s willing to take 1n achieving
its strategic objectives

Our strategy for nsk management is that all prncipal nsks are dentified, assessed and managed to within
acceptable levels To achieve this, the Board and management promote a culture that encourages routine
consideration of principal risks in key decisions and supports integration of nsk management with our critical
processes and ways of warking

The Board monitors our risk management and internal control systems which cover ail matenal controls including
financial, operational and compliance conirols

The purpose of nsk management is not to make our company risk averse, as taking risk 1s something we must
continue to do in order to achieve our objectives and be successful Rather, it 1s to support better decisions through
an improved understanding of nsk, which means taking the nght nisks for the nght benefits and returns
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Frgure 1 Southern Water Risk management process

The objectives of our nsk management strategy are to

* |dentify and understand all the pnncipal nsks that we face,

+ Select and proactively take the nsks that give us the nght returns, and understand ther potential iImpact on
the company,

» Take action to manage the nsks we do not want to be exposed to, ensunng our resources are effectively
and efficiently pnoritised and used, and

*  Monitor and report the nsks we are taking against our desired strategic objectives

Every employee i1s responstble for helping us to effectively manage our nsk exposures and making us a more
restient organisation, able to successfully respond to our changing environment

We ensure controls are in place so we can take action to minimise the impact of nsks To do this, they are
managed through a central database where they are ranked and assigned to senior managers who are responsible
for implementing mitigation ptans Risks are reviewed each month and the highest are escalated to our Executive
Management Team, the Board and the Audit and Risk Review Committee Any new nsks added to the database
with a score above a certain level are passed to a director and Chief Executive Officer for mmediate review
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The principal nsks we face are disclosed below

Unchanged in the
year year

Customer

Risk reduced in the

Risk increased in the
year

Customer service ﬁ

Commentary: Increasing customer expectations
and nsing standards of customer service across the
sector mean that we may icur financial penalties if
we do not continuously improve our customer
service performance

The Service Incentive Mechamsm (SIM) was
developed by Ofwat to incentivise improvements In
customer service and compares perfermance across
the water sector

Our SIM performance for 2015-16 was below
average which means that, if we do not improve
over the next four years, we would face a financial
penalty at the next Pnce Review

We have set ourselves challenging targets and our
improvement programmes are working to deliver
these for our customers

Mitigation- Improvements to customer service are
being made on a continuous basis Staff are being
provided with increased traning and development
and we are carrying out ongoing research to better
understand our customers’ expernences We
continue to achively engage with our customers and
stakehoiders mn order to strengthen our links with
local organisations such as councils and community
groups

We are improving our customers’ expernence by
providing new facilities for them to manage thew
accounts onhne and, where customers do need to
speak to us directly, we have ensured the opening
hours of our contact centre are convenient
Additionally, our bills are being redesigned to make
them easier to understand

Qutcomes Responsive BetterInfonnation
affected customerservice and advica

Bad debt 0

Commentary: The level of customer bad debt,
which cannot be recovered and has to be written off
as a loss, continues to be a significant tssue for the
water industry in the current economic climate,
there is a nsk that the number of customers who do
not pay thewr bills will increase This puts an
additional burden on customers who do pay thewr
bills

We note that the result of the recent referendum
may adversely affect the economic chmate and
customers’ abibty to pay

In 2015-16, the bad debt charge to the income
staterment increased to £215 millon (2014-15
£18 9 milion})

Mitigation: We understand that some customers
may experience financial difficulties, particularly in
difficult economic tmes We encourage customers
who are struggling to make payments to contact our
Affordability team as early as possible To assist
those in difficulty we offer a range of flexible
instalment plans and tanffs, including a new socal
tanff from Apnl 2015 We are proactive in collecting
payment from our customers and in helping
households to pay thewr bills and debt When
necessary, we also use a leading debt management
system, and a panel of Debt Collection Agencies to
recover overdue payments to keep bad debt to a
minmum

Oufcomes
affected

Responsive
customer service

Affordable
bills

f o Hav'ng a im
[nanced) footrg
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Operational

Resilience to drought 0

Commentary The South East 1s classified as an
area of “severe waler stress” and changing weather
patterns are predicted to pose an Increasing
challenge for all water companies in the region In
future years We supply dnnking water to more than
one milhion households across Kent, Sussex,
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight and 1t 1s ¢ntical we
are able to maintain access to adequate water
resources to continue to do sc now and in the future

Mitigation. Through our invesiment planning
process, we identfy and then develop those
schemes which are necessary to ensure we can
meet anticipated demands for water over the next
25 years

Qur long-term investment pian sets out the addrional
water that we will secure across our regon to
achieve our target for the Secunty of Supply Index
We continue to dnve down leakage and we have
finshed our Universal Metenng Programme which
has helped drive consumption down further

Shouid a drought occur, as in 2012, we have a
Drought Plan which we would follow to introduce
measures to conserve water and secure additional
resources through Drought Permils and Drought
Orders and by changing the way in which we
operate our sources We also mamntain our Water
Resources Management Plan, usng an industry-
leading approach which ailows us to plan to operate
under a wider range of droughts than we have seen
in the past

Outcomes ey aid Lookngater
affected crinkingwater e

Preventing flooding of our sites and from our network '.

Commentary: Changing rainfall patterns, more
frequent storms and rising sea levels, could all lead
to an Increased risk of flooding If volumes
overwhelm our assets Excessive ramnfall results in
high groundwater levels which are not possible to
remediate adequately, causing flooding to private
land and property, contamination of water supply,
infiltration / inundation of sewers and a breach of
flood defences and protection The senous floods in
recent years have also highlghted the need to
protect our water and wastewater treatment works
and pumping stations from being put out of action
durnng a flood

We have met, or mproved upon, our business
targets this vyear for sewer blockages, sewer
collapses and external flooding, although nternal
flooding incidents are marginally higher than our
target

Mitigation To help combat this nsk, we have
prioritised schemes for investment in 2015-20 We
are investing £426 millon dunng this pernod to
provide a reliable and effective wastewater service,
part of which will be used to keep our 39,600
kilometres of sewers and 2,385 wastewater pumping
stations well maintaned It will also fund our
replacement or refurbishment of about 224
kilometres of sewers, with the parts of our network in
most need of repar and of most structural use
targeted first

We are also focusing on reducing the nsk of
blockages, which are a major cause of flooding from
sewers This will include camying out targeted
surveys of our sewers using cameras, performing
regular sewer cleaning work, and putting more
resources Into keeping our drainage plans up to date
to fully understand how much capacity we will need
for the years ahead We will also provide our
customers with better information about the causes
of blockages and how they can prevent them
Through investment of £268 milkon, we intend to
ensure there 1s no increase In the number of
blockages In our sewer network

effectivety theevironment

Outcomes 0 Removing wastewator Eoeking after

affected
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Resilient supply of good guakhity water .

Commentary We must ensure we can supply
enough dnnking water to cater for a growing
population of more than two milion people Should
operational treatment processes fal, the water
supply becomes contaminated, or our water
distnibution network fail

= There 1s a nsk that water could be supplied
to customers that 1s unfit for consumption,
and would require a widespread bol water
notice in arder to protect public health,

* Large numbers of customers could find their
water supply becomes cut off, or

»  Harmfut chemicats could be released to the
environment

This could cause damage to our reputation, and lead
to prosecution and fines by the Environment Agency
or the Drinking Water Inspectorate

We expenenced one such issue in January 2016,
when water supply to 4,000 customers on the isle of
Sheppey was interrupted by a burst main Due to the
size of the burst it took several days to reparr, but we
were able to react quickly and ensure water was
provided to the affected customers through rezorning
and bottled water, untl our construction teams had
repaired the burst water mains

We met or improved upon all our perfermance
targets for the year in respect of water quality and
supply resihence and outperformed our leakage
target

Mitigation: Avoiding incidents 1s managed by taking
a priorttised approach to investing in the mamtenance
of cntical assets and technology and through staff
adherence o company processes and procedures
New employees are tramned in these processes and
procedures and their importance

In the event of interruptton to supply, emergency
plans have been developed to ensure continued
supply of water to customers, either through use of
alternative supply pipes, tankening or provision of
bottled water

We have provisionally achieved industry leading
drinking water quality comphance of 99 98 per cent
Qur Business Plan 2015-20 includes schemes to add
carbon filters and other more advanced filters at our
water treatment works In high nsk areas such as
Hastings, to help improve the taste and smell of
water Part of our activites to improve water qualty
includes upgrades to wells and boreholes, service
reservoirs and water supply works, as well as
flushing mains and cleaning service reservors, which
store water underground before 1t 15 pumped to
customers’ taps

To avoid problems associated with nitrates and
poliutants being washed into rnivers from high surface
run off after heavy ran, we have processes to stop
water abstraction durmg and after heavy storms
Dnnking Water Safety Plans have been completed
which identify where and how problems can anse
with drinking water quality and cover the entire supply
system, from catchment to customers’ taps

Qutcomes

A constant supply Looking after
of high-quality
affected drinkingwater the environment

Cyber security .

Commentary: We provide water and wastewater
services to customers across our regional
infrastructure, which 1s considered cntical natonal
infrastructure

As a result, we recognise our operatonai and
enterprise |T systems may be a potential target for
cyber threats which could have a significant impact
on our business reputation and operational assets

Mitigation We manage this nsk through [T secunty
standards, ongomng monitoring of threats to, and
activities on, our IT infrastructure as well as incident
management plans

We continue to mnvest in cyber threat mitigation
strategies in response to the changing nsk landscape
and we work with the Centre for Protecton of
National Infrastructure Qver the past 12 months we
have continued to undertake employee campaigns to
raise awareness of IT secunty and data protection
rnsks

Responsive Removing wastewater Acorstantsupply £ Havng a tm
Outcomes @ customer service effectively 3’5&.,’" qm"am' L. tranoa foorg
affected eetterintormstion LoGHing aher
and odvice OUT ASSEE
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Wastewater treatment works failures and poHution incidents “

Commentary: Our region benefits from a high
quality environment, both inland and coastal We are
fortunate to have some extremely rare habitats, as
well as some of the best qualty nver fishing and
coastine in the UK

One important factor affecting the long-term qualty
of the enwvironment s the nature, volume and
frequency of permitted discharges into them We
have a number of carefully managed mfrastructure
assets which are allowed to discharge into the
receiving environment

Rehable wastewater services are essential to
mamtain public health and protect the environment
Ensunng our assets operate effectively 1s cntical in
mirimising the nsks to public health andfor the
environment from pollution and/or sewer flooding

As well as the potential to cause damage to the
environment or distress to customers, maidents ke
these can also lead to prosecution and fines by the
Environment Agency and cause damage to our
reputation

We have met or improved upon all our business
targets for the year in respect of our Wastewater
Treatment Works comphance and pollution
incidents

Mitigation: We continue to operate and maintain
our assets effectively

We monitor the functionality and performance of our
assets on a continuous basis through a central
control room This together with our new works
management system has significantly improved the
way In which we dispatch work We can respond
quicker to asset-related events and deliver the
required planned preventatve maintenance more
efficiently

The majonty of our £18 bilhon capital investment
programme for 2015-20 15 targeted to mamtamn,
enhance and extend cur wastewater and water sites
and networks to reduce the nsk of asset failures and
asset-related incidents This investment allows us to
ensure a resilient wastewater service whilst
accommodating increases in demand as a result of
population growth, meeting new environmental
standards and adapting to climate change

In the last year we have invested £13 2 miflion at our
wastewater treatment works and pumping stations to
reduce nsks at cntical sites, and invested £93
million in sewer maintenance and rehabiitation

In addition, we have started our customer-onentated
fats, oils and grease educational programme which
s targeted at those calchmentis with blockage
hotspots We are also increasing customer
awareness on how to avoid blocked drains

eftectively thaenvironmeni

Outcomes 0 Removing wastewater Looking atter

affected
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Health and safety .

Commentary: The health and safety of our
employees and the public in the provision of our
services 15 our highest prionty The nature of our
work requires that our employees and contractors
undertake activites or use equipment which, If
uncontrolled, has the potential to cause significant
harm We and our contractors have comprehensive
processes and procedures to prevent injury and
occupational ill-health Failure to comply with our
Health & Safety Management System could result in
death, serous injury or adverse health effects In
addition to the personal impact these would have,
we could be hiable for prosecution under the Health
and Safety at Work and Corporate Manstaughter
Acts In addition, there would be a significant
reputational risk ansing from the adverse publicity

Mitigation: We have taken all necessary steps to
ensure the potential health and safety nsk 1s suitably
mitigated and controlled We have a clearly defined
strategy, safety protocols and standards that are set
These are monitored and reported to the Board on a
monthly basis and to the tn-annual Board Heatth and
Safety Committee The Executive Management
Team monitors health and safety performance via
detalled reports at the monthly Health and Safety
Management Review meeting This group ensures
there 1s an adequate system for meeting our
responsibilities to our staff, customers and members
of the public These services have been developed
and are continuously reviewed to ensure they meet
the needs of the business and our employees at
work

Additionally, every employee has ready access to a
copy of the corporate policy statement and health
and safety processes and procedures All staff
receive suitable health and safety traiming, and we
have a campaign to encourage staff to report ‘near
misses’ or hazards at work to help further reduce the
nsk of injunies or ill-health

Outcomes Om Howeees Pl Worinpin
pespiz 4, pannCEp

affected
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Financial

Financing our business '

Commentary: A signtficant change in mnterest
rates, a reduction n the avalability of creds to the
water industry, or a decrease In our credit rating,
could put our ability to finance our capital investment
programme or refinance our existing debt matunties
at nsk in the future This 1s required as a condition of
our regulatory licence and our borrowing covenants,
where a falure to mamtain certain credit ratings
could lead to a restnction in dividend payments

As a minimum, we intend to maintain our current nsk
profle We only enter into treasury transactions to
manage inherent nsk and support prudenti funding,
not to speculate

Our current credit ratings are

* Standard & Poor's Class A debt, A-, Class
B debt, BBB

* Fitch Class A debt, A-, Class B debt, BBB

= Moody's Class A debt, Baal, Class B debt,
Ba1, Corporate family rating Baa2

We note that the result of the recent referendum will
increase uncertainty in this area for the short term

Mitigation® We ensure that we maintain sufficient
cash reserves and hquichty facilihies to finance our
operations for at least 18 months

We also ensure the aggregate nominal value of debt
matunties does not exceed 40 per cent of Regulatory
Capital Value (RCV) In any single regulatory penod
(and 20 per cent of RCV in any 24 months)
Exposure to Interest rate nses on our current
borrowings 1s also hedged by a subsidiary company,
Southern Water Services (Finance} Limited, and
current borrowings are at either fixed rates or index-
linked We ensure that sufficient funds are availlable
for our operational! and captal nvestment
programme through on-going monitonng and
forecasting of our cash flow and we take steps to
manage this when necessary

We have reduced leverage from levels at the start of
the AMPS penod (Apnl 2010) and improved
operational performance This posiive action has
stabilised our credit ratings

A primary duty of Ofwat when setting prices 1s 1o
ensure compantes can finance ther functions If
necessary, a company can apply to reset customer
prices in special circumstances dunng the five-yearly
regulatory peniods through an Intenm Determination
of K {IDoK)

Outcomes | £> Hxrgatm L3Geing alter

Defined benefit pension scheme “

Commentary We operate a defined benefit
pension scheme which has been closed to new
entrants from 1 Apnl 2005 We remain hable for
nghts earned by past and present members of the
scheme Changes in demographics and fluctuations
In Investment markets may affect our ability to fund
pension promises

Mitigation. We have agreed a deficit and nsk
management strategy with the Trustees This 1s
monitored regularly by ourselves and the Trustees,
and mitgatng actions are rewwewed and
implemented as appropnate

Outcomes | L™ uavngarm DO Hvwreesn
affected | - traner ooy PIDAJ peopy
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Strategy and Regulation

Delivery of our capital investment programme ﬁ

Commentary: We have a capital investment
programme of £1 8 billien between 2015 and 2020
We have plans in place to ensure we will deliver
this, however, we have to ensure our focus Is
maintained to complete all our work on time

If we are unable to delver significant parts of the
programme on schedule, our abiity to provide an
excellent service to our customers could become
compromised, as well as prevent us from fulfiling
the promises that we have made in our business
plan and lead to possible action by the Environment
Agency, Drinking Water Inspectorate or Ofwat

Capital expendiure i the first year of the
programme was behind that set out in the business
plan the increasing the nsk in this area shghtly We
remain on track to deliver our required outcomes

Mitigation: We have transformed our capability
dunng the course of the cuirent capital investment
programme to brng significant investment capabilty
in house This includes the establishment of an in-
house engineenng function, a specialist programme
management funclion and asset planning systems,
processes and capabilites Progress against the
capital programme 1S overseen by our Investment
Committee and we have adapted our monthly
reporting procedures to ensure the delivery of the
business plan 1s given the greatest level of focus
within the company We work closely with our
regulators and other interested parties to resolve
iIssues as they anse

Responsive
OCutcomes customerservice

affected Aconsiznt supply
nngnowater

Removing wastewates Looking after L Havogam
0 effectively e twervironment [ tnanmat lootng

Comphliance with regulations and legistation 0

Commentary: We are a highly regulated business
with three main regulators Ofwat, the Environment
Agency and the Drinking Water Inspectorate If we
do not meet the standards set by these bodies, we
could face fines, legal action and, in the worst case,
the loss of our appomtment as a waler and
wastewater company

Mitigation. We have procedures in place to comply
with legislation and key procedures have been
certified to meet relevant industry standards,
including ISO 9001 and 1SO 14001

Internal morytonng and assurance 1S undertaken
dunng the year and annual reporting 1s supported by
external venficaton through owr financial and
technical auditors to provide assurance on
compliance with our obhigations

Awareness traming 15 provided throughout our
company for critical compliance 1ssues, such as the
Bribery Act and Competition Law, to ensure
everyone understands our legal oblgations All
sections of the business review comphance with
company procedures through self-assessment every
six months and implement improvement plans if
necessary

Resporsive Removing wastewater Looking after L vavrgarm
Outcomes customer service eftectively theenvionmemt Ko tmancsttact s

affected 0 ;mg;gw
crinkingwater
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Regulatory reform 0

Commentary Dunng recent years, there has been
a signtficant focus on reform within the water
industry, concentrating on the mtroduction of
competiton and a greater use of market
mechanisms to promote innovation and efficiency
From Aprl 2017, the retail market for non-domestic
customers will be opened, which will require
structural changes within the company to allow us to
continue to comply with regutatory requirements and
to manage the anticipated shift in customer base

The regulatory framework continues to evolve as it
1s reviewed to ensure that i s fit for the chalfenges
of the future This ncludes assessing the costs and
benefits of extending retal competition to all
residential customers and proposals to move to CPI
instead of RPI as the basis for setting pnce controls

Mitigation We have continued to engage
constructively with Ofwat and Defra on the proposals
for market reform Dunng the year we have actively
participated in numerous workshops held by Cfwat,
Open Water and MOSL We have established a
market readiness programme to co-ordinate the
changes required in the business, including a
steerting group chared by our Director of Strategy
and which includes our Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officers

During the vyear we have taken an achve
participation in workshops and consuftations held by
the ‘Open Water' programme, which will deliver the
market codes, systems and contracts needed to
implement the wholesale and retall arrangements
outhined in the draft Water Bill

Responsive
Outcomes customerservice

affected Looking after
thaenvirenment and advico

0 Ammtammppﬂ

ne:mrlmmmum L Havngatm

Affordable 0 Removing wastewater
blils eftectively

Logeng afisr
L. trancal footng K ourassen

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2016 and signed on its behalf by J

Statton, Company Secretary

J Vet~

Joanne Statton
Company Secretary
28 June 2016
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Corporate Governance
Chairman’s overview

introduction

We are committed to maintaining tugh standards of leadership, fransparency and govemance We have adopted
our own code and have committed to comply with its [etter and spint As the Board, we fully accept our
responsibiity and accountability to stakeholders for ensuring effective governance processes are In place and
followed

The Board’s role 1s to

» Ensure that the company's obligations to, and interests of, its stakehelders, including customers and
regulators, are known and met appropnately,

*  Provide effective leadership and collective responsibility for the long-term success of the company, to the
benefit of iIts stakeholders,

+  Determine overall strategic aims and direction,

+ Ensure that sufficient rescurces are available to the Chief Executive Officer and his team to operate,
manage and develop the business appropnately, and

* Ensure that approprate and effective processes and controls are in place to assess and manage nsk

Southern Water Code of Board leadership, transparency and governance

In the Southern Water Code of Board leadership, transparency and governance, we have fully reflected the Ofwat
Principles {published in Apn! 2014) and drawn extensively on the appropnate principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code We have committed to comply with the letter and the spint of the prninciples and commitments of |
the Southern Water Code and the board of our parent company, Greensands Holdings, has committed to assist us }
We continue to have regard to corporate governance practices and developments in other sectors and will review \
the Southermn Water Code again in the current year 201617 |

The Southern Water Code is published on our website
Board membership

| was appointed to the position of iIndependent non-executive Chairman of the Board on 1 April 2014 and served on
the Board in this role throughout 2015-16

During 2015-16 the Board was comprised of an independent non-executive Chairman, two executive directors (the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer} and six non-executive directors, of whom four are independent
| beheve that, during the year, we compnsed a balanced and rounded Board, giving independent support and
advice as well as providing new ideas and healthy challenge As part of the annual Board review, our Nomination
Committee evaluated the skill sets of the Board and concluded that the current skills and expenence of the Board
provided good coverage of knowledge and diversity

The presence of the non-executive directors, only two of whom are not independent, and the independent non-
executive Chairman ensures that we achieve an appropnate balance of governance The members of the Board,
their biographies and descrptions of their complementary skilis and extensive experience are on pages 76 to 79 |

All members of the Board were and are able to allocate the necessary time to the company and its areas of |
business to discharge their responsibilities effectively

Chairman

As Chairman, my role I1s to lead the Board In its shared responsibilities, to encourage and facilitate the contnbutions
of its members and to ensure adherence i{o the governance principies and processes of the Board | have ensured
that the new members of the Board receive appropnate mduction and ongoing training

| discuss and agree agendas for Board meetings with the Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary,
although any director may sponsor an item to be included on the agenda | have authonty to act and speak for the
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Board between its meetings, including engaging with the Chief Executive Officer | report to the Board, chairmen of
its committees and individual directors as appropnate on decisions and actions taken between meetings of the
Board | also meet with the non-executive directors, without the executive direcfors present, to consider the
performance of the executive directors and to provide feedback | am continuing to increase open and constructive
contact between all members of the Board, in both formal and informal meetings

Investor representation
Our investors compnse the Greensands Consortium, the membership of which 1s explained on our website

Two investors, but not ali, are directly represented on the Board and | ensure that the views of all investors can be
communtcated to the Board

Senior independent non-executive director

Paul Sheffield 1s the senior independent non-executive director He chairs the Health and Safety Committee and
Remuneration Committee and 1s also a member of the Nomination Committee He would chair Board meetings in
the event that | am unable to do so for any reason and 1s available to discuss matters or concerns with investors as
required Paul has been a non-executive director for two years and bnngs with him considerable experience in
construction and engineering

independent non-executive directors

The independent non-axecutive directors are valued members of the Board As well as meeting the company's
obligation in its icence to have independent non-executive directors, they bring overall independent advice, review
and challenge on behalf of all stakeholders, including customers The independent non-executive directors have
been appointed for their Individual external expertise and experience in specific areas, such as customer service,
the environment, operations, procurement, capital project delivery and finance, and for the range of their
experience of general corporate management They meet without the Chairman at least once a year and appraise
the Chairman's performance annually

The Board considers the independent non-executive directors to have been, and to continue to be, independentin
character and judgement and persons of standing with relevant experience, collectively having connections with,
and knowledge of, the company’s area and understanding of the interests of our customers and how these can be
respected and protected

The standard terms and conditions of the independent non-executive directors are published on our website
Shareholder representative non-executive directors

There are two non-executive directors, each of whom 1s nominated to the Board by one of our two major investors
They bring the extensive knowledge, skilis and resources of therr nominating investors and employers as weli as
their own personal skills, expenence and knowledge of businesses and bustness sectors similar to our own On our
Board, they have all the duttes, obligations and nghts of a director of Southern Water and act in the best interests
of the company They do not receive any remuneration from Southern Water

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer, Matthew Wnght, 1s a member of the Board and has all the responsibilities of a director
of the company In his executive role, responsibility has been delegated to him to achieve the company’s strategy
He 1s empowered to take all decisions and actions that further the company's strategy and which, in his judgement,
are reasonable within the Chief Executive Officer’s limits set out in the company’s intemal controls The non-
executive directors, led by the Charrman, appraise his performance annually
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Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Financial Officer, for the reporting year, Michael Carmedy, resigned at the end of March 2016, having
been a member of the Board with all the responsibilittes of a director of the company for the past four years In his
executive role and reporting to Matthew Wright, he had the responsibility to manage the company’s financial affairs
and assist the Chief Executive Officer in the delivery of the company's strategy His executive performance was
reviewed annually by Matthew Wnght In antictpation of Michael Carmedy’s departure, the Board appointed William
Lambe as his successor, and he took up his appointment in May

Executive Management Team

Reporting to Matthew Wright, the Execuiive Management Team supparts him in driving the implementation of
strategy in the company The team s committed to do this in a responsible way that takes account of our
commitment to our customers, the environment, the communities In which we live and work and all our other
stakeholders and with a view towards the long-term responsibte stewardship of the business

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Joanne Statton, and the Company
Secretanat team The Company Secretary 1s responsible for ensuring that the Board operates in accordance with
the governance framework It has adopted and that there are good information flows to the Board and its
committees and between senior executives and the non-executive directors The appointment and removal of the
Company Secretary Is reserved to the Board

After 40 years, Kevin Hall retired from Southern Water in September 2015 and Joanne Station was appointed, by
{he Board, as his successor | wish to thank Kevin Hall for his commitment and invaluable asststance to the Board
and the company over the years

Director induction, training and development

On appointment to the Board, a director will discuss and agree induction coverage and then an appropnate
comprehensive and individuahsed induction pack is provided, which will inciude information on the company and
holding group structure, the regulatory framewaork of our business, customer service and the operation of assets,
strategic plans, financial reports, business plans and our governance framewark This and further relevant
information, 1s summarised in the directors’ handbook

Meetings are arranged with members of the Executive Management Team and with external advisers, who provide
support to the relevant Board committees the directors may serve on, as well as visits to operational and office
sites

Directors received updates and presentations through the year on matters such as Ofwat's Water 2020
programme, market reform, the company's environmental programme, water resource management planning and
the requirements for a viabiity statement under the Corporate Code They also have access to professional
development provided by externai bodies and our specialist advisers

Board evaluation

In accordance with the Southern Water Code, | undertook the process of Board evaluation and effectiveness The
results of the evaluation were presented to the Board at its February meeting and reflected that, overatl, the Board
1s considered to be working well, within an open and collaborative approach Governance continues to be n good
order and there were no areas of major concern or weakness identfied As part of the effectiveness review, the
Board considered its objectives for the coming year and these will be reviewed during 2016-17

Subsequently, Paut Sheffield, senior independent non-executive director, led a review and appraisal of my
performance as Chairman, without my participation | am pleased to record that my chairmanship was unanimously
supported by the Board and no areas of major concern or weakness were identified
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Board operation

There 1s good understanding of the principles and processes In place regarding the tasks and activittes of the
Board, the authonty delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the relationship between us

The following matters are routinely determined by the Board

+ Business strategy

* Financing strategy

* Business plans

*  Approval of annual budgets

= Fixing of pnncipal charges and charges schemes

» Approval of financial statements

* Key regulatory submissions (including, but not imited to, market reform, price review submisstons to Ofwat,
intenm Determination of K applications, Risk and Compliance Statement and Regulatory Financial
Statements)

* Key customer and stakeholder publications (including, but not imited to, the Annual Report})

+  Entenng into significant contracts or commitments (tncluding capital schemes over £5 million and disposals
over £1 million)

*  Approval of dividends

*»  Commencing into new businesses

*  Appointment or removal of auditor

= Appointment and remuneration of Independent non-executive directors

* Appointment or removal of the Company Secretary

*  Amendment, qualification, addition to or removal from the above

The Shareholders' Agreement of our parent company, Greensands Holdings, reserves certain matters by axception
to the Board and shareholders of that company A list of these matters is published on our website During the year
2015-16, no such matters have been decided by that Board or those shareholders

Good governance requires a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer A
statement of these responsibilities 1s published on our website

Board meetings

The Board held nine scheduled monthly meetings dunng the year The agenda and papers are sent to Board
members in advance of each meeting The monthly financial, performance and economic regulation reports are
also distnibuted for the other three months when there 1s no scheduled meeting (August, October and December)
The Board holds its meetings at its principal office in Worthing but at least two meetings each year are held In
London to facilitate meetings with investors

In addition to the scheduled Board meetings, the Board and the company's Executive Management Team met in
October, to discuss strategic constderations of the company, including Water 2020, market reform, innovation and
customer experience

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and are able to take appropriate
independent professtonal advice for the performance of their duties Where a director has a concern over any
unresoived matter, he/she 1s entitled to require the Company Secretary to record that concern in the minutes of a
meeting Should the director later resign over the 1ssue, |, as Chairman, would hrng 1t {o the attention of the Board
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Attendance at scheduled monthly
Board meetings in 201516

Robert Jennings 9/9
Matthew Wnght 9/9 Michael Carmedy
(resigned 31 March 2016) 9/9
Paul Sheffield 9/9 Lisa Harnngton 8/9
{appointed 1 Apnl 2015}
Bitl Tame 719 Rosemary Boot 9/9
David Golden
(resigned 23 June 2015) 313
Bronle Somes 9/9 Mark Walters 9/9

Note — Attendance includes attendance in person and by telephone
Board committees

We have established standing committees of the Board with specific responsibiliies They assist by monitoning and
reviewing performance and i1ssues in the areas within their respective scopes and by advising and making
recommendations to the Board Specific responsibiities have been delegated to those committees

The standing committees of the Board that met in 2015-16 are

« Auydit and Risk Review
+ Health and Safety

« Remuneration

+  Nomination

Each commiitee has written terms of reference to exercise oversight on behalf of the Board and provide advice in
its remit area These terms of reference are published on our website

Other committees are constituted If and when required for specific matters

The company has previously appointed a Regulatory Committee However, given the significance of the regulatory
Issues and changes that are taking place in the regulatory environment, in particular market reform and Water
2020, such regulatory matters have been discussed and decided by the full Board Consequently, the Regulatory
Commuittee did nol meet dunng the year This position witl continue to be reviewed by the Board, which itself
receives both an economic regulation and market reform report at each scheduled monthly meeting and for the
other three months, as described above

Remuneration
The directors’ remuneration report I1s set out on pages 84 to 93
Interests

No director declared a matenal interest at any time dunng the year in any contract of significance with the
company

Conflicts of interests
Conflicts or potential conflicts are governed by the Companies Act 2006 The Board does not have power to

authonse conflicts If a conflict should arse, the conflicted director takes no part in discussions or voting on that
ISsue
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Annual General Meeting

Southern Water Services Limited 1s a private company with single corporate ownership and 1s not required 1o hold
an Annual General Meeting

Conclusions
The Board and | remam committed to the company continuing to follow good corporate governance to underpin

business strategies and plans which ensure that its obligations to, and interests of, its stakeholders, in particular
customers and regulators, are known and met appropnately

At/ ftcn-g’

Robert Jennings
Chairman
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Board of Directors

The day-to-day running of Southern Water is fed by Matthew Wnght, our Chief Executive Officer, and our Executive
Management Team, which reports to our Board of Directors

Robert Jennings

Chairman

Appointed Chairman in Apnl 2014, Robert joined the Board as an independent non-executive
director in July 2012

Robert 1s also the Department for Transport's representative on the board of Crossrail and
Chairman of Sequoia Economic infrastructure Income Fund Limited

He joined SG Warburg & Co in 1986 and remained with the orgamisation until February 2009
where for many years he had been head/joint head of the bank’s infrastructure group Durning this period, he was
atso seconded to HM Treasury on two occasions

Robert graduated from Bnstol University in 1976 after reading Economics and Accounting

Articled to Coopers and Lybrand, he became a Chartered Accountant in 1979 and, in 2005, was made a CBE In
recognition of his services to the transport sector and finance industry

Matthew Wright

Chief Executive Officer

- Appointed in February 2011, Matthew Wnght joined us from United Utiities where he was
managing director, Assel Management and Delivery

Prior to that, he was managing director, Operations, and his role included management of the
operations, maintenance and customer service activities of United Utihties’ regulated water and
wastewater business as well as oversight of the company’s external contracts with Dwr Cymru
Welsh Water, Scottish PF| projects and other industnal customers

Matthew has more than 25 years' expenence of utiity management in both UK and international markets

He joined United Utilities in 2007 from Scottish Power's US operation, where he was executive vice-president of
PacifiCorp's transmission, distribution and customer service division

He has also held senior management positions in operations, regulation, corporate strategy and commerciat utility
functions

William Lambe
Chief Financial Officer

William joined Southern Water in May 2016 from Thames Water, where he held the position of
finance director for the Thames Tideway Tunnel

Wilham has a wealth of financial expenence in the UK and overseas and has worked for
companies including, KPMG, BG Group pic, Wolseley plc and Thames Water
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Paul Sheffield

Senior iIndependent non-executive director

Paul Sheffield joined the Board in June 2014 in addition to this rote he s currently managing
director of the European hub for Laing O'Rourke — the engineenng and construction enterpnse

In his career, Paul enjoyed over 30 years with Kier Group plc, the construction, property and
services business starting as a graduate Cwil Engineer in 1983 He spent 17 years working on
a senes of significant infrastructure projects around the world and then led a number of the
company's business units in the UK and was chief executive officer for the group from 2010 to

Bill Tame

Independent non-executive director

Bill Tame joined the Board in January 2015

He 1s currently chief executive of the Babcock Group's International Division, having joined the
Babcock Board as group finance director in 2002

Bill 1s a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants

| Rosemary Boot
i Independent non-executive director

Pl Rosemary Boot joined the Board as an ndependent non-executive director in March 2015

W She s chief financial officer of Future Cities Catapult, one of a network of technology and
innovation centres established by the UK Government

Previously she worked at Circle Housing Group and was involved in setting up the government-
owned Low Carbon Contracts Company and Etectricity Setlements Company From 2001 to 2011 she was group
finance director of the Carbon Trust, the independent company set up in 2001 to work with business and the public
sector to accelerate the move to a sustainable, low carbon economy Prior to that, she worked for 16 years as an
investment banker, pnmanly advising targe listed UK companies on mergers and acquisitions

Rosemary 1s also a governor of the Conservatoire for Dance and Drama, the higher education institution for the
performing arts, and a trustee of Green Alliance, the environmental think tank
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Lisa Harrington
Independent non-executive director

Appointed in Apnl 2015, Lisa 1s the chief customer officer of BT Group where she s
responsible for drniving customer focus into every aspect of their business

" Previously, Lisa was managing director of Customer Service and CIO of BT's Wholesale Iine of
' business She has also held a number of other transformation and customer service roles
dunng her 10 years at BT

Before BT, Lisa spent 11 years with Andersen Consulting (now Accenture), specialising In customer experience
consulting and delivening big transformation projects for companies such as Microsoft, Compagq, Vodafone and
Sainsbury's

Bronte Somes
Non-executive director

Bronte Somes joined the Board in Apnl 2015 having previcusly held shareholder
representative positions within the wider Southemn Water group over the past four years and
having served as alternate non-executive directer to Paul Moy on the Southern Water Board

Bronte 1s a senior investment principal for UBS Infrastructure and Private Equity, a division of
UBS Asset Management Based in London, Bronte 1s responsible for pnnciple investment
activity across Europe

Before joining asset management, Bronte worked for more than a decade in UBS Investment Bank's infrastructure
group where she gained extensive experience as an adviser within the infrastructure sector Before that, Bronte
worked as a finance lawyer at Clifford Chance in London

Mark Walters

Non-executive director

A seasoned investment professional, he is an executive director and asset manager with the
JP Morgan Infrastructure investments Group, based in London, and 1s responsible for principle
investment activity across Europe

Mark holds beard appointments across a number of JP Morgan’s utility investments, including Electricity North
West and Zephyr investments Ltd, and 1s actively engaged in the strategic oversight and development of these
businesses

Before joining JP Morgan, Mark held investment and adwvisory posttions at Macquane Bank, Deloitte and Arthur
Andersen, where he started his career Mark s a Chartered Accountant and a fellow of the ICAEW
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§ Joanne Statton
| Company Secretary

| A qualified solicitor, Joanne has worked for Southern Water since 1997

She became Company Secretary of both Southern Water and the Greensands companies in
2015, supporting and advising both boards and businesses

Other Board members who served in 2015-16 were
David Golden — Senior independent non-executive director {resigned 23 June 2015)

David Golden joined the Board in November 2003 and served as the senmor mdependent non-executive director
until his resignation

Michael Carmedy - Chief Financial Officer (resigned 31 March 2016)

Michaet Carmedy joined the Board in November 2011 and served as Chief Financial Officer until his resignation

Executive Management Team

Reporting to Matthew Wright, the Executive Management Team in 2015-16 consisted of

Michael Carmedy — Chief Financial Officer (to 31 March 2016)

Kevin Hall - Company Secretary and General Counsel {to 30 September 2015)
Phihp Barker — Director of Operations

Mel Karam - Director of Infrastructure {to 29 Apri 2015}

Chrnis Maloney — Director of People and Transformation

Simon Qates — Director of Strategy

Lesley Ottery — Director of Transformation {to 31 August 2015)

Richard Price — Director of Engineening and Construction (from 20 Apnl 2015)
Jennie Reglar — Director of Procurement (to 16 November 2015)

Susan Stockwell — Chief Customer Officer (to 31 March 20186)
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Audit and Risk Review Committee

This report descnbes the role of the Audit and Risk Review Committee (ARRC) and the work it has undertaken
during the year

The members of the ARRC are Bill Tame (Chairman), Lisa Harrington (from 1 April 2015), Bronte Somes (from 1
Apn! 2015) and Mark Walters, whose expenence and background are set out on pages 76 to 79

The members of the committee receive updates on financial reporting, nsk, internal audit and the regulatory
framework in vanous forms throughout the year The Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer, and the Head of Audit and Risk are invited to all meetings and are usually in attendance In
additton, key members of the finance team and the external auditor are invited to the ARRC meetings, excluding
the annual nsk review Other members of senior management are also invited to attend when necessary or
appropnate The ARRC has access to the services of the Head of Audit and Risk, the Company Secretary and
external professional advisers to assist it in performing its duties

The ARRC met four times 1n 2015-16 and its work focused on the following key areas

*  Financial statements

* Internal controls

+ Corporate governance matters

+ Internal audit

* Areas of nsk

*  Oversight of internal and external audit
* The regulatory reporting obligations

* Annual nsk review

Audit and Risk Review Committee attendance in 2015-16

Bill Tame 4/4 Lisa Harrington 3/4
Bronte Somes 4/4 Mark Walters 4/4

Note — Attendance includes attendance in person and by telephone
The terms of reference of the ARRC are published on our website

Financial statements

The ARRC received and reviewed the financial statements and the external audit report from Deloitte regarding the
year-end financial statements, considerting any items of significant judgement that have been made and general IT
controls, before making a recommendation to the Board to approve the annual results There were no significant
1ssues to be addressed

The ARRC also reviewed and discussed the changes to the financial statements that will result from the transiion
to Financia! Reporting Standards 101 (FRS 101) in 2015~16

Internal controls

The ARRC receives regular reports from Internal Audit in respect of its work on internal controls and reviews
management letters received from the external auditor In addition, our nsk management processes and
arrangements are also monitored and reviewed together with the ongoing development of the compliance and
assurance processes in respect of the key nsks

The ARRC also receives a regular report of incidents of fraud or bnbery, including the actions taken to investigate
and respond to the incidents and nformation on potential incidents of wrang-doing under investigation There were
no matenal incidents during the year

Further detalls of our intermal control framework, including the main features of cur internal control and risk
management systems in refation to the financiat reporting process, can be found in the Annual Report on page 61
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Oversight of internal audit and external audit

The ARRC I1s responsible for overseeing the work of the Internal Audit function and also for managing the
relationship with the external auditor It reviews the performance of the interna! and external auditors annually to
ensure that they are effective and recommends to the Board whether the extemal auditor should be reappotnted

The ARRC regularly holds discussions with both the intemal and external auditors in the absence of management
Internai audit

The Head of Audit and Risk and the team report on a day-to-day basis to management on the effectiveness of the
company's systems of intemal controls and the adequacy of these systems to manage busmess nisk and {o
safeguard the company’s assets and resources This work 1s reported to the ARRC on a regular basis and is a key
element of the assurance that the ARRC receives on the nsks and controls in the company

The ARRC reviews, at least annually, the level of resources and the budget of the Internal Audit function The Head
of Audit and Risk 1s free to raise any i1ssues with the ARRC or its Chairman at any time during the year

Risk

Whilst the Board 1s ulimately accountable for ensuring rnisks are managed effectively across Southern Walter and
for maintaining robust systems of sk management and intemal control, the ARRC 1s responsible for the robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the company, monitonng its nisk management and internal control systems
and testing its effectiveness The Chairman of the ARRC reports to the Board those matters reviewed and
discussed by the Committee at its previous meeting

In additien to monitoring individual risks, the ARRC, on behalf of the Board, also undertakes ongoing performance
monitoring of the systems of nsk management and internal control to ensure they are effective and performing as
expected

The ARRC 1s responsible for overseeing and challenging the effectiveness of Southern Water's approach to nsk
management Key responsibilites include

- Ensuring the Board receives approprate assurance that the systems of nsk management and internal
control are operating effectively, and that all significant fallings and weaknesses and principal nsks have
suitable management activities in place to rectify and/or remain within defined risk appetite,

- Endorsing an internal audit plan that 1s informed by principal nisk exposures, including overseeing targeted
reviews of key risk and control areas, and

- Maintaining an assurance landscape that has integnity, independence and reliability

A nisk update report 1s 1ssued to, and reviewed by, the ARRC four times a year, including one meeting that focuses
extensively on nsk This meeting occurred on 29 September 2015 and compnsed a high level review of all nsks on
the corporate dashboard and their movements compared to prior quarters, as well as detalled reviews of risks of
key strategic focus The Chairman of the ARRC provided a comprehensive report to the Board of the review
undertaken

External auditor

Deloitte LLP was appointed our auditor in 2011 following a tendenng process The ARRC considers the auditor’s
effectiveness each year and would report to the Board any concerns over the auditor's continuing appointment

The ARRC reviews annually information provided by the external auditor cenfirming its independence and
objectivity within the context of applicable regulatory requirements and professionai standards, including any non-
audit work Under the Southern Water Code of Board leadership, transparency and govemnance, the external audit
contract will be put to tender at least every ten years We would also initiate a tender process if there were any
concerns about the qualty of the audit or the independence and objectivity of the auditor There are no contractual
obligations that act to restrict the Board's choice of external auditor

All audit related and non-audit fees are subject 1o a formal approval process before engagement Detalls of the
amounts paid to Deloitte for these services are provided in note 5 to the accounts
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Health and Safety Committee

The Health and Safety Committee (H&SC) i1s responsible for reviewing and advising on our health and safety policy
and the implementation of, and compliance with, agreed policies, applicable gurdance and standards The H&SC
reviews incident and accident prevention performance and policies and any other matters assigned by the Board

The members of the H&SC are Paul Shefiield {Chairman of the committee), Matthew Wnght, Rosemary Boot and
Mark Watters Dawvid Golden had been a member during the reporting year and resigned on 23 June 2015

The H&SC met on four occasions in 2015-16

Health and Safety Committee
attendance in 2015-16

Paul Sheffield 4/4 Matthew Wnght 4/4
Rosemary Boot a/4 Mark Walters 3/3
(appointed 1 May 2015)
David Golden 11

(resigned 23 June 2015)

Note — Attendance includes attendance in person and by telephone

The terms of reference of the H&SC are published on our website
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
evaluating the balance of independence, skills, expenence, knowledge and diversity It prepares descnptions of
roles, specifies the capabilities required and leads the process for identifying and nominating candidates for the
approval of the Board

The members of the Nomination Committee are Robert Jennings (Chairman), Paul Sheffield (deputy Chairman)
and all non-executive directors

The Nomination Committee met on three occasions in 2015-16

Nomination Committee attendance in
2015-16
3/3

Robert Jennings Bill Tame 1/3
Paul Sheffield 3/3 Bronte Somes 3/3
Rosemary Boot 31 Mark Walters 313
Lisa Harrington 313

Note — Attendance includes attendance in person and by telephone

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published on our website
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This report 1s on the activities of the Remuneration Committee for the penod to 31 March 2016 It sets out the
remuneration policy and remuneration details for the executive and non-executive directors of the company it has
been prepared in accordance with our Code, the guidance ssued by Ofwat in Regulatory Accounts Guidance
(RAG) 3 08 and, where relevant for a non-listed company, has taken into account the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013

Chairman’s annual statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2016,
which sets out the remuneration policy for the directors of Southern Water Services Limited and provides detalls of
thetr remuneration in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016

| was appointed chairman of the committee with effect from 24 April 2015 and have chaired the committee
throughout 2015-16

Following the annual review of the committee's effectiveness in 2014-15, the structure and membership was
revised and from Aprl 2015, four new independent non-executive directors joined the committee Strengthening the
committee in this way has provided an additional batance of skills, expenence and knowledge to enable the
committee to provide sound judgement and decision making in matters related to the company’s short and long-
term remuneration strategy In particular, additional strengths in both customer focus and sustainability were added
to the committee

As part of a strategy to improve the links between achievement of perscnal objectives and reward outcomes, a new
bonus scheme design was implemented in 2015 for both executive and senior management who are eligible for a
payment under the incentive arrangements This focused the executive and senlor management on improving
business effectiveness through improvements in service to customers, operational efficiency and performance,
achieving ODls set by Ofwat in the PR14 price review whilst at the same time ensuning sufficient financial returns to
maintain investor confidence and enable the company to finance the business at competitive rates

As a result of the improving company performance and the Remuneration Committee’s assessment of performance
against the personal objectives of each individual executive director, the annual bonus payments for 2015-16 were
assessed to be 75 per cent of annual bonus potental

Remuneration in 2016-17

The committee believes the remuneration policy currently in place 1s working well to support the company’s
strategy n the current economic environment and to retain and motivate our experienced management team ahead
of the next price review period

With effect from 1 Apnl 2015, the committee iImplemented a new Long-Term Incentive Plan 1o incentivise our
executive directors to deliver the ambitious AMP6 Business Plan and to ensure the focus remains on delivenng
improving customer service and shareholder value Itis a three year rolling plan, which will vest, subject to the
performance conditions outcomes, on 1 June 2018 The commiitee proposes to award new plans every two years
on 1 Apnl The committee will review the performance metncs for each scheme to ensure that they best reflect the
company's priorities  The metncs for the 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan ensure greater alignment of the long-term
incentive arrangements with the dehvery of shareholder value, whilst maintaining high levels of customer service

\?'\/—\

Paul Sheffield
28 June 2016
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Remuneration Committee ‘

The Remuneration Committee (RemCom} I1s a commitiee of the Board of Southermn Water Services Limited (SWS)

The RemCom has responsibility for setting remuneration policy and structure for the executive directors and senior
management It 1s also responsible for sethng the remuneration of the Chairman The RemCom has defined terms

of reference, which are published on our website

Committee membership

We recognise that the independent non-executive directors have an important role to play in determining and
challenging remuneration policy and practice In order {o reflect this, the independent non-executive directors
represent a majonty on the committee

The RemCom Is chatred by senior independent non-executive director Paul Sheffield The other members are
Robert Jennings, Bill Tame, Rosemary Boot, Lisa Harnngton, Bronte Somes and Mark Walters Paul took over the
role of chairman from David Golden in Apni 2015, following David's decision to step down from the Board

Only RemCom members are entitled to attend meetings, but the Director of People and the Chief Executive Officer,
Matthew Wnight, attend by invitation The Director of People and Transformation, Chns Maloney, acts as secretary
to the RemCom on behalf of the Company Secretary

No attendee participates in discussions regarding their own remuneration

Details of the attendance duning 2015-16 are shown In the table below

Remuneration Committee
attendance in 2015-16

Paul Sheffield 5/5 Dawvid Golden 212
Robert Jennings 5/5 Rosemary Boot 5/5
Bill Tame 3/5 Lisa Harnngton 4/5
Bronte Somes 5/5 Mark Walters 515

Note — Attendance includes attendance in person and by telephone

How the Remuneration Committee sets the remuneration policy

The pnmary cbjective of our remuneration policy Is o ensure that competitive reward packages are offered that will
attract, retain and motivate talented and expenenced sentor executives to run the business effectively and to
promote the success of SWS

Within these arrangements, a significant proportion of reward is based on performance against demanding targets
These targets are set by the RemCom based on key strategic prionties benefiting customers, investors and other
stakeholders and consistent with a Board-approved level of nsk

The overall aim 1s that executive directors’ remuneration should be market-competitive relative to other comparable
companies and with a significant proportion being performance related The performance related element 1s only
paid out If stretching short-term and long-term targets are achieved that benefit both customers and shareholders
In setting the remuneration policy for executive directors, the RemCom takes into account the remuneration
practices found in other UK companies of a similar size or operating in the same sector it also ensures that the
remuneration arrangements for the executive directors are appropnate when compared with those for other senior
executives and the wider workforce

In particular, the RemCom 1s kept iInformed on a regular basis of

« The level of salary increase for the general employee population
« Company-wide benefit provision and any proposed changes
* Qverall spend on management bonus arrangemenis
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Investor representatives sit on the RemCom and are closely involved In setting remuneration levels, monitoring the
performance of the executive directors, agreeing payments and approving any changes to reward packages This
close involvement ensures that shareholders play a key part in shaping remuneration policy and decisions and that
the bnk between pay and performance 1s robustly managed

To ensure that our remuneration prachces are market competitive, the RemCom penodically calls upon
expenenced specialist consultants The RemCom last received advice in 2014-15 from Towers Watson (a feading
global professional services company) and intends to undertake further reviews every two to three years
Directors’ pay and standards of performance

As required by the Water Act 2003 and Regulatory Accounting Guidance from Ofwat, additiona! information i1s
given below regarding the remuneration of the directors of SWS

Executive directors who served during the 2015-16 year are shown below

Matthew Wright Chief Executive Officer {CEO)
Michael Carmedy Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Details are given below of the remuneration policy for the directors of SWS and the amounts paid to them in the
year ended 31 March 2016

Michael Carmedy resigned from the business on 31 March 2016 and we have appointed William Lambe to the role
of Chief Financial Officer with effect from 3 May 2016
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Remuneration Policy

Purpose

The remuneration policy of SWS applies to all its employees The Board of Directors has adopted the remuneration
policy at the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee The policy applies to remuneration eamed from 1
Apnl 2015

The policy reflects the Board's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained and long-term value
creation for shareholders In addition, it ensures that

+ SWS s able to attract, develop and retain high-performing and motivated employees in a competitive
market

+  Employees are offered a competitive and market median-aligned remuneration package which
balances the fixed and variable remuneration components according to job role

*  Employees feel encouraged to create sustainable results and that a link exists between
shareholdersfcustomers and employees’ interests

The policy focuses on ensuring sound and effective nsk management through

* A strningent governance structure for setling goals and communicating these goals to employees

= Algnment with our business strategy, values, key prionties and long-term goals

«  Alignment with the principle of protection of customers and investors ensuning prevention of conflict of
interests

Remuneraticn components

At an annual performance appraisal interview, iIndividual employees and managers evaluate and document
performance in the past year and set new goals The appraisal results in a decision regarding any adjustments
required to the employee's fixed salary or on annua! performance-based pay The vanous remuneration
components are combined to ensure an appropnate and balanced remuneration package

The five remuneration components are

«  Fixed remuneration (including fixed supplements)

*  Performance-based remuneration {vanable percentage of salary)
» Pension schemes, where applicable

s Other benefits in kind

* Severance payment, where applicable

The fixed remuneration I1s determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee, including
professional expenence, responsibility, job complexity and local market conditions

The performance-based remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who significantly contnbute to
sustatnable results, perform according to set expectations for the individual in question, strengthen long-term
customer relations and generate income and shareholder value

The Board of Directors has determined a maximum percentage of performance-based remuneration relative to the
fixed remuneration for the executive management positions This percentage vanes through the other management
levels of the organisation according to the type of posihion held by the employee and the business directorate in
which they are employed The general maximum iimit on vanable remuneration remains at seventy per cent of
fixed salary inctusive of pension The only exceptions are the CEQ (one hundred per cent) and the CFO (eighty per
cent) Performance-based remuneration 1s disbursed as a cash bonus Executive directors are covered by two
times salary death in service benefit within their contract of employment

The defined benefit pension scheme, which was closed to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2005, guarantees employees a
four imes salary cover for death in service and pension payment on retrement after the age of 55 In general,
employees are covered by the defined benefits pension scheme or through the defined contnbution plans with a
pension insurance company The death in service cover for the defined contribution scheme 1S two times salary
The pension contnbutions of employees subject to collective bargaining agreements are regulated by the collective
agreement
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Other benefits are awarded on the basis of ndividual employment contracts and local market practice

Severance payments are payable in accordance with relevant legislaiton and applicable collective agreements
Severance payments may include vanable remuneration, pension or other benefits on a discretionary basis

The design of the total remuneration package for the executive directors ensures that a substantial proportion of

the maximum opportunity 1s dependent on performance Based on the value of the 2015-18 Long-Term Incentive
Plan award and achievement of stretch performance against targets and personal objectives for the annual bonus,
the total annual remuneration charged to the company i1s weighted at around 60 per cent performance-retated and

40 per cent non-performance-related for the CEO and 55 per cent performance-related and 45 per cent non-

performance-related for the CFO

The table below summarises the elements of our executive directors’ remuneration package and our policy for

each item

Element of
remuneration

Purpose and
link to strategy

Takes into
account
experience and
personai
contribution to
our strategy and
performance

Base salary

Attracts and
retains
executives of
the qualty
required to
deliver our
strategy

Drives and
rewards
performance
against personal
objectives and
selected
customer,
operational and
financial KPls
which are
directly linked to
business
strategy

Annual
incentive
scheme
(Bonus)

Policy and approach

= The base salary is a fixed figure and
does not vary in relation to business or
individual performance

= Reviewed annually with changes
effective from 1 July if applicable

= Consideration given to individual and
company performance

= Generat pay increases to all
employees taken into consideratton

= Aim to pay within a mud-market range,
but may pay higher salaries to attract
and retain executives of the right
calibre or for out-perfermance by the
individual or company
Referenced against UK compantes of
a simtlar size, utility companies and
other water compantes

» The performance measures included
within the annuai bonus scheme are
selected to ensure that we are focused
on our strategic objectives

= The balance and nature of the
objectives is reviewed annually

= A ‘bonus pool’ 1s created at a
corporate level based on the
achievement of the company against
these objectives and any individual
payment 1s based on personal
performance

* The KPIs for 2015-16 are shown on
page 92

» The threshaold, mid-point and stretch
targets are established annually by the
RemCom, making sure they are

Opportunity
2016-17

Base salary No

Increases are

applied in kne |
with the

annual review

Maximum No
percentage of
salary — shown

in table on

page 92
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sufficiently stretching while also
recognising the nature and nsk profile
of the company

= Where applicable, between 60 and 80
per cent of the bonus pool is created
for achieving the rmid-point target and
100 per cent for achteving the stretch
target

= RemCom has discretion to amend or
withdraw payments based on the
consideration of other factors which
could significantly affect business
performance

Long-Term Aligns interests = The current scheme was introduced The No
incentive of executives, on 1 April 2015 and covers a three- annualsed
Plan {LTIP} customers and year performance penod to 31 March maximum
shareholders 2018 award for each
« Subject to continuing employment director is
over the three-year penod
= |f the participant resigns durnng the CEO
period then participation in the scheme £328k
will lapse
= The RemCom has the discretion to CEO
make awards for ‘good’ leavers as
£192k
appropnate subject to performance
Pension Defined » A company contnbution into a defined  Contribution No
contnbution contribution scheme, or of
scheme = A cash allowance In lieu of pension CEO
minimses the
nsk to the 18%
company
associated with
defined benefit CFo
pension plans 15%
Other Provides market = Car aflowance Based on No
benefits competitive = Health cover individuat
benefits circumstances

= Disturbance or relocation allowances

A basic pay increase of 1 5 per cent for Matthew Wnght for 2016-17 was approved in May 2016 and will be
applicable to his basic salary with effect from 1 July 2016 This 1s in hine with the average pay increase for the
remarnder of staff in the business

The terms of the contracts for the executive directors require notice periods of 12 months by both parties for
Matthew Wnght and Wilham Lambe ! the notice pertod 1s worked, no termination payment 1s payable, otherwise a
payment up to a maximum equivalent to the notice penod of basic salary, plus pension and car allowance 1s
payable
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Annual remuneration report
Details of the remuneration received by the executive directors are shown below

Directors’ remuneration for 2015-16

Benefits Annual LTIP DC pension Total

Bonus award contribution /! | including
2015-18 compensation pension

Matthew Wright 364 4 127 2732 - 650 3 656 7159
Michael Carmedy 2558 129 153 4 - 4219 383 460.2

Directors’' remuneration for 2014-15

Benefits | Annual LTIP DC pension Total

Bonus award contribution !/ | including
2011-15 compensation pension

Matthew Wright 3565 1256 2266 1,2500 1,844.6 68 4 1,913.0
Michael Carmedy 249 4 113 1397 3132 713.6 374 751.0

A Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) was in place for the period from 2011 to 2015 The Remuneration Committee
constdered performance against this in Aprl 2015 and agreed for the payments disclosed in 2014-15 to be made
in June 2015 These payments are single one-off payments and cover the performance over the four years of the
LTIP

The Chairman and the independent non-executive directors each receive a fee and do not participate in any of our
performance-related incentive arrangements The investor-nominated non-executive directors do not receive any
remuneraticn from the company

Details of the emoluments received by the Chairman and non-executive directors are shown below

2015-16 201415

Robert Jennings {Chairman) 2250 11 2261 2250 08 2259
Paul Sheffield 567 04 571 417 - 1.7
Rosemary Boot 500 07 50.7 42 - 4.2
Bill Tame 500 04 504 125 - 125
Lisa Harrington 500 04 504 - - -
Dawvid Golden 150 70 220 600 24 4 84.4
Robert Armstrong - - - 417 88 50.5
Cheryl Black - - - 417 80 49.7

Bronte Somes - - -
Mark Walters - - - - - -

Paul Moy - - -
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The other amounts payable to the non-executive directors include taxable expenses incurred in the attendance at
Board meetings, together with payments to David Golden for consultancy services provided separately to his dutes
as the senior iIndependent non-executive director

None of the directors who held office duning the financial year had any disclosable interests i the shares of
Southemn Water or the group, there are no share options in place and no payments were made to them by any
other group companies

Annual performance-related incentive scheme

Qur incentive scheme focuses on the achrevement of specific strategic goals which are designed to dnve
exceptional customer service, financial and operational performance The struciure of the scheme and specific
target cnitena, both used for the creation of a bonus pool and individual objectives, are set and reviewed on an
annual basis by the RemCom The bonus pool targets for 2015-16 were set and approved in June 2015

A balanced scorecard approach was used for the creation of the bonus pool Four measures were used in the
scorecard cash collection, operational expenditure (Opex), Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM - quahtative
ranking) and Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODIs) The weighting of each was set equally at 25 per cent to balance
the financial, operationat and customer focus of the company

Performance-based remuneration 1s awarded in 2 manner which promotes sound nsk management and does not
induce excessive nsk-taking Performance-based pay 1s granted to reftect our financial results, the results of the
business directorate in which the employee ts employed and the individual employee's performance Further, both
financial and non-financial factors shall be taken into consideration when determining the individual’s bonus, 1 e
compliance with internal guidehines and procedures, including customer and investor-related guidelines A
discretionary assessment I1s always made to ensure that other factors, including facters which are not directly
measurable, are considered, including maintaining and promoting corporate values

Performance-based pay is granted to employees with particular influence on cur results and shareholder value As
an overall starting point, we ensure a balanced split between fixed salary and vanable pay

Details of the targets agreed by the RemCom for 2015-16 together with the maximum bonus opportunity available
to each executive director are shown in the table below The performance for 2015-16 was assessed in May 2016
by the RemCom and the achievement against each target together with the personal achievement level and
payments made in relation to 201516 are also shown below
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Achievement
2015-16

Performance measure Weight for
2015-16

bonus pool) bonus pool}

|
|
%
(as % of ' (as % of

Service standards Deliver a targeted improvement in the Service
incentive Mechanism quaitative score for 2015
16

Purpose - to deliver sigmficant improvements in
customer service performance

Measure — Ofwat SIM qualitative score

25% 0%

Qutcome delivery  ODls target the pnonty improvement areas for
Incentives customers through the attachment of financial
incentives to ODIs, mostly in the form of penalties

Purpose — to maintain Asset Heaith by focusing 25% 25%
on the avoidance of annual Ofwat penalties

Measure — the avoidance of annual Asset Health
penaltes across all of the ODI measures

Cash collection Collect a targeted level of cash receipts from
unmeasured and measured customers

Purpose — to ensure gooed financial performance

and provtde ocur customers with an affordable 25% 25%
service and our ulimate shareholders with a

return on their investiment

Measure ~ financial information from the accounts
Operating costs Operate the business within a targeted level of
total operational expenditure

Purpose — to ensure good financial performance

and provide our customers with an affordable 25% 25%
service and our uitimate shareholders with a

return on their investment

Measure — financal information from the accounts

Bonus 2015-16 Matthew Wright Michael Carmedy

Maxtmum bonus opportunity (% of base salary) 100% 80%
Percentage of maximum bonus awarded 75% 75%
Bonus percentage awarded based on perscnal o o

performance (% of base salary) 75% 60%
Base salary (£'000) £364 4 £2556
Bonus paid (£'000) £273 2 £1534

The RemCom has agreed to continue the scheme in 2016—17 and has set the performance measures and
weightings for inclusion in the balance scorecard approach as cash collection 15 per cent, operational expenditure
(Opex) 15 per cent, bad debt provision charge 20 per cent, Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) 25 per cent and
Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODIs) 25 per cent
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Long-Term Incentive Plan

The LTIP for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 was agreed by the RemCom in June 2015 The scheme will
be a three-year rolling scheme, with overlap, to provide a balanced payment profile equally rewarding customer
service dekvery and value to the shareholders

Performance payments under the LTIP will be based on the performance measures shown below

Performance measure

Total shareholder  Our achievement of a mimimum level of shareholder return

return as measured using an agreed company valuation model
that reflects a combination of value appreciation and
distribution yield to shareholders

50%

AMPGE delivery Qur achhevement of AMPE Delivery Plan efficiencies,

plan consistent with the management team’s plans for delivering
the required transformation in organisational structure,
commercial arrangements, expenditure efficiencies and
operational performance The metric s designad to reward
out-performance relative to the 2014 Final Determination

25%

Service incentive  The Company’s SIM ranking (quahitative score} published

Mechanism 2016 by The Water Services Regulation Authorty for the year

-17 ending 31 March 2017, measured aganst the other 0
seventeen English and Welsh Water Only and Water and 12 5%
Sewerage Companies (WOCs and WaSCs)

Service Incentive  The Company’s SIM ranking (quahtative score) published

Mechanism 2017 by The Water Services Regulation Authonty for the year

-18 ending 31 March 2018, measured against the other 12 5%
seventeen Enghsh and Welsh Water Only and Water and
Sewerage Companies (WOCs and WaSCs)

Total maximum/actual award 100%

To date no payments have been made in relation to this scheme An accrual has been made in the accounts for
2015-16 in anticipation of the final award under the LTIP The value of the accrual for the first year of the scheme
1s shown below

Matthew Wnght — accrual at March 2016 £193k
Actual performance against the scheme will be assessed in 2018-19 and the value of any award may differ from

the accruals made As Michael Carmedy resigned from the company on 31 March 2016 he 1s no longer eligible to
participate in the scheme and as such no accrual has been made in respect of his service duning 2015-16
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Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2016

The directors of Southern Water Services Limited (registered no 02366670) present their report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Principal activities

The principal activities of the company, also referred to as SWS, are the provision of water supply and wastewater
services In the South East of England The company I1s regulated by the Water Services Regulation Authority
(Ofwat) and supplies water to nearly 2 5 million people and provides wastewater services 1o nearly 4 6 million
people

Strategic report

The information that fulfils the requirement of the Strategic Report can be found in our Annual Report on pages 16
to 69

Future developments

The information regarding future developments of the company can be found in our Annual Report on pages 16 to
69

Results and dividends
The iIncome statement on page 98 shows the company’s results and profit for the year Further details are also
available in the Annual Report on pages 48 to 54

Intenm dividends of £812 37 per ordinary share (2014-15 £802 21 per share), totaling £45 5 milhon (2014-15
£44 9 milion} were paid during the year to Southern Water Services Group (SWSG) These dividends, along with
associated group tax relief of £11 4 milhon, enable SWSG to pay the interest of £56 9 million due to SWS on an
inter-company loan as disclosed in note 10 to the accounis

Ordinary dividends totalling £79 6 million, equivalent to £1,421 43 per share, (2014-15 £nil) were declared and
paid in the year These dividends were paid to our ulimate investors

Directors and their interests

The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2016 and up fo the date of signing the financial
statements were as follows and further details can be found on pages 64 to 68

Robert Jennings {Independent non-executive chairman)

Matthew Wright (Executive director — Chief Execulive Officer)

Michael Carmedy {Executive director — Chief Financial Officer) (resigned 31 March 2016)
David Golden (Senior Independent non-executive director) (resigned 23 June 2015)
Paul Sheffield (Senior independent non-executive director}

Rosemary Boot {Independent non-executive director)

Lisa Harnngton (Independent non-executive director) (appointed 1 Apnl 2015)

Bifl Tame (Independent non-executive director)

Bronte Somes (Non-executive director) {resigned 19 May 2(316)

Mark Walters (Non-executive director)

Paul Moy (Alternate non-executive director)

Andrew Truscotit (Alternate non-executive director)

None of the directors who held office dunng the financial year had any disclosable interests in the shares of the
company or the group

Research and development

The improvement of existing services and processes, together with the identfication and development of new
technology and innovalive solutions, are iImportant aspects of the company's strategy to enhance the quality of
service to customers and improve methods of working Research and development expenditure for the year
amounted to £0 7 milion (2014-15 £0 4 million)
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Financial risk management

The Financial Risk Management Policy Is included in the Strategic Report on pages 61 to 69

Employees

Empioyee invoivement. The company recognises the importance of its employees and 1s committed to effective
two-way communication and consultation

The company has established Business Involvement Groups to facilitate meaningfu! consultation between
company management and employees through elected employee representatives The groups meet regularly at
both a functional and company-wide level An employee survey 1s also completed on an annual basis to seek input
from employees

The company recognises the rights of every employee to join a trade union and participate in its activites SWS
has a single union agreement with Unison

The company publishes its own in-house newspaper, Southern Water News, on a regular basis General
information is posted on the company intranet and reguiar team briefing sessions are also held The information in
these publications and briefings covers a wide range of subjects that affect the business, including progress on
business and capital projects, the impact of regulatory 1ssues and wider financial and economic 1ssues that may
affect the company

Equal opportunity. The company's policy 1s to prcmote equahity of opportunity in recruitment, employment
continutty, training and career development The company takes full account of the needs of people with disabihties
and follows set policies and procedures to support reascnable adjustments in the workplace

Health, safety and wellbeing: The company recognises its duties to make proper provision for the health, safety
and weifare at work of its employees

Every employee receives a copy of the corporate policy statement on health and safety There are regular
meetings of employee representatives and managers to consider all aspects of health and safety In addition there
1s a Health and Safety Management Review Group which ensures that there 1s an adequate system for meeting the
company’s responsibiities for health and safety to its staff, customers and members of the public

SWS provides an internal occupational health service for employees, including the provision of physiotherapy
These services have been developed and are continuously reviewed to ensure they meet the needs of the
business and our employees at work

Disabled employees: Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, beanng in
mind the abilittes of the applicant concerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort 1s
made to ensure that their employment with the company continues and that appropriate training 1s arranged It s
the policy of the company that the traiming, career development and promotion of disabled persons shouid, as far
as possible, be identical to that of other employees

Environmental 1ssues

The company 1s commuitted to meeting or improving upon legislative and regulatory environmental requirements
and codes of practice and aims to contain the environmental impact of its activities to a practticable minimum

The company's environmental performance is reported on pages 37 to 42 The company recognises Its
responsibility to operate within a framework that supports sustainable development and has established, where
possible, indicator targets which are measurable Performance against these targets 1s monitored and reported
regularly

Political donations
No political donations were made

Land and buildings

In the opinion of the directors, the market value of land 1s significantly more than its book value However, it would
not be practicable to quantify the difference precisely
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Going concern

The directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the company has sufficient resources for its present
requirements and, therefore, consider it appropnate to adopt the going concern basts in prepanng the financial
statements to 31 March 2016

In forming this assessment the directors have considered the following information

* The company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future devetopment,
performance and position, which are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 16 to 69

* The financial position of the company, its cash flows, iquidity pesition, covenants and borrowing facilities,
which are descnibed in the Financial Performance review on pages 48 to 59

* The company has avatilable a combination of cash and commutted undrawn bank facilites totalling £357 9
milion at 31 March 2016 (2015 £523 4 million) These funds are sufficient to fund the operating and capital
investment achvities of the company for the 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements

« The company operates in an industry that i1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competition Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutary obhigation to set price hmits that it belleves will
enable the water companies {o finance their activities

As a consequence, the directors believe that the company 1s well placed to manage its business nisks successfully

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In
preparnng the annual financial statements

Viability statement

In accordance with provision C 2 2 of the 2014 UK Code, the Board have assessed the prospects of the company
over a longer period than the 12 months required by the ‘Going Concern’ provision Details of their assessment and
the associated viability statement can be found on page 60 of this report

Qualifying third party indemnity

Following shareholder approval, the company has ailso provided an indemnity for its directors and the Company
Secretary, which 1s a qualifying third party indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Repart and the financial statements
In accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for thal penod In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

+ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

« State whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financtal statements

= Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the
company will continue 1n bustness

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accouniing records that are sufficient to show and explam the
company's transaciions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention
and detectien of fraud and other nreguianties
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The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included
on the company's website Legisiatton in the Umited Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemnation of
financial statements may differ from legtslation in other junsdictions

Responsibitity statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

= the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true
and farr view of the assets, labilities, financial positon and profit or loss of the company

+ the management report, which 1s incorporated into the Strategic Report, includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the company, together with a descnption
of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who i1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that
(1) So far as the director 1s aware, there Is no retevant audit information of which the company’s auditor 1s unaware

(2) Hefshe has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Auditor

Detoitte LLP has ndicated its willingness to continue in office
Approved by the Beoard of Directors and signed by order of the Board

J SV et

Joanne Statton
Company Secretary
28 June 2016
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Financial statements

Income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2015
£m

826 2

12

(273 1)
(222 8)

(495 9)

3316

13

58 2
(150 1)
(130 3)

(222 2)

1106

(17 0)

Note 2016
£m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 803.7
Other operating iIncome 4 17
Qperating costs
- before depreciation and amortisation {286 3)
- Depreciation and amortisation (234.6)
Totat operating costs {520.9)
Operating profit 5 284.5
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 04
Finance income 593
Finance costs {145 5)
Fair value losses on denvative financial instruments 20 {70 4)
Net finance costs 8 {156 6)
Profit hefore taxation 5 1283
Tax on profit 9 (8 4)
Profit for the financial year 1199

93 6

The notes on pages 103 to 144 form part of these financial statements
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Statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive incomel/{expense):

Items that cannot be reclassified to profit or loss:

Actuanial loss on pension scheme

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension lability

Deferred tax movement due to rate change on FRS 101 transition
fair value uphft

Total other comprehensive income/{expense) for the year, net
of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the
owner of the company

Note

27

2016 2015
£m £m
1199 936
{14 0) (37 4)
28 75
186 -
74 {29 9)
1273 637
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2016

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current assets
Investments

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivabies
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Non-current habilities
Borrowings

Denvative financial instruments
Deferred tax habilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Prowvisions for liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Share premium account
Revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Note

11
12
13
14

15
16

24
25

2016 2015
£m £m
420 42 9
5,607 5 5,6002
8123 8123
292 292
6,491 0 6,484 6
24 22
192 3 2205
179 173 5
2126 3962
6,703 6 6,880 8
{188 1) (209 1)
(88 9) (38 9)
{277 0) (248 O}
(3,631 8) (3,569 3)
{923.7) (1,151 7)
{365 0) (398 2)
{102 3) (115 3)
(0 5) (05)
(43.5) (40 2)
{5,066 8) (5,275 2)
{5,343.8) (5,523 2)
1,359 8 1,357 6
01 01
463 46 3
7451 757 3
568 3 5539
1,359.8 1,357 6

The financial statements of Southern Water Services Limited (Registered no 02366670) on pages 98 1o 144 were

approved by the Board and authonised for 1ssue on 28 June 2016 They were signed on its behalf by

WAL\ e

Willlam Lambe
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Balance at 1 April 2014 (UK GAAP)
Effect of restatement due to change
in accounting framework (note 31)
As restated

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive expense for
the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Equity dividends paid {Note 10)
Revaluation reserve transfer
Balance at 31 March 2015

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income for the
year

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Equity dividends paid (Note 10)
Revaluation reserve transfer
Balance at 31 March 2016

Calted up Share
share premium
capital account Revaluation Retained

(Note 24) (Note 25) reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m
0.1 46 3 - 994 8 1,041.2
- - 769 3 (471 7) 297 6
0.1 46 3 769 3 523.1 1,338 8
- - - 936 936
. - - (29 9) (29 9)
- - - 637 637
- - - (44 9) (44 9)

- {12 0) 120 -
0.1 46 3 757 3 553.9 1,357 6
- - - 1199 1199
- - - 74 74
- - - 127 3 127 3
- - - (125 1) (125 1)

- - {12 2) 122 -
01 46 3 745.1 568.3 1,359 8
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Cash from operating activiies
Tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt of grants and contnbutions

Sale of property, plant and equipment
Movement on loan to subsidiary

Net cash used in Iinvesting activities

Financing activities

Equity dividends paid

Interest pard

Preference share dividends

Payment of derivalive accretion

Repayments of obligations under finance leases
Issue costs of new loans

Proceeds of new loans

Net cash used In financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note

26

2016 2015
£m £m
4820 517 1
(15.1) (36 9)
466 9 4802
597 58 1
(237 9) (296 2)
(6 8) (17 7)
52 49
0.6 03
14 3 (17)
(164 9) (252 3)
(125.1) (44 9)
(132 5) (129 2)
(11.2) (107)
(298 4) (5 0)
(0.2) (01}
(02) -
1100 -
(457 6) (189 9)
(155.6) 380
1735 1355
179 1735
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding year,
are set out below

Basis of preparation

Southern Water Services Limited 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act The
address of the registered office 1s given on page 2 The nature of the company’s operations and its pnncipal
activities are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 16 to 69

The company meets the definition of a qualfying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued
by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) Accordingly, In the year ended 31 March 2016 the company has
changed its accounting framework from pre-2015 UK GAAP to FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' as
issued by the FRC and has, in doing so, applied the requirements of IFRS 1 ‘First Time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards’ paragraphs 6-33 and related appendices The principal accounting policies adopted
are set out in this Note 1

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with FRS 101 incorporating the Amendments to FRS 101
issued by the FRC in July 2015 and the amendments to Company law made by The Companies, Partnerships and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015 prior to their mandatory effective date of accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 The prior year financial statements were re-stated for matenal adjustments
on adoption of FRS 101 in the current year For more information see note 31

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concetn basis under the historical cost convention, except
for the revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment and financial instruments The company has elected to
use fair value as deemed cost on transition to IFRS to revalue property, plant and equipment, as permitted by IFRS
1 on first ime adoption of FRS 101 Financial instruments are measured at their fair vaiue at the end of each
reporting peried, as explained in the accounting policies below

Historcal cost 1s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the goods and
services

Farr value s the pnce that would be receved from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 1s directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique In estimating the farr value of an asset or a hability, the
company takes into account the charactenstics of the asset or hability as If market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or hability at the measurement date Fair value for measurement
purposes In these financial statements 1s determined on such a basis, except leasing transactions that are within
the scope of IAS 17 ‘Leases’, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 ‘Inventores’ or value tn use 1in 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, farr value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair vaiue measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or habilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date,

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted pnices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or rabihty, either directly or indirectly, and

+ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or iability

The financial statements contain information about Southern Water Services Limited (SWS) as an individual
company and do not contair consolidated financial information as the parent of subsidiary compamies The
company 1s exempl under Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated
financial statements as it and its subsidiary undertaking are included by full consclidation in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate holding company, Greensands Holdings Limited The group financial
statements of Greensands Holdings Limited are available to the public and can be obtained from our website

- - . Tt - - - - 103




Southern Water Annual Repert and Financial Statements 2015-16

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that
standard in relation to non-current assets held for sale, financial instruments, standards not yet effective and

related party transactions Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group financial statements of
Greensands Holdings Limited, the group accounts are available to the public and can be obtained from our

website

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs

As explained above, the company has adopted FRS 101 for the first tme in the current year As part of this
adoption, the following new and revised IFRSs have been adopted in the current year

Amendments to IAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statermnents

In May 2012 the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - 2011 made a
number of amendments to IFRSs The amendments that are relevant to the
company are the amendments to 1AS 1 regarding when a statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the preceding penod (third statement
of financial position} and the related notes are required to be presented The
amendments specify that a third statement of financial position 15 required
when a) an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in its financial
statements, and b) the retrospective application, restatement or
reclassification has a matenal effect on the information in the third statement
of financial positon The amendments specify that related notes are not
required to accompany the third statement of financial position

Subsequent to this in July 2015 the FRC issued further amendments to FRS
101 The principal amendments made were

a) A company transitioning to FRS 101 for the first time and applying
IFRS 1 First-time adoption of Internationat Reporting Standards, will
no longer be required to present an opening balance sheet at the
date of transition {although a reconcihiation of equity 1s still required),
and

b) There 1s now greater flexibility in the format of the profit and loss
account and balance sheet, such that entiies can choose to adopt a
presentation as If prepanng ‘IAS accounts’

These amendments have been adopted in preparation of these financial
statements and therefore no opening statement of financial position at the
date of transition being 1 April 2014 has been presented A reconciliation of
equity I1s provided in note 31 reflecting the impact of FRS 101 adoption
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value The company has applied IFRS 13 for the first ime in the current year IFRS
Measurement 13 establishes a single source of guidance for farr value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements The scope of IFRS 13 1s broad,
the fair value measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both financial
instrument items and nen-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS
17 ‘Leases’, and measurements that have some similanties to fair value but
are not fair value (e g net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value In use for mparrment assessment purposes)

{FRS 13 defines fair value as the pnice that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the pnincipal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditicns Fair value under IFRS 13 1s an exit price regardiess of whether
that price 1s directly observable or estimated using another valuation
techmique Also, IFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements,
however the company has taken advantage of the exemption provided under
FRS 101 from prowviding these disclosures

Going concern

The company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position, are
set out In the Strategic Report pages 16 to 69

The directors have undertaken a detailed review of the company's hquidity requirements compared with the cash
and facilities available, the financial covenant position including projections based on future forecasts, the current
ratings and financial nsk On the basis of therr assessment of the company’s financial position the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, being a perod of at least 12 months from the approval of these financial statements For this
reason they continue io adopt the going concern basis of accounting tn preparing the annual financial statements,
further details can be found in the directors’ report on page 94

in addibon and in accordance with provision C 2 2 of the 2014 UK Code, the Board have assessed the prospects of
the business over a longer penod than the 12 months required by the ‘Geing Concern’ provision

The Board has selected to conduct this review each year based on a rolling three-year penod and full details of the
assessment and the viability statement are set out within the Strategic Report on page 60

Segmental reporting

The company’s revenue arises from the provision of services within the United Kingdom It has a large and diverse
customer base and 1s not rehant on any single customer

The Scuthern Water Board and management team review all internal management information on a single
segment basis and accordingly no segmental information s provided in this report
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 Accounting policies {continued}
Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the income receivable (net of value added tax) in the ordinary course of business for goods
and services provided In respect of unbilled charges, revenue includes an estimate of the consumption between
the date of the last meter reading and the penod-end The revenue accrual 1s estimated using & defined
methodology based upon historical billing, consumption information and the applicable tanff

Revenue from the supply of services represents the value of services provided under contracts to the extent that
there 1s a nght to consideration and Is recorded at the fair value of the consideration due Revenue Is recognised
when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the econemic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the company Revenue is not recogmised when it 1s considered probable that
economic benefits will not be received In these circumstances revenue Is only recognised when collectabiiity is
reasonably certain Payments received in advance of revenue recognition are recorded as deferred income

Unmetered income 1s based on either the rateable value of the property or on an assessed volume of water
supplied Metered income 1s based on actual or estimated water consumphon

Interest income 1s recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method

Dividend income from investments 1s recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that 1t is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably)

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

The bad debt provision is calculated by applying estimated recovery rates to various categories of debt, reflecting
past collections experience and expectations of future recovery of outstanding receivables at the date of the
statement of financial posttion

Taxation
The taxation charge in the income statement represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current taxation is based on the profit for the year as adjusted for disallowable and non-taxable items and items of
income or expense which are taxable or deductible in other years The company’s liability for current tax i1s
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Deferred taxation I1s tax expected to be payable on temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for
taxation and accounting purposes Deferred taxation 1s provided on all temporary-differences that have oniginated,
but not reversed, by the end of the reporting period It 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability 1s settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s regarded as probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utihsed

Deferred tax assets and hiabilities are offset when there ts a legally enforceable nght o set off current tax assets
agamst current tax habihties and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authornty and the
company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost less subsequent amortisation and any impairment Amortisation of
intangible assets I1s calculated on a straight ine basis over the estimated useful hves, which are pnmanly three to
10 years The estimated useful ife and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting peniod, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis

Expenditure on research actvities 1s recognised as an expense in the period in which it 1s incurred
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment comprises

| Freehold {and and buildings - compnsing land and non-operational buldings

] Infrastructure assets — comprising a network of systems consisting of mains and sewers,
impounding and pumped raw water storage reservorrs, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls

]| Plant and machinery — comprnising structures at sites used for water and wastewater treatment,
pumping or storage where not classed as infrastructure along with associated fixed plant

v Other assels — compnsing vehicles, computers, mobile plant and meters

v Assels under construction

All property, plant and equipment is stated in the statement of financial pesttion at cost or at deemed cost on
transition to FRS 101, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses Further details surrounding the fair value exercise can be found in note 31 {1)

The difference between depreciation based an the fair valued carrying amounts of assets and depreciation based
on the asset's onginal cost s transferred annually from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings through equity
The costs of repars to the infrastructure network are recognised in the income statement as they anse

Expenditure which results in replacement or renewal of infrastructure or enhancements to the operating capabilty
of the infrastructure network 1s capitalised

Items of property, plant and equipment that are transferred to the company from customers or developers are
inthially recognised at fair value Iin accordance with IFRIC 18 ‘Transfers of Assets from Customers’ The
corresponding credit 1s recorded as deferred iIncome and released to other Income over the expected useful lives of
the related assets

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the construction of qualifying assets, that necessanly take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised dunng the penod of time that 1s required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use The commencement of capitalisation begins when both
finance costs and expenditures for the asset are being incurred and activities that are necessary to get the asset
ready for use are (n progress Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the achvities that are necessary to get
the asset ready for use are complete Other borrowing costs are expensed

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropnate,
only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repars and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement as incurred

Freehold land 1s not depreciated, nor are assets in the course of construction untif they are commissioned

Commissioning 1s deemed to occur when a new works 15 officially taken over from the contractor following
completion of performance and take-over tests
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Other assets are depreciated on a straight-ine basis over their estimated operating lives which are principally as
follows

Non-infrastructure assets Years Infrastructure assefs Years
Buildings 10-60 Water mains 100-120
Operational structures 15-80 Sewers 80-200
Fixed plant 10-40 Reservours 200
Vehicles, computers and mobile plant 3-10 Ancillary structures 10-70

Operational structures are assets used for wastewater and water treatment purposes These include water tanks
and similar assets

The estimated useful ives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting pernod, with the
effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective basis

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting penod, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets, to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assels have suffered an imparrment loss If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (If any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use

If the recoverable amount of an asset 1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset I1s reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s recogmised immediately in the iIncome statement,
unless the relevant asset ts carmed at a revalued amount, i which case the impairment loss I1s treated as a
revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogmised for the asset in prior years A reversal
of an mpairment loss I1s recognised immediately in the profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 1s carred at a
revalued amount, In which case the reversal of the impairment loss 1s freated as a revaluation increase
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Grants and contributions

Grant and contrnibutions received are treated as either revenue or deferred income in ine with iIFRIC 18 as defined
by the nature of the receipt

Infrastructure receipts, contnbutions received following new connections towards enhancing the network, are
recognised as revenue when they are recevable

Grants and contributions receivable in respect of non-current assets are treated as deferred income and released
to other income over the useful economic life of those fixed assets

Grants and contributions recerved in respect of new connections to the water and sewerage networks are treated
as deferred income and released to revenue in line with the expected expenditure they are intended to
compensate

Grants and coniributions which are given in compensatton for expenses incurred with no future refated costs are
recognised in revenue in the penod that they become receivable

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The company as lessee

Where the company enters Into a lease which entails taking substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership of
an assel, the lease I1s treated as a ‘finance lease’ Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
company at their fair value or, If lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease The asset 1s recarded in the statement of financial position as a non-current asset and 1s
depreciated over its estimated useful life or the term of the lease, whichever 1s shorter Future liabilities to the
lessor under such leases, net of finance charges, are included within creditors Rentals payable are apportioned
between the finance element, which 1s charged to the income statement, and the capital element which reduces the
outstanding obligation for future instalments

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-hne basis over
the penod of the lease

Sale and leaseback transactions occur when an asset 1s sold but use 1s iImmediately re-acquired by entenng into a
lease with the buyer Where the new lease is an operating lease, the transaction I1s treated as the disposal of an
asset and the operating lease accounted for in accardance with existing policies

The company as lessor

The sale of iIncome nights relating to aenal masts and sites owned by the company to third parties i1s treated as an

operating lease Income received from such sales is received entirely in advance and is therefore taken to deferred
revenue and credited to other operating income n the income statement over the Iife of the lease
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1 Accounting policies (continued}
Non-current asset iInvestments

Investments held as non-current assets, including investments in subsidiaries, are stated at cost, less where
appropnate, provision for any impairment in value The carrying values of non-current asset investments are
reviewed for impaiwrment in penods If events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable

Inventories

Inventory is held for use in the production of water supply and treatment of wastewater Raw matenals and work In
progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling pnce,
less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distnbution

Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue includes monies received from customers where the related service has not yet been provided

Amounts are deferred to the statement of financial position and released to the income statement In ine with the
peniod of the service provided

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it 1s probable that the company wilt be required to settle that obligation and a rehable estimate can he made
of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting penod, taking into account the nsks and uncertainttes surrounding the
obligation Where a provision 1s measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount 1s the present value of those cash fiows

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable 1s recognised as an asset If it 1s wirtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably

An environmental provision is made for the costs relating to decommussioned or dormant assets which have been
identified as having an environmental impact

Retirement benefits

SWS operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
company in iIndependently administered funds An independent actuary conducts a valuation of this pension
scheme every three years

The lability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme 1s the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the penod less the fair value of plan assets The current
service cost, which 1s the increase in the present value of the llabilities of the company’s defined benefit pension
scheme expected to anse from employee service In the period, 1s charged 1o operating costs The nel interest on
the scheme's net assets/(llabilities) 1s included in other finance charges Actuanal gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of other comprehensive iIncome
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Retirement benefits (continued)

The pension cost under IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ 1s assessed in accordance with the advice of a firm of
actuaries based on the latest actuanal valuation and assumptions determined by the actuary The assumptions are
based on information suppled to the actuary by the company, supplemented by discussions between the actuary
and management The assumptions are disclosed in note 27

Profit before taxation and net assets are affected by the actuanai assumptions used The key assumptions include
discount rates, pay growth, mortality and increases to pensions in payment and deferred pensions, and may differ
from actual resuits due to changing market and economic conditions and longer or shorter lives of participants

The company alsc operates a defined contribution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the company in an independently administered fund Company contnbutions to the scheme are
charged to the income statement in the penod to which they relate Differences between contrnbutions actually paid
are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the statement of financial position

Frnancial instruments

Financial assets and financial ligbities are recognised in the company’s statement of financial position when the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets and financiat tabiliies are imitially measured at far value Transaction costs that are directly
attrtbutable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial hiabilities (other than financial assets and
financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial habilities, as appropnate, on initial recognition Transaction costs directly attnbutable to
the acquisihon of financial assets or financial habilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss

Financial assets

(0] Loans and receivables
Trade recewvables, loans, and other receivabies that have fixed or determinabte payments that are not
quoted In an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’ Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment interest income 1s recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recogmtion of interest would
be immatenal

()  Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date Financial assets are impaired where there 1s objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the imitial recognition of the financia! asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected

Far financial assets camed at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment 1s the differences between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s onginal effective interest rate The carrying amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account

{m) Derecognition of financial assets
The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash fiows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity On derecognition of a financial asset the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and recervable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised Iin other comprehensive income and accumulated 1n equity 1s recognised in profit
or loss
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities

Fixed rate interest-bearing borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effechive interest method, with the interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial hability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropnate, a shorter peried, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition

Issue costs in relation to index-hnked and vanable rate bands are separately disclosed within creditors

The carrying value of index-linked debt instruments 1s adjusted for the annual movement in the retaid pnce index
The change in value ansing from indexation s charged or credited to the income statement in the year in which it
arises

Premiums and proceeds from gilt lock agreements received on issue of debt instruments are credited te the income
statement over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount

Derecognition of financial habilities

The company derecognises financial habilies when, and only when, the company’s obhgations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire

Derivative financial instruments

1
|
The company enters into a vanety of denvative financial instruments to manage its exposure to inflation and ‘
interest rate nsk m line with the company's rnisk management policy and no speculative trading in financial ‘
instruments 1s undertaken Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 20

Derivatives are ntially recognised at farr value at the date a denvative cantract 1s entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their farr value at the end of each reporting pencd The resulting gamn or loss 1S
recognised in the income statement immediately

Certain denvative instruments, principally index-linked swaps, do not qualfy for hedge accounting and as such, the
company does not currently apply hedge accounting

Denvatives with a positive fair value and denvatives with a negative fair value are set-off against each other with
the net posttion betng presented as either a financial hability or financial asset A denvative Is presented as a non-
current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining matunty of the instrument 1s more than 12 months and it1s
not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months Other denivatives are presented as current assets or
current habilities

Embedded dernvatives

Dernvatives embedded n other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at fair value through profit and loss

An embedded denvative I1s presented as a non-current assef or a non-current hability if the remaining matunty of

the hybnd instrument to which the embedded denvative relates 1s more than 12 months and I1s not expected to be
realised or settled within 12 months Other dervatives are presented as current assets or current habiliies

112




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of esttmation uncertainty

In the application of the company's accounting policies, which are descnbed in note 1 above, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histoncal
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewvisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the penod in which the estimate 1s revised If the reviston affects only that penod, or in the penod
of the revision and future penods if the revision affects both current and future periods

Cntical judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements that the directors have made in the process of applying the company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements

() Measured income accrual
The measured income accrual 1s an estimation of the amount of water and wastewater unbilted at the period
end The accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based upon histoncal bilhing and consumption
information and the applicable tanff The calculation 1s sensitive to estimated consumption for measured
customers

(il Revenue recognition and allowance for doubtful receivables
The company recognises revenue generally at the tme of delivery and when collection of the resuiting
recelvable 1s reasonably assured When the company considers that the criteria for revenue recognition are
not met for a transaction, revenue recognition 1s delayed until such time as collectability 1s reasonabty
assured Payments received In advance of revenue recognition are recorded as deferred income

At each reporting date, the company evaluates the recoverability of trade receivables and records an
allowance for doubtful receivables based on experience This allowance 1s based on, amongst other things,
a consideration of actual coltection history The actual level of receivables collected may differ from the
estimated levels of recovery, which coutd impact future operating results positively or negatively

(m} Pensions
The company operates a defined benefit scheme as well as a defined contribution scheme Under IAS 19
‘Employee Benefits' the company has recognised an actuanal loss of £14 0 million (2015 loss of £37 4
millon) The main assumptions are set out in note 27 of the financial stalements

(iv) Property, plant and equipment
The company recognises property, plant and equipment (PPE) on its water and wastewater infrastructure
assets where such expenditure enhances a significant length of the network or increases the capacity of the
network, whereas any expenditure classed as maintenance i1s expensed in the penod it 1s incurred
Determining enhancement from maintenance expenditure Is a subjective area, particularly when assessing
whether the length of network replaced enhances the network In addition, management capitalise time and
resources incurred by the company’s support functions on capital programmes

The estimated useful economic lives of PPE are based on management's jJudgement and expenence When
management identifies that actual useful economic lives differ materially from the estimates used to calculate
depreciation, that charge 15 adjusted prospectively Due to the significance of PPE investment to the
company, variations between actual and estimated useful economic tives could impact operating results both
positively and negatively, although historically few changes to estimated useful economic lives have been
required
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2 Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

{v) Financial instruments
The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded i an active market (for example, over-the-
counter denivatives) Is determined using valuation techniques

The company uses its judgement to select the most appropriate valuation method for each instrument to
estimate expected future cash flows, and apply discount rates that reflect counterparty credit nsk The
valuation techniques are descnbed In note 20

{vi) Taxation
The tax charge is based on the profit for the period and the tax rates in force at the end of the reporting
period Estimation of the tax charge involves an assessment of the potential tax treatment of certain items,
which will only be resolved once finally agreed with the tax authonties

3 Segmental analysis
The directors believe that the whole of SWS's activites constitute a single class of business The company’s
revenue 1s generated wholly from within the United Kingdom The Southern Water Board and management team

review all internal management mformation on a single segment basis and accordingly no segmental information 1s
provided In this report
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4 Revenue
An analysis of the company's revente Is as follows
Continuing operations

Water and sewerage services
Other services

Total revenue

Other operating Income

Interest receivable (note 8)

Interest revenue from Southern Water Services Group Limited

Total income

Other operating inceme includes rents receivable

5 Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)
Depreciation on

- owned assets
- assets held under finance leases

Amortisation of intangible assets included in other operating expenses
- other
Research and development expenditure

Rentais under operating leases
Vehicles

Employee costs {note 6)

Amortisation of grants and contnbutions (note 23)
Rates rebate (see note below)

Insurance proceeds (see note below)

Fees payable to the company’s auditor in respect of

- Statutory audst of the company’s financial statements
- Other services pursuant to legislation
- All other services

Audit related and non-audit services pnmarily relate to regulatory assurance fees, and other taxation and

professional fees

2016 2015
£m £fm
7590 7819
447 44 3
803.7 826 2
17 12
24 13
569 56 9
864 7 8856
2016 2015
£m £m
224.6 2124
1.3 13
225.9 2137
8.7 91
0.7 04
22 21
563 501
(11) (10)
{13 3) -
- (24)
02 02
01 01
07 05

Note During 2014-15 we received insurance praceeds totalling £2 4 million in relation to the storms expenenced

in the winter of 2013-14

The rates rebate of £13 3 milhion, received in 2015-16, relates to a refund of histonc rates charges

following a successful appeal
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6 Employee information

2016 2015
£m £m
(a) Employee costs (including directors’ emoluments).

Wages and salaries 77 4 696
Social secunty costs 71 65
Pension costs - Defined contribution 2.3 20

- Defined benefit 6.3 69

Total employee costs 93 1 850
Less charged as capital expenditure (36 8) (34 9)
Charged to the iIncome statement 56 3 50 1

Employee costs that are charged as capital expenditure are those directly related to the construction or
acquisition of assets

{b) Average number of persons employed by activity
The average monthly numbers of persons (Including executive directors) employed by the company dunng
the year was

2016 2015

Number Number

Operations 1,239 1,167
Customer services 378 422
Corporate centre 502 444
2,119 2,033

7 Directors’ emoluments

2016 2015

£000 £000

Aggregate emoluments (including benefits in kind) 1,529 1,464
Amounts receivable under long-term incentive plans - 1,563
Company pension contnbutions to money purchase pension schemes - -

No retirement benefits accrued to directors (2015 nil) under a Southern Water defined benefit scheme No
retirement benefits accrued to directors (2015 nil) under a Southern Water defined contnbution scheme

A long-term incentive plan (LTIP) was in operation for the four-year period from 1 Apnl 2011 to 31 March 2015 The
Remuneration Committee assessed performance agamst this plan in Apnl 2015 and agreed for the payments
shown above to be made in June 2015

A new LTIP has been put in place for the period from 1 Apni 2015 to 31 March 2018 To date no payments have
been made In relation to this scheme A total amount of £193,000 has been accrued in the accounts for 2015-16 in
relation to this scheme and this 1s attnbutable to the hughest paid director

Further detalls can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 84 to 93
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7 Directors’ emoluments {continued)

Details of emoluments and benefits for the highest paid director

Highest paid director’s aggregate emoluments and benefits
Amounts receivable under long-term incentive plans

2016 2015
£000 £000
716 663
- 1,250
716 1,913

During the year the company made contnbutions of £nil (2015 £nil) to a money purchase pension scheme In

respect of the highest paid direclor's qualifying services

8 Net finance costs

Finance income
Interest revenue from Southern Water Services Group Limited
Deposit income on short term bank deposits

Finance costs

Interest payable on other loans

interest paid to Southern Water Services (Finance) Ltd
Indexatton

Amortisation of Issue costs

Amortisation of gilt iock proceeds

Amortisation of deferred credits

Amortisation of bond premium

Other finance expense (note 27 pensions)

Dividends on preference shares — (see note (a) and (b) below)

Amounts capitalised on quahfying assets

Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments
Denvative financial instruments not designated as hedges

Net finance costs

2016 2015
£m £m
569 569
24 13
593 582
(6 1) (9 1)
(128 5) (119 7)
{10.0) (21 8)
{1.9) {19
0.1 01
97 97
06 06
(39) (40)
{11 2) {(107)
(151 2) {156 8}
57 67
(145.5) (150 1}
{70 4) (130 3)
(156.6) (222 2)

The interest revenue from Southern Water Services Group Limited relates to the long-term loan disclosed in note

13

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualifying assets dunng the year arose on the general borrowing pool and
are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4 00 per cent to expenditure on such assets (2015 3 99 per

cent)

Dividends on preference shares

{a) Class A1 preference share dividends amounted to £40 per share and Class B £70 per share totalling £9 0

milkon (2015 £9 0 million)

{b) Dividend due to the Class A2 preference shareholders of £67 35 (2015 £53 11) per share totalltng £2 2

milllon (2015 £1 7 milion) was declared and settled in the year at base value plus an amount for out-

performance and savings in the year ended 31 March 2015 (see note 19(vi})
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9 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2016 2015
£m £m

Current tax
Current year 14 95
Adjustment in respect of pnor years 88 31
Total current tax charge 20.2 126
Deferred tax’
Ongination and reversal of iming differences 97 58
Adjustment in respect of prior years 05 (14)
Effect of corporation tax rate change {22.0) -
Total deferred tax {credit)/charge (i1 8) 44
Total tax charge on profit 84 17 0

The tax assessed for the year 1s different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK due to the following
factors

2016 2015
£m £m
Profit before tax 128 3 1106
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 20 per cent (2015 21 per cent} 257 232
Permanent differences 24 29
Group rehef received for nil payment (7.0) (10 5)
Impact of tax rate changes {22 0) (03)
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Current tax 88 31
Deferred tax 05 (14)
Tax charge for year 84 170

Factors that may affect future tax charges

On 8 July 2015 the UK government announced reductions tn the main rate of corporation tax from 20 per cent to 19
per cent from 1 Apnl 2017 and 18 per cent from 1 Apnl 2020 These rate changes were enacted in the Finance Bill
2015 duning the year and deferred tax balances have been calculated using these reduced rates A £22 0 milkon
credit has been recogrised in the iIncome statement ta reflect the reduction In the deferred tax liability as a result of

the rate changes

A further credit of £18 6 milllon has been recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income to reflect the
reduction in the deferred tax liability as a result of the tax rate changes

On 16 March 2016 the UK government announced a further reduction in the future main rate of corporatton tax
from the planned 18 per cent, to a rate of 17 per cent, effective from 1 Apnl 2020, although this reduction was not
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Based on current capital investment plans, the company expects to continue to be able to claim capital allowances
in excess of depreciation In future years at a similar tevel to the current year
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9 Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)

In additton to the amount recognised in the iIncome statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been

recognised In the statement of other comprehensive income

Deferred tax

Ansing on Income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive iIncome
Tax credit on actuanal losses on defined benefit pension scheme

Deferred tax movement due to rate change on FRS 101 transition fair value
uphft

Total deferred tax credits recognised in other comprehensive income

10 Dividends

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Current year interim dividend of £812 37 (2015 £802 21) per share
Current year intenm dividend of £522 32 (2015 £nil) per share
Current year final dividend of £899 11 {2015 E£nil) per share

The interim dividends of £45 5 million are paid to Southern Water Services Group Limited {(SWSG) These

2016 2015
£m £m
{2 8) (75)
(18 6) -
(21 4) {7 5)
2016 2015
£m £m
455 449
292 -
504 -
1251 44 9

dividends, along with associated group tax relief, enable SWSG to pay the interest of £56 9 milhion due to Southern
Water Services Limited on an inter-company loan as disclosed in note 13 These transactions are illustrated in the

diagram on page 59 of the Annual Report

In addition a current year intenim dividend of £29 2 million was paid in September 2015 and a final dwidend of
£50 4 milhon was paid in March 2016 These dividends are ultmately paid to investors in our parent company

Greensands Holdings Ltd
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11 Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 Apnl 2015
Additions
Transfers

At 31 March 2016

Amortisation

At 1 Apnl 2015
Charge for the year
At 31 March 2016

Net book amount
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

We currently do not have any internally generated intangible assets

12 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 Apni 2015
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Depreciation

At 1 Apnl 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Net book amount
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

Externally generated
Assets
under
construction Computer Total
£m software £m
£m
202 48 2 68 4
68 03 71
(15 3) 16 0 07
117 645 76 2
- 255 255
- 87 87
- 342 342
117 303 42 0
202 227 42 9
Infra- Assets
Land & Plant & structure under
buildings machinery assets construction Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
1,633 2 27354 2,3946 254 0 569 4 7,486.6
10 67 8 228 124 4 183 2343
02 876 a9 {125 5) 271 07
- (29) - - (8 2) {11 1}
1,534 4 28879 24273 2529 606 6 7,709.1
6023 9452 287 - 3102 1,886 4
400 1106 274 - 479 2259
- 27) - - (8 0) (10 7)
642 3 1,053 1 56 1 - 350 1 2,101 6
8921 1,834.8 2,371 2 2529 256 5 5,607 5
9309 1,790 2 2,366 9 254 0 2592 5,600 2

120




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Freehold land 1s stated at a cost of £51 7 million at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2315 and ts not depreciated

Included within additions above 1s £5 7 million (2015 £6 7 mithon) of interest that has been capitalised on qualifying
assets In accordance with IAS 23 ‘Borrowing costs’ The cumulative net book value of the borrowing costs
capitalised amount to £167 7 million (2015 £168 5 millon) The company has elected to apply IAS 23 from 1 Apnl
2003, as permitted by the standard

Assets held under finance leases

Included in the amounts shown above are the following amounts in relation to property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases

2016 2015
£m £m
Net book amount at 31 March 59 51

In accordance with IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards', the company has
elected to measure its infrastructure and operational assets at 1 Apnl 2014, being the date of transition to IFRS, at
therr fair value and to use that fair value as their deemed cost at that date (see note 31)

13 Other non-current assets

2016 2015
Non-current receivables £m £m
Amounts owed by SWSG 812 3 812 3

Amounts owed by group undertakings represent a loan to Southern Water Services Group Limited which 1s
secured on the assets held under the Southern Water Services Group Security agreement and repayable on 31
July 2052 with interest payable at 7 per cent per annum

14 Investments

2016 2015
Shares In subsidiary Southern Water Services (Finance) Limited £m £m
At 1 Apnil and 31 March 29.2 292

The company has the following direct investments in subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2016

Registered Office Class of share capital _ Activity
Southem Water Services (Finance)} Ugland House, PO Box 309, Ordinary (100%} To raise debt
Ltd (SWSF) George Town, Grand Cayman finance
Southern Water Executive Pension  Southern House, Yeoman Road, Ordmnary (100%) Dormant
Scheme Trustees Limited Worthing
Southern Water Pension Trustees  Southern House, Yeoman Road, Ordinary (100%} Pormant
Limited Worthing

SWSF 1s registered in the UK for tax purposes

The directors are satisfied that the carrying value of the investment in SWSF 1s supported by the underlying assets
and activities of SWSF
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15 Inventories

Raw matenals
Work In progress

16 Trade and other receivables

Trade recervables
Provision for impairment
Net trade receivables

Loan to Southern Water Services (Finance) Limited
Amounts owed by other group undertakings

Other amounts receivable

Accrued income

Prepayments

2016 2015
£m £m
1.5 15
09 07
24 22

2016 2015
£m £m

198 5 2012
(111.9) (110 5)

866 907

08 151

40 29

6.2 64

801 888

14.6 16 6

192.3 2205

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and settled regularly

Accrued income as at 31 March 2016 includes water and sewerage income not yet billed of £73 1 million (2015

£81 0 milkon)

The directors consider that the carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasenable approximations of

therr farr values
(i} Provision for impairment

Movements on the doubtfui debts provision were as follows

At 1 Apnl

Charge for bad and doubtful debts
Amounts written off during the year
At 31 March

2016 2015
£m £m
(110 5) (121 5)
(21 5) (18 9)
20.1 299
{(111.9) (110 5)

At each reporting date, the company evaluates the recoverability of trade recervables and records allowances for

doubtful receivables based on expenence

The following table provides information regarding the ageing of receivables that are specifically provided for

Current

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

more than 4 years

2016 2015
£m £m
0.7 -
09 123
99 89
70 29

75 307

56 0 578

A collective provision i1s recorded against assets which are past due but for which no specific provision has been

made This 1s calculated based on histonical experience of levetls of recovery
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The aged analysis of recevables that were overdue at the reporting date but not individually provided for s as
follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Up to 90 days 201 232
91-365 days 36.4 44 2
1-2 years 30.3 259
2-3 years 195 148
3-4 years 125 98
more than 4 years 6.7 42
125.5 122 1
The amounts above are reconciled to gross and net debtors in the tables below
At 31 March 2016 Gross Proviston Net
£m £m £m
Not due 17.0 - 170
Overdue not specifically provided 1255 (55 9) 69.6
Overdue and specifically provided 56 0 {56 0) -
198 5 {111 9) 86 6
At 31 March 2015 Gross Provision Net
£m £m £m
Not due 213 - 213
Overdue nol specifically provided 122 1 (52 7) 694
Overdue and specifically provided 578 {67 8) -
2012 {110 5) 90 7
17 Trade and other payables
2016 2015
£m £m
Trade payables 13.7 270
Amounts owed to group undertakings 22.2 16 7
Capital creditors and capital accruals 59.3 687
Taxation and social secunty 28 24
Accruals and deferred revenue 90 1 94 3
188 1 209 14

The directors consider that the carrying values of trade and other payables are not matenally different from their fair
values

18 Current borrowings

2016 2015

£m £m

Debt 1ssue costs (note 19 (iv)) (19) (19)
Bond premium deferred 07 07
Deferred gilt lock proceeds {note 19 (v)) 01 01
Deferred proceeds 97 97

Term Facility Agreement 2014 £50m - 6-month Libor plus 0 5% 2016 50.0 -

Other loans from subsidiary SWSF 303 303
88 9 389
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19 Non-current borrowings

Note 2016 2015
£m £m

Loans from subsidiary SWSF 0]
Class A £350m - 6 202% fixed rate 2029 () 348 3 348 2
Class A £150m - 3 716% index hnked 2034 2177 2155
Class A £35m - 3 716% index linked 2034 501 498
Class A £350m - 6 650% fixed rate 2026 (1) 3485 348 4
Class A £150m - 3 826% index linked 2023 2177 2155
Class A £350m - 5 010% fixed rate 2021 (m 3478 347 4
Class A £150m - 5 010% fixed rate 2041 () 146.8 146 8
Class A £200m - 4 510% fixed rate 2052 (n 197 1 167 1
Ctass A £300m - 5 135% fixed rate 2056 (n) 2924 292 4
Class A £300m - 6 135% fixed rate 2019 (m 298 7 298 3
Artesian £165m - 4 086% index linked 2033 2395 237 1
Artesian £156 5m - 3 645% index inked 2032 2217 2194
Total Class A debt from SWSF 29263 29187
Class B £250m - 4 51% fixed rate 2022 (n), (m) 246 6 246 1
Debt 1ssue costs (v} (18 1) (19 8)
Bond premium deferred 109 i1 56
Deferred gilt lock proceeds (v} 5.1 53
Deferred proceeds” 1150 124 7
Other toans from subsidiary SWSF {w1) 303 303
Total loans and other borrowings from SWSF 3,316 1 3,3138
Class B, Term Facility Agreement 2014 £150m — 8-month Libor 1500 1500
plus 1 95% 2021
Class A, Term Facility Agreement 2016 £50m — 6-month Libor 50.0 -
ptus 0 5% 2016
Class A £60m — 0 0% index linked 2025 605 -
Class A1 Preference shares {vi1) 326 326
Class B Preference shares {vi) 1100 1100
Obligations under finance leases 156 18
Total borrowings 3,7207 3,608 2
Current borrowings 88.9 389
Non-current borrowings 3,631.8 3,569 3

*Deferred proceeds represent consideration received by the company in connection with taking on vanous debt abligations that
were “out of the money” at the time the debt obligations were entered into The deferred proceeds are amortised over the lives
of the related debt instruments

These loans (excluding the preference shares) are guaranteed and secured pursuant to a guarantee and secunty
agreement (the Secunty Agreement) The agreement Is over the entire property, assets, nghts and undertakings of
each of SWS, SWSF, SWS Holdings Limited, and SWS Group Holdings Limited In the case of SWS, this is to the
extent permitted by the Water Industry Act 1991 and Licence Further, the company has a contingent habiity
arising on certain inter-company financing arrangements which will have the effect that f certamn refinancing's do
not take place when the underlying instruments mature in 2021 to 2029, the company will make goad certain
obligations of its subsidiary SWSF The directors do not believe this to be likely and the hiability, if any, cannot
currently be quantified as it will depend wholly on the circumstances at the time of the matunty
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19 Non-current borrowings {continued)

Notes in respect of the specific instruments above

)

()

(m)

(v)

(v)

(v1)

(v}

Under the loan agreements between SWS and SWSF, SWSF advances an amount equal to each bond or
other debt raised at the same interest rate plus 0 01 per cent Therefore each individuai back-to-back inter-
company loan has been separately disclosed

Fixed rate borrowings are recognised net of 1ssue costs and discounts on issue and are carned at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

The interest rate on the Class B £250 milion 1s fixed at 4 51 per cent until March 2022 when it reverts to
Libor plus a margin to be determined with a premium of 0 01 per cent

Debt issue costs represent 1ssue fees paid to SWSF that are not otherwise accounted for within the
amortised cost of specific loans Where these costs are attributable to a specific instrument they are being
amortised over the life of that instrument The remaining costs are being amortised over the weighted
average life of the loans advanced at the time the costs were incurred As at 31 March 2016 debt issue
costs amounted to £18 1 milhon of which £1 9 milhon represents the short-term amount which 1s disciosed
separately in note 18

Prior to the 1ssue of the Class A £300 million bond in the year to 31 March 2008, SWSF entered into a gilt
lock agreement, resulting in the receipt of £6 3 milion, which was advanced to SWS along with the
proceeds of the bond issue The proceeds have been deferred in the financial statements of SWS and are
being released to the iIncome statement over the life of the loan

The loan from SWSF 1s unsecured, interest-free, and shall be repayable in whole or part upon demand at
any time, provided that
{a) On the date of such demand, no Class A debt is outstanding, no Class B debt is cutstanding and
no mezzanine debt 1s outstanding, or
{b} The consent of the Secunty Trustee Is given

The preference shares are redeemable at the option of SWS at any time

The Class A1 and B preference shares, which do not carry voting nights, were 1ssued on 23 July 2003, and
are redeemable at their nominal value plus the share premium paid, on 31 March 2038 or at the company’s
option anytime earlier Class A1 and B shares were 1ssued at £1,000 per share and the amounts received
totalled £260 0 million for both classes of shares Class A2 preference shares were issued for £0 01 per
share on 7 May 2003 and the amount received totalted £1,500 Class A2 shares, which do not carry voting
nghts, are aiso redeemable at nomina! value Shareholders are entitied to receive dividends annually as
follows

Class A1 — £40 per share

Class A2 - the base value dividend plus an amount for company out-performance and any savings arising
from any refinancing of the Mezzanine debt The base value 1s £nil per share increasing by £15 every five
years {Out-performance from 1 April 2007 onwards 1s the difference between Southern Water Services
Limited's audited ‘profit before interest and taxation’ and the targeted ‘profit before interest and taxation’ as
determined by Ofwat in the penodic review)
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19 Non-current borrowings {continued)

Class B - £70 per share
These dividends are payable on 31 March and 30 September each year

It 1s anticipated that a dividend will be declared and paid to the A2 preference shareholders in September
2016 for out-performance In the year ended 31 March 2016

On winding up the preference shareholders rank above ordinary sharehclders with the preference
shareholders being pad in order of Class A1, Class A2 then Class B

{(vin)  The Class A £60 million loan 1s index linked with an interest rate of 0 00 per cent until August 2025

Repayments fall due as follows: 2016 2015
£m £m

Borrowings excluding finance leases:
Between one and two years not by instalments -
Between two and five years not by mnstalments 646.5

After five years not by instalments 2,983 8 3,567 5
3,630.3 3,567 5
On demand or within one year not by instalments 88.9 389
3,719.2 3,606 4

Finance leases:

Between one and two years not by instalments 13 07
Between two and five years not by instalments 02 11
After five years not by instalments - -
1.5 18
On demand or within one year not by instalments - -
1.5 18
Borrowings including finance leases*
Between one and two years not by instalments 1.3 07
Between two and five years not by instalments 646.7 11
After five years not by instalments 2,983.8 3,567 5
3,631.8 3,569 3
On demand or within one year not by instalments 889 389
3,7207 3,608 2

Obligations under finance leases compnise optional residual value balloon payments due on vehicle leases at the
end of the lease period, where the mintmum lease payments (including finance charges) have been prepaid at the
start of the lease If the company opts nol to pay the balloon payment, it must return the vehicle to the lessor
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20 Derivative financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments at fair value

2016 2015
£m £m
Derivative assets carned at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Interest rate swaps — not hedge accounted 12.4 138
Total derivative financial assets 124 138
2016 2015
£m £m
Denvative hahilities carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Interest rate swaps — not hedge accounted (936 1) (1,165 5)
Total derivative financial liabilities (936.1) (1,165 5)

The denvative assets and habilities meet the offsetting crniteria in paragraph 42 of IAS 32 This results in the

presentation of a net denivative iability of £823 7 million in the statement of financial position

2016 2015
Changes in value of financial instruments at fair value £m £m
Profit for the year has been arnved at after charging/{crediting)
Financial assets at fair value (14) 43
Designated as FVTPL
Financial habilities at fair value (69 0) (134 6)
Designated as FVTPL
(70.4) {130 3)

The denvative hability has reduced by a further £298 4 million {2015 £5 0 million} due to payment of accrued

indexation assoclated with the swaps

The fair values of denvative instruments (interest rate swaps) at the reporting date are determined using quoted

pnces adjusted for credit nsk

The regulatory framework, under which revenues and the RCV are indexed, exposes the company to inflation nsk
The company enters into inflation linked derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to that nsk

Under interest rate swap contracts, the company agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate
interest amounts calculated on agreed notional pnncipal amounts Such contracts enable the company to mitigate

inflation nsk on 1ssued fixed rate debt held
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21 Deferred tax habiities

Deferred tax 1s provided as follows

At 1 Apnil 2014

(Credit)/charge to iIncome statement
Charge to other comprehensive income
At 1 Apnl 2015

(Credit)/charge to iIncome statement
Charge to other comprehensive income
Effect of change in tax rate

—-income statement

—other comprehensive income

At 31 March 2016

Revaluation

following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax batances (after offset) for financial reporing purposes

Deferred tax habilities
Deferred tax assets

22 Provision for liabilities

Environmental obligations

At 1 Apni
Utihsed in year

Accelerated of Retirement Other-
tax financial benefit timing
depreciation instruments  obligations  differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m
(565 3) 1532 181 (62) (4002)
(24 9) 207 {0 2) (11) {55)
- - 75 - 75
(590 2) 1739 254 (73) (3982)
(23 1) 100 (6 2) 91 (102)
- - 28 - 28
42 8 10 (2 2) (19 6) 220
18 6 - - - 18 6
{551 9} 184 9 198 (17 8} (3650}
Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset where the company has a legally enforceable nght to do so The
2016 2015
£m £m
(641 2} (590 0)
276.2 1918
(365 0) (398 2)
2016 2015
£Em £m
05 05
05 05

At 31 March

The envircnmental provision relates to management'’s best estmate for the decommissioning of abandoned sites
No reimbursement is expected The perniod over which the provision will be utiised cannot be determined thus the
provision 1s not discounted Discounting the provision would not matenally affect its value
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23 Other non-current liabilities

At 1 Apn! 2015

Recesvable in year

Released o iIncome statement
At 31 March 2016

These grants and contributions relate to property, plant and equipment

Deferred Grants & Total
Revenue contributions

£m £m £m

149 253 402

- 48 48

(04) (11) (15)

145 290 43 5

Deferred revenue £14 5 million (2015 £14 9 million) relates to the proceeds from the sale of iIncome nghts relating
to aenal masts and sites owned by SWS The income will be credited to the income statement evenly over the Iife

of the lease

24 Called up share capital

Equity shares
Authonsed
46,050,000 ordmary shares of £1 each

Allotted and fully paid
56,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

Non-equity shares
Issued

Preference shares

32,607 Class A1 shares of £1 each
32,607 Class A2 shares of £0 01 each
110,000 Class B shares of £1 each

2016 2015
£m £m
46 1 46 1
0.1 01
00 00
00 00
01 01

The redeemable preference shares are presented as a llability (see note 19} at an amount of £142 6 mithon
including share premium of £142 5 milion and accordingly are excluded from called up share capital in the balance
sheet The total statutory company share premium of £188 8 million includes ordinary share premium of £46 3

million
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25 Share premium account

Share
premium
£m
Balance at 1 Aprit and at 31 March 46 3
26 Notes to the statement of cash flows
2016 2015
Cash generated by operations £m £m
Continuing operations
Operating profit 2845 3315
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2259 2137
Amortisation of intangible assets 8.7 91
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions (31.0) (16 5)
Amortisation of grants and contributions (11) {(10)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 4870 536 8
Increase In inventories (0 2) (02)
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables 18 (16 6)
Decrease in payables (16.6) (29
Cash from operating activities 482.0 517 1
Tax paid (15 1) (36 9)
Net cash generated from operating activities 466 9 480 2
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26 Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

2016 2015
£m £m

17.9 1735

17.9 1735

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash and short-term bank deposits with an onginal maturity of three months
or less The carrying amount of these assets 1s equal to their fair value

Analysis of net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Denvative financial instruments
Debt i1ssue costs

Gilt lock proceeds

Borrowings due within one year
Borrowings due after one year
Finance ieases

Net debt

Balances at 31 March 2016
comprise:

Cash and cash equivalents

Dernvative financial instruments
Debt 1ssue costs

Gilt lock proceeds

Borrowings due within one year
Borrowings due after one year
Finance leases

Net debt

At Other At
1 Apnl non-cash 31 March
2015 Cash flow changes 2016
£m £m £m £m
173 5 (155 6) - 179
(1,151 7) 2984 (70 4) (923 7)
198 02 (19} 18 1
(53) - 02 (51)
(40 7) (500) - (90 7)
(3,580 2) (60 0) (13) {3,641 5)
{18) 02 01 {1.5)
(4,586 4) 332 {73 3) {4,626.5)
Non- Non- Total
current Current Current current £m
assets assets labilities [labilities
£m £m £m £m
- 17 9 - - 179
- - - (923 7) {923.7)
- - 19 16 2 18.1
- - (o1 (50) (5.1)
- - (90 7) - {90.7)
- - - {3.641 5) {3,641.5)
- - - (1% (1.5)
- 17 9 (88 9) {4,555 5) {4,626.5)

The non-cash movement of £73 3 million relates to an increase in debt as a result of indexation, movements on the
fair value of denvatives, plus the amortisation of loan i1ssue costs, gilt lock proceeds, deferred proceeds and a

reduction in finance lease obligations

Loans due within one year relate to loans from group undertakings that are repayable on demand (see note 19)
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27 Pensions

The deficit associated with retirement benefit obligations has decreased to £102 3 million {2015 £115 3 million) as
a result of an increase n the yields of AA-rated corporate bonds which increase the discount rate used to calculate
the value of pension scheme liabilities, offset by lower asset returns than expected

Pension schemes operated

The company principally operates one defined benefit pension scheme (final salary) and one defined contnbution
scheme, details of which are shown below

1

Southern Water Pension Scheme (SWPS), a funded defined benefit scheme, was closed to new members on
31 December 1998, re-opened in July 2003 and closed once more to new entrants on 1 Aprl 2005 This
scheme has nine trustee directors The Southern Water Services Executive Penston Scheme (SWEPS) was
also closed to new entrants and merged with the SWPS on 1 Apnl 2005

The Trustees are responsible for administrating the Fund which is held separately from the company Legal
and General and Blackrock are unit registrars for Southern Water Pension Scheme unit holdings, and appoint
custodians at individuat pooled fund level (not chient holding level) The company directors are responsible for
setting the accounting assumptions for the fund for inclusion in these financial statements

The main nsks of the scheme are as foliows

a)

b)

Asset volatility

For the purpose of setting the contribution requirements, the calculation uses a discount rate set with
reference to government bond yields, with allowance for additional return to be generated from the
investment portfolio — whereas under FRS 101, the defined benefit obligation 1s calculated using a
discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields

The schemes hoid a significant prepertion of their assets in growth assets The returns on these
assets may be volatile and are not correlated to the value placed on the habiiihes Thts means that the
deficit may be volatile in the shorter term, which may result in an increase In the contnbution
requirements and an increase In the net defined benefit lability recorded on the balance sheet
However, the company believes that retumn-seeking assets offer an appropnate leve! of return over the
long term for the level of nsk that 1s taken Furthermore, the scheme’s other assets are well-diversified
by investing in a range of asset classes, including hability dnven investments, government bonds and
corporate bonds

Changes In bond yields

A fall in bond yields increases the value placed on the liabiliites for reporting purposes and for setting
the company’s contribution requirements However, 1n this scenario the scheme’s Investment in
corporate and government bonds 1s expected to increase and therefore offset some of the increase in
the value placed on the habthties

Lfe expectancy

The majonty of the scheme’s obiigations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so
increases in ife expectancy will result in an increase in the scheme’s iabilites This 1s particularly
significant where the longer duration and inflation-linked nature of the payments result in higher
sensitivity to changes in Iife expectancy The scheme does not contain a hedge aganst increases in
future life expectancy
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27 Pensions (continued)

d) Inflabion nsk
The majonty of the scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to inflatton and higher out-turn inflation wll
lead to a higher benefit obligation (although 1n most cases caps on the level of inflationary increases
are In place to protect the plan against extreme inflation) The majonty of the schemes’ assets do not
provide a direct hedge against changes in inflation as they are either fixed-interest in nature e g
corporate bonds and government bonds, or have an indirect link to inflation e g equities

2 A second company stakeholder scheme, which 1s a defined contribution scheme, 15 also avaiable to all
employees

Contributions made to the defined contribution scheme for the year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to £2 3 million
(2015 £2 0 milhon} No contributions were outstanding at either year end

Members of all schemes receive an annual statement of their accrued benefits
The latest actuanal valuation of the SWPS was carried out as at 31 March 2013 using the projected umt method
For closed schemes under thus method the current service cost will increase as the members of the schemes

approach retirement The assumptions that have the maost significant effect on the resulls of the valuation are those
relating to the rate of return on investments, and the level of inflation, which drives pension increases 1n the SWPS
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27 Pensions (continued)

The pnincipal assumptions in the valuation were as follows

2013
SWPS
% per
annum
(pa}

Return on investments pre-retirement FI Gilt
Return on investments post-retirement (pensioner/non-pensioner) curve +
65 bps

Salary growth 2 5%

Pension increases on the excess over guaranteed minimum pensions 275%
{where capped at 5% pa)

The term ‘FI Gilt curve’ refers to the generally availlable fixed interest gilt yield curve agreed by the Trustees and
the company for the purposes of the 2013 actuanal valuation

The assets of the scheme had a market value of £574 5 million at 31 March 2013 This was sufficient to cover
77 per cent of the scheme’s benefits The duration of the scheme liabilities i1s 21 years

Expected employer and employee contributions to the defined benefit scheme for 2016-17 are £6 1 mithon and
£0 2 milhon respectively under the current Schedule of Contributions

1AS 19 — assumptions, asset, liability and reserves disclosures

The formal actuanal funding valuation was carned out as at 31 March 2013 and updated to 31 March 2016 by a
qualified iIndependent actuary The major assumptions used by the actuary are set out in the table below

2016 2015

% pa % pa
Price inflation (RPI} 30 30
Price inflation (CPI} 29 20
Rate of increase In salaries (plus an age-related promotional scale) 25 25
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (MIS* members only)*** 20 20
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (Old section™ members only)*** 30 30
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (all other members)~* 29 29
Rate of increase for deferred pensions (MIS* members only)*** 20 20
Rate of increase for deferred pensions (all other members)*** 29 29
Discount rate 36 34

*  MIS refers to the Southern Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme Pensions in payment and deferment for
this section wili be iIndexed in hne with the Consumer Pnice Index

** For this section the Trustee will endeavour to meet any indexation of excess pension above the five per
cent per annum cap on increases that apply to other sections of the Scheme

*** |n excess of any Guaranteed Mimimum Pension (GMP) element

134



Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

27 Pensions (continued)

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice, published statistics and expenence
Far 2015-16, the company has used the post-retirement mortality assumptions based on the standard SAPS
mortahty tables together with future improvements in line with CMI 2014 improvements with a long-term
improvement rate of 1 25 per cent per annum

2016 2015
Years Years
Longewty at age 65 for current pensioners
Male 23.0 230
Female 251 251
Longewvity at age 65 for future pensioners
Male 248 247
Female 270 270

The assets and habilities in the schemes and the expected rates of return at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015
were

Value Value

at 2016 at 2015

£m £m
Equities 1715 2822
Government bonds 196 2 1591
Non-government bonds 266 3 208 8
Cash 401 239
Total market value of plan assets 674 1 6740

Total value of plan iabihties (776 4) (789 3)

Accrued deficit in the plan (102 3) (115 3)
Related deferred tax asset 198 254

Net pension hability {82 5) (89 9)

The equity investments and bonds which are held in plan assets are quoted and are valued at the current bid price

Reconciliation of the present value of the scheme liahilities 2016 2015
£m £m

At 1 Apnl 7893 6719
Current service cost 54 48
Interest expense 26.4 298
Member contnbutions 0.2 02
Actuanal {gain)ioss on liabilities

due to changes 1n demographic assumptions 100 {(17)

due to changes in financial assumptions (27 1) 1098
Benefits paid (27 8) {25 5)
Scheme lhiabihties at 31 March 776 4 789 3
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27 Pensions (continued)

Sensitivity analysis of the scheme habilities

The sensitivity of the present value of the scheme liabilities to changes tn the principal assumptions used Is set out

below
Change in
assumption
Discount rate +- 1%
Rate of inflation* +- 1%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment +- 1%
Mortahty +/- 1yr

Impact on
scheme
habihties (%)

-+
+/-
+/-
+/-

15
13
11

3

Impact on
scheme
habihties

(Em}
-+ 116
+/- 101
+/- 85
+/- 23

*A change in inflation is assumed to be reflected in a change in the assumed rates of deferment revaluation and

pension increase (on pension In excess of GMP)

The above sensitivity analysis 1s based on a change 1in an assumption while hotding all other assumptions constant
In practice, this 1s unhkely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated The methods and
types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitvity analysis did not change compared to the previous period

Reconciliation of the value of the scheme assets 2016 2015

£m £m
At 1 Apnl 6740 5815
Interest iIncome 22.5 258
(Loss)/gain on assets above interest {311) 707
Employer contributions 372 234
Member contributions 02 02
Benefits paid {27 8) (25 5)
Administrative expenses {0.9) (2 1)
Bid value of scheme assets at 31 March 674.1 6740

The total {loss)/return on scheme assets was (£9 5) milion (2015 £84 4 million)

Total cost recognised as an expense 2016 2015

£m £m
Current service cost 5.4 48
Net interest cost 39 40
Administration expenses 09 21
Total income statement expense before deduction for tax 10 2 109
Analysls of the amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 2016 2015

£m £m
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets {31.1) 707
(Loss)/gamn due to changes in demographic assumptions {10 0) 17
Gain/(loss) due to changes In financial assumptions 271 (109 8)
Total loss recognised in OCI before adjustment for tax {14 0) {37 4)

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses recognised in other comprehensive income is £193 5 million (2015

£179 5 million)
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27 Pensions (continued)

Analysis of the movement in the schemes’ deficit during the year 2016 2015
£m £m
Deficit in the scheme at 1 Apnil {115 3) (90 4)
Employer's contnbutions 37.2 234
Employer’s current service cost (5.4) {4 8)
Financing charge on net balance sheet position (3.9) (40)
Adrministration expenses {09) (2 1)
Actuanal loss (14 0) (37 4)
Deficit in the scheme at end of year (102 3) (115 3)

28 Contingent hiabilities

Contractors submit claims to the company for the estimated final cost of their works These claims are reviewed to
assess where the liability for the costs rests and the amount that will actually be setlled The expected amountis
included within capital credilors and a further sum 1s 1dentified as a contingent hability, representing a proportion of
the difference between the contractor’s claim and Southern Water's valuation

The company had no contingent habifties for capital claims at the year-end (2015 £nil)

29 Financial commitments

(a) Capital commitments are as follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided for
in respect of contracts placed 193 8 113 3
{b) The company as lessee
2016 2015
£m £m
Lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 39 38

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements in respect of vehicles and land and bulldings for which the payments fall due as follows

Land and Buildings Other
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Expiring within one year 17 16 0.2 02
Expining between two and five years 63 62 04 04
Expiring after more than five years 14.5 16 1 01 -
22.5 23 9 07 06

Operating leases are charged to the income statement over the lease term
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30 Related party transactions and ultimate holding party
The immediate parent undertaking 1s SWS Holdings Limited

The ulimate parent company and ultimate controlling party 1s Greensands Holdings Limited (GSH), a company
incorporated in Jersey

The major shareholders in GSH as at 31 March 2016 are lIF international SW UK Investments Limited (managed
by JP Morgan Investments Inc } and The Northern Trust Company

GSH s the only group company to prepare consolidated financial statements, copies of which may be obtained
from the Company Secretary of GSH at Southern House, Yeoman Road, Worthing, BN13 3NX, or from our
website

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ in not

disclosing details of transactions with other companies which are 100 per cent wholly owned, equivalent
disclosures are given in the group financiat statements of GSH
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31 Explanation of transition to FRS 101

This 1s the first penod the company has presented its financial statements under FRS 101 issued by the Financial
Reporting Councit The last financial statements prepared under the previous UK accounting framework were for
the year ending 31 March 2015 The date of transition was 1 Apnl 2014 and all comparative information in these
financial statements has been restated to reflect the company’'s adoption of FRS 101, except where otherwise
required or permitted by IFRS 1

The following disclosures are required n the penod of transition

Reconcihation of statement of financial position at 1 Apnl 2014

UK  Fair value Property, Borrowing Financial Other Restated

GAAP of property, plant and costs nstruments under
plantand equipment FRS 101
equipment
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Notes [ il 1] v v
Intangible assets - - - - - 340 340
Property, plant and equipment 44320 9616 49 168 5 - (34 0) 55330
Other non-current assets 8123 - - - - - 8123
investments 282 - - - - - 292
Current assets and liabillties
Cash and cash equivalents 1355 - - - - - 135656
Other current assets 2000 - - - - - 2000
Current liabilities (300 6) - - - - (18) (302 4)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (3,821 1) - - - 2650 16 (3,5545)
Denvative financial instruments - - - - (1,026 4) - (1,026 4)
Deferred tax liabihties (314 2) (192 3) (7 8} (33 7) 1532 {6 5) (401 3)
Retrement benefit obligations (72 3) - - - - (18 1) (S0 4)
Provisions for hlablites (0 5) - - - - - (0 5)
Other non-current iabilities (59 1) - 294 - - - (297)
Total net assets 1,041 2 769 3 265 134 8 (6082) (248) 1,3388
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 01 - - - - - 01
Share premium account 46 3 - - - - - 46 3
Revaluation reserve - 769 3 - - - - 7693
Retained esarnings 994 8 - 265 134 8 (6082) (248) 523 1
Total shareholder's equity 1,041 2 769 3 265 134 8 (6082) (24 8) 1,338 8
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31 Explanation of transition to FRS§1901 (continued)

Reconcihation of statement of financiat posttion at 31 March 2015

UK Fair value Property, Borrowing Financiat Other Restated

GAAP of property, plant and costs tnstruments under
plantand equipment FRS 101
equipment
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Notes | n m v v
Intangible assets - - - - - 429 429
Property, plant and equipment 4,483 0 946 6 450 168 5 - {42 9) 5,600 2
Other non-current assets 8123 - - - - - 8123
Investments 292 - - - - - 292
Current assets and liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 1735 - - - - - 1735
OGther current assets 2190 - - - - 37 2227
Current abilities (246 5) - - - - (15) (248 0)
Non-current liabllities
Borrowings {3,857 8) - - . 2869 16 (3,569 3)
Denvative financial instruments - - - - (1151 7) - (1,151 7)
Deferred tax habihties (336 8) {189 3) (12 3) (337) 1730 09 (398 2)
Retirement benefit obligations (89 9) - - - - (25 4) (115 3)
Provisions for habiities {0 5) - - - - - (0 5)
Other non-current habihties (56 3} - 161 - - - (40 2)
Totat net assets 1,129 2 7573 48 8 134 8 (691 8) {(207) 1,357 6
Capital and reserves
Called up share capitat 01 - - - - - 01
Share premium account 46 3 - - - - - 46 3
Revaluation reserve - 757 3 - - - - 757 3
Retained earnings 1,082 8 - 48 8 1348 (691 8) (20 7) 5539
Total shareholder's equity 1,129 2 757 3 48 8 134 8 (691 8) (20 7) 1,357 6
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31 Explanation of transition to FRS§101 (continued}

Reconciliation of profit for the year ended 31 March 2015

UK  Fair value Property, Borrowing Financial Other Restated
GAAP of property, plant and costs instruments under
plantand equipment FRS 101
equipment
Continuing operations £m Em £m Em £m £m £m
Notas ! ] [} [\ v
Revenue 828 6 - 74 - - (2 8) 8262
Other operating income 02 - 10 - - - 12
Operating costs (500 5) (15 2) 187 67) - 78 {4959)
Operaling profit 3283 {15 2) 271 (67) - 20) 3315
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 13 - - - - - 13
Net finance costs (125 7) - - 87 (103 5) 03 (222 2)
Profit before taxation 2039 (15 2) 271 - (103 5) (17 1106
Tax on profit on ordinary actviies (36 7) 30 (5 4} - 207 14 (7o
Profit after taxation from
continuing operations 167 2 {(122) 217 - (82 8) (03) 936
Other comprehenslve loss
Items that cannot be reclassified
to profit or loss
Actuanal loss on pension scheme (42 9) - - - - 55 (37 4)
Movement on deferred tax in
relation to pension ltabihty 86 ) B ) ) (1 75
Total othar comprehensive loss B
for the year, net of tax (343) . ) i 44 299)
Total comprehensive income for 1329 (122) 217 ) (82 8) 41 637

the year

Notes to the reconcihiations

(i) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Under IFRS 1 ‘First-time adoption of International Financial Reporling Standards’, the company has elected
to measure Its infrastructure and operational assets at 1 Aprl 2014, being the date of transition to FRS 101,
at their fairr value and to use that fair value as their deemed cost at that date

The farr value was estimated based on the Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) plus a premium based on

numerous recent transactions that have taken place in the water industry and allocated to those assels to

be re-valued

A farr value attnbuted to net assets was then denived from the total fair value by deducting the book value
of debt and cash items Finally, the resultant value was attnbuted to the elements of net assets leaving the

residual value to be attnbuted to the property, plant and equipment

Impact

At the date of transition, the value of property, plant and equipment has been increased by £961 6 million,

the majonty of which 1s attnbutable to infrastruciure assets
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{n

At 31 March 2015, the impact was to increase property, plant and equipment by £946 6 million and to
increase deferred tax iabiities by £189 3 million The impact on profit for the year to 31 March 2015 was to
increase the depreciation charge by £15 2 million, with a deferred tax credit of £3 0 million

Property, plant and equipment (IAS 16 and 1AS 38)
Infrastructure assels

Previously, the company's water and wastewater assets were accounted for in accordance with the
renewals accounting provisitons of Financial Reporting Standard 15 ‘Tangible Fixed Assets’ Under
renewals accounting, the water and wastewater infrastructure networks were assumed to be single assels
Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increase In capacity or enhancements to the networks and
on masntaining the operating capahility of the networks in accordance with defined standards of service
was capitalised The depreciation charged was the estimated level of annual expenditure required to
matntain the operating capability of the networks Grants and contributions relating to the maintenance of
the operating capability of the infrastructure network were {aken into account when deterrmirung this charge
Grants and contnbutions relating to the enhancement of the infrastructure network were deducted from the
costs of fixed assets

Renewats accounting 1s not permitted under International Accounting Standard 16 ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ ({AS 16) The carrying value of infrastructure assets has therefore been re-valued at far value
as descnbed above on page 141

The infrastructure network has been broken down into a number of significant parts based on the type of
pipe or structure and its tocation Broadly this has resulted in the following significant parts impounding
reservoirs, local and trunk mains, wastewater tunnels and ouffalls, sewers and ancillary structures These
have all been assigned residual values of nil and are being depreciated over 10 to 200 years

From 1 Apnl 2014, infrastructure expenditure that meets the recognition criteria for property, plant and
equipment has been capitahsed at cost and depreciated over its expected life Expenditure relating to
repair or maintenance has been expensed

Historic infrastructure receipts previously presented as deductions from infrastructure cost under UK GAAP
have been transferred to reserves on transition to IFRS on the basis that they do not relate 1o a specific
asset From 1 Apnl 2014, these receipts have been recorded as revenue

From 1 Apnil 2014, infrasiructure grants and contributions previously presented as deductions from
infrastructure cost under UK GAAP have been allocated to deferred income and amortised over the
expected useful lives of the related assets

Under UK GAAP, no value was recognised for assets transferred or adopted from developers or other third
parties at nil consideration IFRIC 18 ‘Transfers of Assets from Customer’ requires that when an item s
transferred from a customer, and it meets the definition of an asset, then it should be recognised at far
value within property, plant and equipment The deferred credit ansing on the adoption of the asset I1s
recognised as other income over the life of the relevant asset

There are no significant differences between UK GAAP and IFRS n respect of all other fixed assets,
including water and water recycling non-infrastructure assets, cther than the separate classification of
certain assets as intangibles rather than tangible assets in accordance with IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’

Impact

Reclassifying the histonc infrastructure receipts under FRS 101 has resulted in an increase in net assets of
£81 2 million and a decrease of £29 4 million in deferred creditors as at 31 March 2014, with a further net
£5 5 mithon transferred to the income statement for 2014-15

Under UK GAAP, the difference between the cumulative infrastructure renewals expenditure and that
charged to the profit and loss account as depreciation {IRC) was held as a prepayment in fixed assets of
£76 3 million As this value does not represent an asset under FRS 101 1t has been wnitten off to reserves
on transition

142




Southern Water Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015-16

Notes to the financlal statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016

31 Explanation of transition to FRS101 (continued)

) Property, plant and equipment (IAS 16 and IAS 38} (continued)

At 31 March 2015, the value of adopted assets recognised In accordance with IFRIC 18 since the date of
transition was £6 9 mililon, with a corresponding credit to other non-current liabiliies In addition grants and
contnbutions received of £4 4 million were transferred to deferred creditors

As at 31 March 2015, under FRS 101, the annual depreciation charge of infrastructure assets (excluding
the farr value depreciation) plus the maintenance costs expensed together with changes to the
infrastructure assets qualifying for capitalisation was £21 7 million lower than the total of renewals
expenditure recorded under UK GAAP

(1) Borrowing costs

Under FRS 101, the company I1s required to capitalise an element of borrowing costs that are direcily
attributable to the acquisiton, construction or production of quatifying assets as part of the costs of that
asset Borrowing costs are capitalised when incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets during
the penod of time that 1s required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use

Previously, under UK GAAP, borrowing costs were fully expensed as incurred The change in policy under
IFRS has been apphed retrospectively with an effective date of 1 Apnl 2003, reflecting the point at which
the company was secuntised and financed by ioans

Impact

As a result of the retrospective application of IAS 23 'Borrowing Costs’, net assels increased by £134 8
million for the year ending 31 March 2014 During 2014-15 borrowing costs of £6 7 milion were capitalised
and a total of £6 7 million of capitalised borrowing costs was charged as depreciation

(wv) Financial instruments

Under FRS 101, the company must apply IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’
(IAS 39)

The most significant aspect of applying IAS 39 i1s In relation to denvatives, pnncipally interest rate swaps on
index-linked bonds that are held to protect against the company’s exposure to inflation risk

Under IAS 39, the fair value of these denvatives must be recognised on the statement of financial position,
with farr value movements being recognised in the income statement untess cash flow hedge accounting 1s
apphied This has the potential to introduce considerable volatility to the income statement and the
statement of financial posthion

Also under IAS 39, the general treatment of debt 1s for it to be carmed at amortised cost, such that
borrowings are stated at net proceeds received after the deduction of issue costs Under UK GAAP, the
issue costs of debt instruments are amortised at a constant rate over the life of the instrument, whereas
under IFRS, the costs are amortised using the ‘effective interest rate’ method

Impact

As a result of applying IAS 39, a lability for denvative financial instruments of £1,151 7 milhion was
recorded at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014 £1,026 4 million)} In addition, the capitalised RPI on fixed rate
swaps at 31 March 2015 of £282 4million was transferred from borrowings to denvative financial
instruments {31 March 2014 £260 6 million) The impact of recording debt at amortised cost reduced
borrowings by £4 5 milion at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014 £4 4 million)
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31 Explanation of transition to FRS101 (continued)
{v) Other
Other adjustments ansing from the transition relate to pensions, deferred tax and revenue

The pension deficit 1s presented at its gross value, with the associated deferred tax asset of £25 4 million at
31 March 2015 (31 March 2014 £18 1 million) being transferred to offset the deferred tax habiity

In 2014-15 finance costs relating to the pension deficit increased by £3 4 million This change results from
the revised presentation of administrative expenses and changes to the calculation for finance costs under
IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ These changes reclassify £2 1 million as operating costs, reducing the finance
charge offset by an increase in the finance charge of £5 5 millon The increase n the finance charge of

£5 5 million 1s offset by an equal movement through the statement of other comprehensive iIncome

As a result of differences in the treatment timing and temporary differences, an adjustment has been made
to deferred tax for assets that previously qualified for industnal buildings allowance of £23 7 million at 31
March 2015 (31 March 2014 £24 & mllion)

In 201415, both revenue and the bad debt provision have been reduced by £13 3 million on the basts that
It 1s probable that economic benefits will not be received from these charges In addition, a further £3 6
million of income from electricily generation, previously offset within operating costs, has been re-classified
as revenue Fees associated with arranging a new loan facility of £3 7 muilion, which had been expensed,
have been transferred to current assets to be amortised over the life of the facility

In 2014-15 intangible assets of £42 9 million (3% March 2014 £34 0 millon} have been presented as a
separate item on the statement of financial position (SOFP) Previously these assets were recorded within
property, piant and equipment Upon transition to FRS 101 these assets have been identified as meeting
the recognition crntena of IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’

In addition to the adjustment referred to in note (iv) another ramification of adopting IAS 39 has meant that
fixed rate bond instruments must be carned at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method As a
result, debt 1ssue costs previously capitalised and held separately on the SOFP are now deducted from the
related debt instruments with effective interest being charged to the income statement Previously these
debt issue costs were amortised on a straight-line basis \n accordance with the life of the related loan This
has resulted in £1 6 milhon (31 March 2014 £1 6 million) of tong-term debt being reclassified as due within
one year

{vi) Cash flow

The changes made to the cash flow statement reflect the presentational impact of the transition
adjustments outlined above

32 Post batance sheet events

Following careful consideration of the options available to us regarding the opening of the non-household retail
market, the company has entered into a transaction to dispose of its non-household retall business function with
effect from 1 Apnl 2017 A reasonable estimate of the financial effect cannot currently be made as the terms of the
sale are subject to conditions at 31 March 2017

In additon to the above, one of the major shareholders of Greensands Holdings Limited (GSH), being The

Northern Trust Company, sold their shares in GSH, the ulbmate parent company, after the reporting date The
shares were acquired by existing shareholders under the pre-emption arrangements on 19 May 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Southern Water Services Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Southern Water Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016
which compnse the Income Statement, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 32 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation i1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework’

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully In the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility
15 to audit and express an opinicn on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and treland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invoives obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting palicies are appropriate to the company's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read ali the financial and non-financial information 1n the annual report to tdentify matenal inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and 1o identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

» gwve a true and far view of the state of the company's affars as at 31 March 2016 and of its profit for the
year then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

+ the information given In the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

* the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements

In the Night of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtamned in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any matenal misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report

145




Southern Water Annual Report and Financia! Statements 2015-16

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, th our opinion

= adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved
from branches not visited by us, or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Crna- £ A-L"".

James Leigh (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

30 June 2016
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